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Dear Stakeholders,

After proudly serving our community for more than 40 years, the Prince William County Service 
Authority began doing business as Prince William Water in Fiscal Year 2025. This name better 
communicates our essential mission and connection to the community we serve. 

The 2025 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report may have a new look but our commitment to 
XYWTSLܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYJ\FWIXMNU�FSI�WJXUTSXNGQJ�RFSFLJRJSY�TK�YMJ�KZSIX�JSYWZXYJI�YT�ZX�WJRFNSX�
the same. 

We are proud to protect public health and the environment by reliably providing clean, safe and 
IJUJSIFGQJ�XJW[NHJ�YT�YMJ್5WNSHJ�<NQQNFR�(TZSY^�HTRRZSNY �̂�5WNSHJ�<NQQNFR�<FYJW�TUJWFYJX�FSI�
maintains a massive, interconnected system to annually deliver nearly 12 billion gallons of clean 
drinking water and return over 10 billion gallons of wastewater to the environment – all while 
meeting or exceeding stringent regulatory standards.

Learn about the complicated cycle every drop of water goes through and our shared roles as 
environmental ambassadors by visiting the Learning Library at www.princewilliamwater.org or the 
Grubbs Environmental Center at the H.L. Mooney Advance Water Reclamation Facility.

Sincerely,

Calvin D. Farr, Jr., General Manager
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LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

��(TZSY^�(TRUQJ]�(TZWY� � 5MTSJ�(���)����������
5�4��'T]������ � � +F]�(���)���������
Woodbridge, VA 22195-2266  www.pwcsa.org

B. Paul O’Meara, Jr., Chair
Paul Colangelo, Jr., Vice Chair
Marlo Thomas Watson, Secretary/Treasurer
Jim Almond, Member
Dean E. Dickey, Member
Charles A. Grymes, Member
K. Jack Kooyoomjian, Ph.D., Member
Thomas J. Smith, P.E., Member

Calvin D. Farr, Jr., P.E., General Manager/CEO

December 23, 2025

Board of Directors of 

Prince William Water 

Woodbridge, Virginia

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the Prince William County Service Authority d/b/a Prince 
<NQQNFR�<FYJW�(Ѧ5WNSHJ�<NQQNFR�<FYJWѧ�TW�ѦYMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѧ)�KTW�YMJܪ�XHFQ�̂ JFWX�JSIJI�/ZSJ����������FSI������NX�XZGRNYYJI�
herewith. Financial data, including all appropriate disclosures, have been prepared in accordance with the standards 
KTWܪ�SFSHNFQ�WJUTWYNSL�UWTRZQLFYJI�TW�UJWRNYYJI�G^�YMJ�,T[JWSRJSYFQ�&HHTZSYNSL�8YFSIFWIX�'TFWI�(,&8')�

Management is responsible, in all material respects, for the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness 
TK�YMJ�UWJXJSYFYNTSX��NSHQZINSL�FQQ�INXHQTXZWJX��<J�GJQNJ[J�YMJ�IFYF�UWJXJSYX�KFNWQ^�YMJܪ�SFSHNFQ�UTXNYNTS�FSI�WJXZQYX�TK�
operations of the Authority.

This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) found in the 
�SFSHNFQ�XJHYNTS�TK�YMJ�&(+7��FSI�XMTZQI�GJ�WJFI�NS�HTSOZSHYNTS�\NYM�NYܪ

The Authority
The Authority was created by a resolution of the Board of County Supervisors (BOCS) of Prince William County, Virginia 
(the County) on January 11, 1983. The Authority is chartered by the State Corporation Commission and is an independent 
public body responsible for providing a comprehensive county-wide water and sewer system. The management of the 
Authority is vested in a Board of eight members appointed by the County’s BOCS. The Authority’s Board appoints the 
General Manager, who is responsible for the daily management of the Authority. Effective July 1, 2024, the Authority 
began doing business as Prince William Water.  Our updated name and logo helps to clarify our mission as a water 
utility.

Economic Conditions and Outlook
Prince William County is the second-largest county in the Commonwealth of Virginia with a population of over 508,000, 
as of June 30, 2025. The County is located approximately 35 miles southwest of Washington, D.C. and encompasses 
a total area of 348 square miles that includes independent cities and towns, state and federal park properties, and the 
Quantico Marine Corps Base. A highly-educated, racially and ethnically diverse population makes the county one of 
the most globally represented communities in the region. Steeped in rich history, surrounded by beautiful parks and 
open space, Prince William County is a community of choice where individuals, families and businesses choose to 
live, work and play.
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According to the 2019-2023 American Community Survey, the 2023 median household income in the County was 
	��������\MNHM�WFSPX�SJFW�YMJ�YTU�FRTSL�WJLNTSX�NS�YMJ�(TRRTS\JFQYM�TK�;NWLNSNF��FSI�YMJ�JSYNWJ�USNYJI�8YFYJX��
*RUQT^RJSY�\NYMNS�YMJ�XJW[NHJ�FWJF�NX�\JQQ�IN[JWXNܪJI��FSI�FX�TK�/ZSJ�������YMJ�F[JWFLJ�ZSJRUQT^RJSY�WFYJ�\FX����
��
which is below the national level and the Virginia state-wide level. The total civilian labor force in Prince William County 
FY�/ZSJ�����������\FX�JXYNRFYJI�FY�FUUWT]NRFYJQ^���������UJWXTSX��\MNHM�NX�ZSHMFSLJI�KWTR������FSI�ZU�����
�
KWTR�������9MJ�F[JWFLJ�FXXJXXJI�[FQZJ�NS�YMJ�WJXNIJSYNFQ�WJFQ�JXYFYJ�RFWPJY�NS������\FX�ZU�����
�KWTR������

The Authority’s major customers are well-established entities consisting of schools, internet data centers, multi-family 
MTZXNSL�HTRUQJ]JX��WJYFNQ�TZYQJYX��FSI�F�MTXUNYFQ��.S�YTYFQ��YMJ�YJS�QFWLJXY�HZXYTRJWX�WJUWJXJSY����
�TK�YTYFQ�HTSXZRUYNTS�
WJ[JSZJX��4[JWFQQ��YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�HZXYTRJW�GFXJ�NX�UWNRFWNQ^�WJXNIJSYNFQ�FHHTZSYX��WJUWJXJSYNSL�RTWJ�YMFS���
�TK�YMJ�
FHHTZSYX��9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^�HTSYNSZJX�YT�J]UJWNJSHJ�LWT\YM�NS�HZXYTRJW�FHHTZSYX��\NYM�FS�FIINYNTSFQ�����FHHTZSYX�FIIJI�
IZWNSLܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�������WJUWJXJSYNSL�FS�NSHWJFXJ�TK����
�T[JW�YMJ�UWNTW�^JFW�

9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣXܪ�SFSHNFQ�UTXNYNTS�FSI�TUJWFYNSL�WJXZQYX�WJܫJHY�XZܬHNJSY�KZSIX�F[FNQFGQJ�YT�UF^�KTW�TUJWFYNSL�HTXYX�FSI�
long-term debt, as well as to invest in the infrastructure improvements needed to maintain and replace critical capital 
assets. The Authority’s emergency planning and preparedness ensure the continuity of operations and delivery of 
essential services to our customers.

Long-Term Financial Planning
.S�TWIJW�YT�KFHNQNYFYJ�QTSL�YJWR�UQFSSNSL��YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�RFNSYFNSX�F�RTIJQ�TK�NYXܪ�SFSHJX�UWTOJHYNSL����^JFWX�NSYT�YMJ�
KZYZWJ��\NYM�UFWYNHZQFW�FYYJSYNTS�YT�YMJ�NRRJINFYJܪ�[J�^JFW�UJWNTI��9MNX�RTIJQ�NSHQZIJX�UWTOJHYNTSX�TK�\FYJW�FSI�XJ\JW�
capacity utilization, system growth and related availability fee revenue, operating revenues and expenses, debt service 
WJVZNWJRJSYX��FSI�HFXMܫ�T\X�

The Authority also maintains and updates a Capital Improvements Program (CIP) on an annual basis, which details 
capital projects that are necessary for system expansion, rehabilitation and improved system reliability. This program 
IJYFNQX�UQFSSJI�XUJSINSL�KTW�YMJ�JSXZNSLܪ�[J�^JFW�UJWNTI��FSI�FLLWJLFYJ�HFUNYFQ�XUJSINSL�FSYNHNUFYJI�KTW�NIJSYNܪJI�
projects in subsequent years.

The Authority uses this data to facilitate projection of necessary rate increases and additional capacity requirements, to 
ensure proper debt coverage, and to provide for adequate funding for the Authority’s ongoing activities and obligations.

The Authority uses a Strategic Plan developed with input from the Board of Directors, management, and staff as a tool 
YT�JSXZWJ�YMFYܪ�SFSHNFQ�UQFSSNSL�NX�FQNLSJI�\NYM�YMJ�KZYZWJ�SJJIX��UWNTWNYNJX�FSI�[NXNTS�TK�YMJ�TWLFSN_FYNTS��9MJ�&SSZFQ�
Business Plan includes key performance indicators and goals that advance the Strategic Plan.

The Authority maintains a AAA/Aaa rating from Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services (S&P) and Moody’s Investors 
Service, Inc. (Moody’s), respectively, on its outstanding revenue bonds, the highest ratings that can be awarded to 
QTHFQ�LT[JWSRJSYX��9MNX�KZWYMJW�IJRTSXYWFYJX�FSI�[FQNIFYJX�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�XTZSIܪ�SFSHNFQ�HTSINYNTS�FSI�YMJ�UTXNYN[J�
NRUFHY�TK�QTSL�YJWRܪ�SFSHNFQ�UQFSSNSL�

Internal Control Structure and Budgetary Controls
The Authority’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls. 
The objectives of internal controls are to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that 
FXXJYX�FWJ�XFKJLZFWIJI�FLFNSXY�QTXX�KWTR�ZSFZYMTWN_JI�ZXJ�TW�INXUTXNYNTS��FSIܪ�SFSHNFQ�WJHTWIX�KTW�UWJUFWNSLܪ�SFSHNFQ�
statements and maintaining asset accountability are reliable. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that 
JXYNRFYJX�FSI�OZILRJSYX�RFIJ�G^�RFSFLJRJSY�FWJ�WJVZNWJI�YT�FXXJXX�YMJ�J]UJHYJI�GJSJܪYX�FSI�WJQFYJI�HTXYX�TK�
NSYJWSFQ�FHHTZSYNSL�HTSYWTQ�UWTHJIZWJX�FSI�YMFY�YMJ�HTXY�TK�F�HTSYWTQ�XMTZQI�STY�J]HJJI�YMJ�GJSJܪYX�QNPJQ^�YT�GJ�IJWN[JI��
Management reviews internal controls on a continuing basis.

The Board approves an annual budget for operating expenditures and capital outlays. The Authority controls current 
year expenses at both the functional and operating division levels. Division directors are responsible for budgetary 
items that are controllable within their divisions. The Division of Management and Budget is responsible for monitoring 
expenses by function for the Authority as a whole. Controlling all expenses at different levels strengthens overall 
budgetary and management controls.
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Independent Audit
9MJ�;NWLNSNF�8YFYJ�(TIJ�8JHYNTS�����������WJVZNWJX�FS�FSSZFQ�FZINY�GJ�UJWKTWRJI��9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣXܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX�
KTW�YMJ�^JFW�JSIJI�/ZSJ����������FSI������MF[J�GJJS�FZINYJI�G^�5'2FWJX��115��Fܪ�WR�TK�QNHJSXJI�HJWYNܪJI�UZGQNH�
FHHTZSYFSYX��9MJܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������.SIJUJSIJSY�&ZINYTWѣX�7JUTWY�NX�QTHFYJI�NS�YMJܪ�SFSHNFQ�XJHYNTS�TK�YMNX�ITHZRJSY�

Awards
9MJ�,T[JWSRJSY�+NSFSHJ�4ܬHJWX�&XXTHNFYNTS�(,+4&)�TK�YMJ�USNYJI�8YFYJX�FSI�(FSFIF�F\FWIJI�F�(JWYNܪHFYJ�TK�
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Prince William County Service Authority for its ACFR for the 
�XHFQ�^JFW�JSIJI�/ZSJ�����������9MNX�\FX�YMJ���YM�HTSXJHZYN[J�^JFW�YMFY�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�MFX�FHMNJ[JI�YMNX�UWJXYNLNTZXܪ
F\FWI��.S�TWIJW�YT�GJ�F\FWIJI�F�(JWYNܪHFYJ�TK�&HMNJ[JRJSY��F�LT[JWSRJSY�JSYNY^�RZXY�UZGQNXM�FS�JFXNQ^�WJFIFGQJ�FSI�
JܬHNJSYQ^�TWLFSN_JI�&(+7��\MNHM�RZXY�XFYNXK^�GTYM�FHHTZSYNSL�UWNSHNUQJX�LJSJWFQQ^�FHHJUYJI�NS�YMJ�USNYJI�8YFYJX�TK�
America and applicable legal requirements.

&�(JWYNܪHFYJ�TK�&HMNJ[JRJSY�NX�[FQNI�KTW�F�UJWNTI�TK�TSJ�^JFW�TSQ �̂�<J�GJQNJ[J�YMNX�^JFWѣX�&(+7�HTSYNSZJX�YT�RJJY�YMJ�
(JWYNܪHFYJ�TK�&HMNJ[JRJSY�5WTLWFRѣX�WJVZNWJRJSYX�FSI�\J�FWJ�XZGRNYYNSL�NY�YT�YMJ�,+4&�YT�IJYJWRNSJ�NYX�JQNLNGNQNY^�KTW�
continued recognition under this program.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
To the Honorable Board of Directors 
Prince William Water 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Prince William Water (Authority), as of and for 
the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Authority as of June 30, 2025 and 2024, and respective changes in financial position and its 
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Specifications for Audits of Authorities, 
Boards, and Commissions issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Our 
responsibilities under those standards and specifications are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of the Authority and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant 
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 



 

 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Authority's ability to continue as 
a going concern for 12 months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known 
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS; Government Auditing Standards; and 
Specifications for Audits of Authorities, Boards, and Commissions, issued by the Auditor of Public 
Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia, will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually 
or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements. 
  
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS; Government Auditing Standards; and Specifications for 
Audits of Authorities, Boards, and Commissions, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia, we 
  
• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Authority's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 
raise substantial doubt about the Authority's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable 
period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 
 



 

 

Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis on pages 16-29 and the required supplementary information pages 83-92 be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit 
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide 
any assurance. 
 
Other Information 
 
Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information 
comprises the introductory section and statistical section but does not include the basic financial statements 
and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the basic financial statements does not cover the other 
information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. 
  
In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the 
basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based 
on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information 
exists, we are required to describe it in our report. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 23, 
2025 on our consideration of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part 
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority's 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
 
 
Harrisonburg, Virginia  
December 23, 2025

PBMares, LLP
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

9MNX�XJHYNTS�TK�5WNSHJ�<NQQNFR�<FYJWѣX�&(+7�UWJXJSYX�RFSFLJRJSYѣX�FSFQ^XNX�TK�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣXܪ�SFSHNFQ�UJWKTWRFSHJ�
IZWNSL� YMJ� �XHFQܪ ^JFW� JSIJI� /ZSJ� ���� ������9MNX� FSFQ^XNX� XMTZQI� GJ� WJFI� NS� HTSOZSHYNTS� \NYM� YMJ� GFXNH� �SFSHNFQܪ
statements, which are located in the next section of the ACFR.

Financial Highlights 
The Authority provides water and wastewater services in Prince William County, which is the second largest county 
NS�;NWLNSNF�\NYM�FS�JXYNRFYJI�UTUZQFYNTS�TK���������FSI�F�RJINFS�MTZXJMTQI�NSHTRJ�TK�	���������.Sܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�������
YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣXܪ�SFSHNFQ�HTSINYNTS�WJRFNSJI�[JW^�XYWTSL��MNLMQNLMYJI�G^�YMJ�KTQQT\NSL�

● The Authority’s cash position and debt coverage remain strong. Cash and investments at June 30, 2025 increased 
$112.8 million to $441.0 million. The increase was primarily driven by $118.9 million in bond proceeds (consisting 
TK�	������RNQQNTS�NS�GTSIX�UF^FGQJ�FSI�F�	����RNQQNTS�UWJRNZR)�FSI�HFXMܫ�T\X�KWTR�TUJWFYNTSX��UFWYNFQQ^�TKKXJY�G^�
increased CIP spending and partial redemption of the 2013 bonds for $18.2 million. The Authority maintained the 
highest bond ratings from Moody’s and S&P and exceeded all debt coverage requirements.

● 9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^�HTSYNSZJI�YT�RFPJ�NSKWFXYWZHYZWJ�NRUWT[JRJSYX��\MNHM�\JWJ�FQXT�NRUFHYJI�G^�WNXNSL�HTXYX��.Sܪ�XHFQ�
^JFW�������SJY�HFUNYFQ�FXXJYX�NSHWJFXJI�G^�	�����RNQQNTS��TW����
��UWNRFWNQ^�IZJ�YT�	������RNQQNTS�NS�FIINYNTSX�FX�YMJ�
&ZYMTWNY^�HTSYNSZJI�YT�NRUWT[J��WJUQFHJ�FSI�J]UFSI�NYX�NSKWFXYWZHYZWJ�NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�������\MNHM�\FX�UFWYNFQQ^�TKKXJY�
G^�IJUWJHNFYNTS�FSI�INXUTXFQX��8NLSNܪHFSY�UWTOJHYX�NSHQZIJI�QFWLJ�HFUNYFQ�NS[JXYRJSYX�NS�YMJ�-�1��2TTSJ^�&I[FSHJI�
Wastewater Reclamation Facility (HLM AWRF), improved water transmission capabilities across the Occoquan 
River, and wastewater collection system improvements.

● 4UJWFYNSL� WJ[JSZJX� NSHWJFXJI� G^� 	����� RNQQNTS�� TW� ���
�� YT� 	������ RNQQNTS� UWNRFWNQ^� IZJ� YT� /FSZFW^� ����� WFYJ�
NSHWJFXJX��FSI�F����
�NSHWJFXJ�NS�YMJ�[TQZRJ�TK�\FYJW�FSI�XJ\JW�XTQI���9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�'TFWI�TK�)NWJHYTWX�FITUYJI�
WFYJ�NSHWJFXJX�KTW������������FSI������YT�FIIWJXX�UWTOJHYJI�NSHWJFXJX�NS�TUJWFYNSL�HTXYX�FSI�HFUNYFQ�WJUQFHJRJSY�
needs. 

● Revenue from availability fees decreased by $4.1 million to $48.8 million primarily due to lower Equivalent Residential 
USNYX�(*7UX)�HJWYNܪJI�NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW��������(JWYNܪHFYNTSX�YTYFQJI�������*7UX��HTRUFWJI�YT�������*7UX�NSܪ�XHFQ�
^JFW�������&S�*7U�NX�YMJ�JXYFGQNXMJI�F[JWFLJ�ZXJ�TK�F�XNSLQJ�KFRNQ^�WJXNIJSHJ�

● 4UJWFYNSL�J]UJSXJX�NSHWJFXJI�	����RNQQNTS�T[JW�YMJ�UWNTWܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�YT�	������RNQQNTS�UWNRFWNQ^�IZJ�YT�MNLMJW�UWNHJX�
KWTR�NSܫFYNTS�FSI�LJSJWFQ�JHTSTRNH�HTSINYNTSX��

● 3JY�UTXNYNTS� NSHWJFXJI� NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������G^�	�����RNQQNTS�YT�	����GNQQNTS�FX�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�HTSYNSZJX�YT�RFPJ�
investments in infrastructure.

Additional discussion of operating results is included in subsequent sections of Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣXܪ�SFSHNFQ�UTXNYNTS�FSI�WJXZQYX�KWTR�TUJWFYNTSX�JSXZWJ�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�\NQQ�HTSYNSZJ�YT�MF[J�XZܬHNJSY�KZSIX�
available to pay for operating costs and long-term debt, as well as to invest in infrastructure improvements needed to 
maintain and replace capital assets.
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Overview of the Financial Statements
The Authority operates as an enterprise fund. Enterprise funds are a type of proprietary fund and function similar to a 
UWN[FYJ�GZXNSJXX�NS�YMFY�ZXJW�HMFWLJX�FSI�KJJX�FWJ�J]UJHYJI�YT�HT[JW�HTXYX��9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�GFXNHܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX�FWJ�
presented using the accrual basis of accounting, which provides for revenue recognition in the period in which water and 
water reclamation services are provided and expense recognition when goods and services are received. Additionally, 
YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�GFXNHܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX�ZYNQN_J�YMJܫ�T\�TK�JHTSTRNH�WJXTZWHJX�RJFXZWJRJSY�KTHZX�� NS�\MNHM�FQQ�
FXXJYX��IJKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX��QNFGNQNYNJX�FSI�IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�FWJ�WJܫJHYJI�TS�YMJ�8YFYJRJSYX�
of Net Position. The Statements of Changes in Revenues, Expenses and Net Position include all transactions, such as 
revenues and expenses, that increase or decrease net position.

9MNX�&(+7�NX�UWJXJSYJI�NS�YMWJJ�XJHYNTSX��NSYWTIZHYTW �SFSHNFQ�FSI�XYFYNXYNHFQ��9MJ�NSYWTIZHYTW^�XJHYNTS�NSHQZIJX�Fܪ�̂�
letter of transmittal submitted by the Authority’s Director of Finance, a listing of the Authority’s Board of Directors and 
TWLFSN_FYNTSFQ�HMFWY�FX�TK�/ZSJ�����������FSI�YMJ�,T[JWSRJSY�+NSFSHJ�4ܬHJWX�&XXTHNFYNTS�(JWYNܪHFYJ�TK�&HMNJ[JRJSY�
KTW�*]HJQQJSHJ�NS�+NSFSHNFQ�7JUTWYNSL�YMFY�\FX�F\FWIJI�YT�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�KTW�YMJ�UWJ[NTZXܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�

9MJܪ�SFSHNFQ�XJHYNTS�HTSXNXYX�TK�YMJ�.SIJUJSIJSY�&ZINYTWѣX�7JUTWY��2FSFLJRJSYѣX�)NXHZXXNTS�FSI�&SFQ^XNX��FSI�YMJ�
&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�GFXNHܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX�\MNHM�FWJ�INXHZXXJI�GJQT\��FSI�FWJ�UWJXJSYJI�HTRUFWFYN[JQ^�KTW�YMJܪ�XHFQ�̂ JFWX�
ended June 30, 2025 and 2024.

● Statements of Net Position

● Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

● Statements of Cash Flows

● Notes to Financial Statements

● Required Supplementary Information

9MJ�8YFYJRJSYX�TK�3JY�5TXNYNTS�WJUTWY�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�FXXJYX��IJKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX��QNFGNQNYNJX��FSI�IJKJWWJI�
NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX��UWT[NINSL�NSKTWRFYNTS�FGTZY�YMJ�SFYZWJ�FSI�FRTZSYX�TK�NS[JXYRJSYX�NS�WJXTZWHJX�(FXXJYX)�FSI�
obligations to creditors (liabilities). These statements may be used to evaluate the capital structure, liquidity, and 
J]NGNQNY^�TK�YMJ�&ZYMTWNYܫ�SFSHNFQܪ �̂�9MJ�8YFYJRJSYX�TK�7J[JSZJX��*]UJSXJX�FSI�(MFSLJX�NS�3JY�5TXNYNTS�WJܫJHY�WJ[JSZJ�
FSI�J]UJSXJ�FHYN[NY^�TK�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�KTW�YMJܪ�XHFQ�^JFWX�UWJXJSYJI��9MJXJ�XYFYJRJSYX�FQQT\�YMJ�ZXJW�YT�RJFXZWJ�
YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�UWTܪYFGNQNY^�FSI�HWJINY\TWYMNSJXX�G^�YMJܪ�SFSHNFQ�UJWKTWRFSHJ�TK�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�TUJWFYNTSX��FSI�YT�
determine whether the Authority has successfully recovered its operating costs through user fees and other charges. 
9MJ�8YFYJRJSYX�TK�(FXM�+QT\X�UWJXJSY�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�NSܫT\X�FSI�TZYܫT\X�TK�HFXM�IZWNSL�YMJܪ�SFSHNFQ�WJUTWYNSL�UJWNTIX�
G^�WJUTWYNSL�HFXM�WJHJNUYX��HFXM�UF^RJSYX��FSI�YMJ�SJY�HMFSLJX�NS�HFXM��(FXMܫ�T\X�FWJ�HFYJLTWN_JI�G^�TUJWFYNSL��
STS�HFUNYFQܪ�SFSHNSL��HFUNYFQ�FSI�WJQFYJIܪ�SFSHNSL��FSI�NS[JXYNSL�FHYN[NYNJX��9MJ�3TYJX�YT�+NSFSHNFQ�8YFYJRJSYX�FSI�
the Required Supplementary Information provide necessary disclosures essential to a full understanding of the data 
UWT[NIJI�NS�YMJ�FKTWJRJSYNTSJI�GFXNHܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX��

9MJ�XYFYNXYNHFQ�XJHYNTS�NSHQZIJX�XJQJHYJIܪ�SFSHNFQ��TUJWFYNTSFQ��FSI�IJRTLWFUMNH�NSKTWRFYNTS�UWJXJSYJI�TS�F�RZQYN�^JFW�
basis.
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Financial Analysis of the Authority
)ZWNSLܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�������YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�RFNSYFNSJI�NYX�XTZSIܪ�SFSHNFQ�HTSINYNTS��FX�IJRTSXYWFYJI�G^�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�
HTSYNSZJI�&&&�GTSI�WFYNSL�KWTR�8�5�FSI�&FF�WFYNSL�KWTR�2TTI^ѣX��9MJXJ�WFYNSLX�WJܫJHY�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�HTSYNSZJI�
growth in total net position and strong cash and investment portfolio, along with the strategic management of its debt 
GTWWT\NSLX��9MJXJ�FWJ�FQQ�TZYQNSJI�NS�YMJܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX�FSI�XHMJIZQJX�NSHQZIJI�NS�YMNX�WJUTWY��<MNQJ�J]JWHNXNSL�
UWZIJSYܪ�XHFQ�INXHNUQNSJ��YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�HTSYNSZJX�YT�JSXZWJ�NY� NX�FGQJ�YT�UWT[NIJ�XFKJ��WJQNFGQJ�FSI�JS[NWTSRJSYFQQ^�
compliant water and water reclamation services to its customers.

Net Position
9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�SJY�UTXNYNTS�NSHWJFXJI�G^�	�����RNQQNTS�IZWNSLܪ�XHFQ�̂ JFW�������\MNHM�WJUWJXJSYJI�F����
�NSHWJFXJ�KWTR�
YMJ�UWNTWܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�SJY�UTXNYNTS��&Y�/ZSJ�����������YTYFQ�SJY�UTXNYNTS�\FX�	����GNQQNTS�FX�HTRUFWJI�YT�	�����GNQQNTS�YMJ�
previous year.

9MJ�KTQQT\NSL�YFGQJ�WJܫJHYX�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�SJY�UTXNYNTS�FY�/ZSJ����������FSI������

Condensed Statements of Net Position

2025 2024
Increase 

(Decrease) % Change

Capital assets, net $ 1,262,231,035 $ 1,193,488,230 	 ���������� ���

Cash & Investments ����������� 328,156,412 112,819,428 34.4
Other current and non-current assets ���������� ���������� (410,100) (0.6)

Total assets ������������� 1,595,020,833 181,152,133 11.4

)JKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX 3,584,442 ��������� (2,183,112) (����)
Total assets and deferred 

outflows of resources 	 ������������� 	 ������������� 	 ����������� 11.2

Bonds and VRA loans payable $ 206,628,313 $ 84,192,964 $ 122,435,349 145.4
Lease liabilities 891,509 1,085,969 (194,460) (����)
SBITA liabilities 13,263 43,935 (������) (69.8)
Other liabilities 59,545,312 ���������� ���������� 30.4

Total liabilities ����������� ����������� 136,103,354 103.9

)JKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX ���������� ���������� (�����) (0.1)
Total liabilities and deferred 

inflows of resources ����������� ����������� 136,096,228 94.9

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 1,024,693,504 1,094,885,632 (����������) (6.4)
Restricted 109,116,036 ���������� 92,052,529 539.5
USWJXYWNHYJI ����������� ����������� 21,012,392 6.1

Total net position ������������� ������������� ���������� 2.9

Total liabilities, deferred
inflows of resources and
net position 	 ������������� 	 ������������� 	 ����������� ����
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&Y�/ZSJ�����������YTYFQ�SJY�UTXNYNTS�\FX�	�����GNQQNTS��\MNHM�NX�FS�NSHWJFXJ�TK�	�����RNQQNTS��TW����
�KWTR�YMJ�UWNTW�
year net position.

9MJ�KTQQT\NSL�YFGQJ�WJܫJHYX�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�SJY�UTXNYNTS�FY�/ZSJ����������FSI������

Condensed Statements of Net Position

2024 2023
Increase 

(Decrease) % Change

Capital assets, net $ 1,193,488,230 $ 1,133,266,359 	 ���������� ���

Cash & Investments 328,156,412 ����������� ������� 0.1
Other current and non-current assets ���������� ���������� (1,409,841) (1.9)

Total assets 1,595,020,833 1,536,040,918 ���������� 3.8

)JKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX ��������� ��������� ����� 0.1
Total assets and deferred 

TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX 	 ������������� 	 ������������� $ 58,983,629 3.8

Bonds and VRA loans payable $ 84,192,964 	 ���������� $ 5,536,508 ���
Lease liabilities 1,085,969 ������ ��������� �������
SBITA liabilities 43,935 ������ (29,095) (39.8)
Other liabilities ���������� ���������� (���������) (5.1)

Total liabilities ����������� 126,921,985 4,053,058 3.2

)JKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX ���������� 12,631,822 (�������) (1.0)
Total liabilities and deferred 

NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX ����������� ����������� 3,925,663 2.8

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 1,094,885,632 ������������� 54,092,231 5.2
Restricted ���������� ���������� 40,350 0.2
USWJXYWNHYJI ����������� 344,434,393 925,385 0.3

Total net position ������������� 1,402,250,951 ���������� 3.9

Total liabilities, deferred
NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�FSI
net position 	 ������������� 	 ������������� $ 58,983,629 ���


Net Investment in Capital Assets
Investments in capital assets are essential to the Authority’s infrastructure and the ability to provide quality services 
to its customers. Net investment in capital assets consists of property, plant, and equipment, leases, subscription-
based information technology agreements, construction in progress and advance capacity payments, and is after the 
deduction of any related long-term debt outstanding.

2025-2024 Comparison
3JY�NS[JXYRJSY�NS�HFUNYFQ�FXXJYX�\FX�	����GNQQNTS�FY�/ZSJ����������FSI�WJUWJXJSYJI�����
�TK�YTYFQ�SJY�UTXNYNTS��3JY�
NS[JXYRJSY� NS�HFUNYFQ�FXXJYX�IJHWJFXJI�G^����
�TW�	�����RNQQNTS�T[JW� YMJ�UWNTW�^JFW��9MJ�UWNRFW^�KFHYTWX�KTW� YMNX�
decrease were $36.0 million in additional draws on VRA loan and $111.3 million in 2025 bond issuances, partially offset 
by scheduled debt service payments made toward bond and VRA loans and partial redemption of the 2013 bonds. 
Capital asset additions increased by $69.2 million, primarily consisting of $100.5 million in construction in progress 
and $11.0 million in lines and improvements, partially offset by depreciation and disposals. The Authority continued 
to progress on substantial critical infrastructure upgrade projects, which increased capital asset additions.

2024-2023 Comparison
3JY�NS[JXYRJSY�NS�HFUNYFQ�FXXJYX�\FX�	����GNQQNTS�FY�/ZSJ����������FSI�WJUWJXJSYJI�����
�TK�YTYFQ�SJY�UTXNYNTS��3JY�
NS[JXYRJSY�NS�HFUNYFQ�FXXJYX�NSHWJFXJI�G^����
�TW�	�����RNQQNTS�T[JW�YMJ�UWNTW�̂ JFW��9MJ�UWNSHNUFQ�KFHYTWX�KTW�YMNX�NSHWJFXJ�
\JWJ�	������RNQQNTS�NS�HFUNYFQ�FXXJY�FIINYNTSX��UWNRFWNQ^�HTSXNXYNSL�TK�	�����RNQQNTS�NS�HTSXYWZHYNTS�NS�UWTLWJXX�FSI�
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$20.0 million in lines and improvements. Additionally, loan draws on the Authority’s VRA loan #5 totaling $15.0 million 
\JWJ�RFIJ�IZWNSLܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������9MJ�FIINYNTSX�\JWJ�UFWYNFQQ^�TKKXJY�G^�	����RNQQNTS�WJIZHYNTS�NS�GTSIX�FSI�;7&�
loans payable due to scheduled debt service payments.  The Authority continued to progress on substantial critical 
infrastructure upgrade projects, which increased capital asset additions.  

Restricted Net Position
Restricted net position is comprised of restricted cash and investments and related interest receivable, and is generally 
subject to external restrictions on how it may be utilized. Restricted cash and investments consist principally of money 
market funds held by a trustee for debt service and capital project accounts, in addition to customer deposits and 
other project-related escrow funds.

2025-2024 Comparison
7JXYWNHYJI�SJY�UTXNYNTS�\FX�	������RNQQNTS�FY�/ZSJ����������FSI�WJUWJXJSYJI����
�TK�YTYFQ�SJY�UTXNYNTS��9MJ�SJY�NSHWJFXJ�
of $92.1 million is primarily due to increases in restricted cash and cash equivalents and investments associated with 
the May 2025 bond issuance. 

2024-2023 Comparison
7JXYWNHYJI�SJY�UTXNYNTS�\FX�	�����RNQQNTS�FY�/ZSJ����������FSI�WJUWJXJSYJI����
�TK�YTYFQ�SJY�UTXNYNTS��7JXYWNHYJI�SJY�
UTXNYNTS�\FX�QFWLJQ^�ZSHMFSLJI�KWTR�YMJ�UWNTWܪ�XHFQ�^JFW��

Unrestricted Net Position
USWJXYWNHYJI�SJY�UTXNYNTS�NX�ZXJI�YT�KZSI�TSLTNSL�TUJWFYNSL�SJJIX�FSI�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�(.5��USWJXYWNHYJI�SJY�UTXNYNTS�
NX�HTRUWNXJI�TK�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�ZSWJXYWNHYJI�HFXM�FSI�NS[JXYRJSYX��WJHJN[FGQJX��JVZNY^�NSYJWJXY�NS�U48&��FSI�TYMJW�
STS�HFUNYFQ�FXXJYX��QJXX�TYMJW�QNFGNQNYNJX��USWJXYWNHYJI�HFXM�FSI�NS[JXYRJSYX�HTSXNXY�TK�LT[JWSRJSY�XJHZWNYNJX��GFSP�
IJUTXNYX�FSI�TYMJW�HFXM�JVZN[FQJSYX��9MJXJ�FXXJYX�RF^�GJ�ZXJI�YTܪ�SFSHJ�IF^�YT�IF^�TUJWFYNTSX�\NYMTZY�WJXYWNHYNTSX�
JXYFGQNXMJI�G^�IJGY�HT[JSFSYX�TW�TYMJW�WJVZNWJRJSYX��<MJS�RFPNSL�NS[JXYRJSYX��YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�HTSXNIJWX�HFXMܫ�T\�
requirements as well as the quality and return of potential investments, with the primary goal of preservation of invested 
HFUNYFQ��9MJ�JVZNY^�NSYJWJXY�NS�U48&�WJUWJXJSYX�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�XMFWJ�TK�U48&ѣX�SJY�UTXNYNTS�FSI�NX�STY�QNVZNI�

2025-2024 Comparison
USWJXYWNHYJI�SJY�UTXNYNTS�NSHWJFXJI�	�����RNQQNTS�IZWNSLܪ�XHFQ�̂ JFW������YT�	������RNQQNTS��F����
�NSHWJFXJ�KWTR�YMJ�UWNTW�
^JFW��USWJXYWNHYJI�SJY�UTXNYNTS�HTRUWNXJX�����
�TK�YTYFQ�SJY�UTXNYNTS��9MJ��NSHWJFXJ�NX�UWNRFWNQ^�IZJ�YT�F�	�����RNQQNTS�
NSHWJFXJ�NS�ZSWJXYWNHYJI�HFXM�FSI�NS[JXYRJSYX��F�	����RNQQNTS�WJIZHYNTS�NS�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�JVZNY^� NSYJWJXY� NS�U48&�
FSI�TYMJW�STWRFQܫ�ZHYZFYNTSX�NS�ZSWJXYWNHYJI�FXXJY�FSI�QNFGNQNY^�FHHTZSYX��&Y�/ZSJ�����������ZSWJXYWNHYJI�HFXM�FSI�
NS[JXYRJSYX�WJUWJXJSYJI�����
�TK�ZSWJXYWNHYJI�SJY�UTXNYNTS��

2024-2023 Comparison
USWJXYWNHYJI�SJY�UTXNYNTS� NSHWJFXJI�	����RNQQNTS�IZWNSLܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������YT�	������RNQQNTS��FS����
�NSHWJFXJ�KWTR�
YMJ�UWNTW�^JFW��USWJXYWNHYJI�SJY�UTXNYNTS�HTRUWNXJX�����
�TK�YTYFQ�SJY�UTXNYNTS��9MJ�NSHWJFXJ�\FX�UWNRFWNQ^�IZJ�YT�F�
	����RNQQNTS�WJIZHYNTS�NS�ZSWJXYWNHYJI�HFXM�FSI�NS[JXYRJSYX��F�	����RNQQNTS�WJIZHYNTS�NS�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�JVZNY^�NSYJWJXY�
NS�U48&�FSI�TYMJW�STWRFQܫ�ZHYZFYNTSX�NS�ZSWJXYWNHYJI�FXXJY�FSI�QNFGNQNY^�FHHTZSYX��&Y�/ZSJ�����������ZSWJXYWNHYJI�HFXM�
FSI�NS[JXYRJSYX�WJUWJXJSYJI�����
�TK�ZSWJXYWNHYJI�SJY�UTXNYNTS�

Changes in Revenues, Expenses and Net Position

<MNQJ�YMJ�8YFYJRJSYX�TK�3JY�5TXNYNTS�WJܫJHY�YMJ�HMFSLJ�NS�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣXܪ�SFSHNFQ�UTXNYNTS��YMJ�8YFYJRJSYX�TK�7J[JSZJX��
Expenses and Changes in Net Position that follow provide insight as to the nature and source of those changes. 
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9MJ�KTQQT\NSL�YFGQJ�XZRRFWN_JX�HMFSLJX�NS�WJ[JSZJX�FSI�J]UJSXJX�GJY\JJSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������FSI������

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

2025 2024
Increase 

(Decrease) % Change

Water and sewer user charges $ 148,282,036 	 ����������� 	 ���������� ���

Development charges 1,534,889 1,399,633 135,256 ���
Other ��������� ��������� (6,599) (0.6)

Total operating revenues 150,888,595 140,249,121 ���������� ���

Availability fees ���������� ���������� (���������) (���)
Investment income 16,449,429 ���������� (222,826) (1.3)
Grant revenues - 13,625 (13,625) (100.0)
*VZNY^�NSYJWJXY�NS�U48& (3,105,488) (���������) 659,339 ����
Other 1,126,558 1,238,932 (�������) (9.1)

Total non-operating revenues 63,263,096 ���������� (���������) (5.6)

Contributions from developers 
and others 11,041,550 22,918,615 (����������) (51.8)
Total revenues 225,193,241 230,201,125 (���������) (2.2)

Personnel services 48,628,881 ���������� ��������� 8.2
Purchased resources ���������� 39,092,198 ������� 2.3
Contractual services 15,058,588 13,152,419 1,906,169 14.5
Materials and supplies ��������� ��������� (413,186) (5.5)
Other ��������� ��������� (�������) (5.6)

Total operating expenses 119,115,453 113,554,819 5,560,634 4.9

Depreciation and amortization ���������� ���������� ������ 0.1
Interest expense 3,002,349 1,996,495 1,005,854 50.4
5F^RJSYX�KTW�U48&�IJGY�XJW[NHJ ���������� 11,839,011 ������� 4.8
Purchased capacity 668,004 668,003 1 0.0

Total expenses 182,320,448 ����������� ��������� 4.1

Change in net position ���������� ���������� (����������) (22.1)

Total net position, 
beginning of year ������������� 1,402,250,951 ���������� 3.9
Total net position, end of year 	 ������������� 	 ������������� 	 ���������� ���
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9MJ�KTQQT\NSL�YFGQJ�XZRRFWN_JX�HMFSLJX�NS�WJ[JSZJX�FSI�J]UJSXJX�GJY\JJSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������FSI������

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

2024 2023
Increase 

(Decrease) % Change

Water and sewer user charges 	 ����������� 	 ����������� 	 ���������� ���

Development charges 1,399,633 ��������� 141,923 11.3
Other ��������� ������� 236,196 28.0

Total operating revenues 140,249,121 129,682,255 10,566,866 8.1

Availability fees ���������� ���������� 25,641,601 94.2
Investment income ���������� ��������� 9,452,334 130.9
Grant revenue 13,625 164,421 (�������) (����)
*VZNY^�NSYJWJXY�NS�U48& (���������) (���������) 2,091,800 ����
Other 1,238,932 ��������� (160,085) (11.4)

Total non-operating revenues ���������� 30,158,535 ���������� 122.3

Contributions from developers 
and others 22,918,615 10,105,960 12,812,655 126.8
Total revenues 230,201,125 ����������� ���������� 35.5

Personnel services ���������� ���������� 3,212,106 ���
Purchased resources 39,092,198 ���������� ��������� 18.6
Contractual services 13,152,419 ���������� (�������) (���)
Materials and supplies ��������� ��������� ������� 3.4
Other ��������� ��������� ������� 5.6

Total operating expenses 113,554,819 ����������� ��������� 8.9

Depreciation and amortization ���������� ���������� ��������� 3.8
Interest expense 1,996,495 2,102,225 (�������) (5.0)
5F^RJSYX�KTW�U48&�IJGY�XJW[NHJ 11,839,011 ���������� ������� 1.6
Purchased capacity 668,003 668,003 - -

Total expenses ����������� ����������� ���������� 6.8

Change in net position ���������� ��������� ���������� 836.5

Total net position, 
beginning of year 1,402,250,951 ������������� ��������� 0.4
Total net position, end of year 	 ������������� $ 1,402,250,951 	 ���������� ���
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Operating Revenues
Operating revenues consist of water and sewer user charges, development charges and other revenues, which primarily 
consist of refuse collection fees, lab testing fees, and grinder pump maintenance fees. Operating revenues are, in part, 
GFXJI�TS�QTHFQ�JS[NWTSRJSYFQ�FSI�JHTSTRNH�KFHYTWX��)JRFSI�KTW�\FYJW�NX�FKKJHYJI�G^�HQNRFYTQTLNHFQ�NSܫZJSHJX�XZHM�FX�
temperature, precipitation amounts, and precipitation frequency.

The Authority’s Board of Directors adopts rates and fees to cover the cost of service provided. Water and sewer user 
HMFWLJX�HTSXNXY�TKܪ�]JI�FSI�[FWNFGQJ�HMFWLJX��;FWNFGQJ�HMFWLJX�FWJ�GFXJI�TS�YMJ�FRTZSY�TK�\FYJW�ZXJI��9MJ�FRTZSY�TK�
\FYJW�ZXJI�IZWNSL�YMJ�UJFP�XJFXTS�TK�2F^�YMWTZLM�4HYTGJW�KTW�TZYITTW�\FYJWNSL�FSI�HTRRJWHNFQ�HTTQNSL�NX�NSܫZJSHJI�G^�
the weather. Development charges are impacted by development in the County during the year. 

2025-2024 Comparison
4UJWFYNSL�WJ[JSZJX�NSHWJFXJI�	�����RNQQNTS��TW����
�T[JW�YMJ�UWNTWܪ�XHFQ�̂ JFW�YT�	������RNQQNTS��9MJ�NSHWJFXJ��NX�UWNRFWNQ^�IZJ�
to a $10.5 million increase in water and sewer user charges, which is a result of adopted rate increases in January 2025 and 
January 2024 and increased consumption due to account growth and warmer, drier summer weather, as compared to the 
UWNTW�̂ JFW���9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�HZXYTRJW�GFXJ�LWJ\�G^�����FHHTZSYX�YT���������TW����
�MNLMJW�YMFS�YMJ�JSI�TKܪ�XHFQ�̂ JFW�������

2024-2023 Comparison
4UJWFYNSL�WJ[JSZJX�NSHWJFXJI�	�����RNQQNTS��TW����
�T[JW�YMJ�UWNTWܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�YT�	������RNQQNTS��9MJ�NSHWJFXJ�NX�UWNRFWNQ^�
due to a $10.2 million increase in water and sewer user charges, which is a result of adopted rate increase in April 2023 
and January 2024, increased consumption due to account growth and warmer, drier summer weather as compared to the 
UWNTW�^JFW��9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�HZXYTRJW�GFXJ�LWJ\�G^�����FHHTZSYX�YT���������TW���
�MNLMJW�YMFS�YMJ�JSI�TKܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������

Non-Operating Revenues
Non-operating revenues consist of availability fees, investment income, grant revenues and other revenues, which consist 
of property rental income, proceeds from the sale of capital assets and other miscellaneous revenues. Availability fees 
HT[JW�YMJ�HTXY�TK�F�HZXYTRJWѣX�UWT�WFYF�XMFWJ�TK�HFUFHNY^�FSI�NSKWFXYWZHYZWJ��&[FNQFGNQNY^�KJJX�FWJ�HMFWLJI�NS�*7UX�FY�YMJ�
YNRJ�TK�HJWYNܪHFYNTS��\MNHM�FZYMTWN_JX�F�HZXYTRJW�YT�JXYFGQNXM�XJW[NHJ�FSI�UM^XNHFQQ^�HTSSJHY�YT�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�X^XYJR��

2025-2024 Comparison
3TS�TUJWFYNSL�WJ[JSZJX�IJHWJFXJI�G^�	����RNQQNTS�TW����
�NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������RTXYQ^�IZJ�YT�F�IJHWJFXJ�TK�	����RNQQNTS�
in availability fees driven by the timing of development, a $223,000 decrease in investment income offset by a $659,000 
NSHWJFXJ�NS�YMJ�JVZNY^�NSYJWJXY�NS�U48&��7J[JSZJ�KWTR�F[FNQFGNQNY^�KJJX�NX�INWJHYQ^�WJQFYJI�YT�JHTSTRNH�IJ[JQTURJSY�NS�YMJ�
(TZSY^�FSI�NSHWJFXJI�NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������FX�YMJ�SZRGJW�TK�*7UX�XTQI�IJHWJFXJI�G^�����YT��������\MNHM�NX�IWN[JS�G^�YMJ�
YNRNSL�TK�IJ[JQTURJSY��9MJ�JVZNY^�NSYJWJXY�NS�U48&�NX�F�KZSHYNTS�TK�U48&ѣX�FSSZFQ�UJWKTWRFSHJ�FSI�NX�F�KTWRZQF�GFXJI�
HFQHZQFYNTS�TK�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�UJWHJSYFLJ�TK�HFUFHNY^�WNLMYX�NS�YMJ�OTNSY�[JSYZWJ��RZQYNUQNJI�G^�YMJ�HMFSLJ�NS�U48&ѣX�SJY�
UTXNYNTS�KTW�YMJ�QFYJXY�FZINYJIܪ�XHFQ�^JFW��8JJ�3TYJ���YT�YMJܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX��*VZNY^�NS�UUUJW�4HHTVZFS�8JW[NHJ�
Authority, for additional detail.

2024-2023 Comparison
3TS�TUJWFYNSL�WJ[JSZJX�NSHWJFXJI�G^�	�����RNQQNTS�TW������
�NSܪ�XHFQ�̂ JFW������RTXYQ^�IZJ�YT�FS�NSHWJFXJ�TK�	�����RNQQNTS�
NS�F[FNQFGNQNY^�KJJX�IZJ�YT�NSHWJFXJI�HJWYNܪHFYNTSX��F����
�NSHWJFXJ�NS�F[FNQFGNQNY^�KJJX�NS�/FSZFW^�������F�	����RNQQNTS�
NSHWJFXJ�NS�NS[JXYRJSY�NSHTRJ�IZJ�YT�WNXNSL�NSYJWJXY�WFYJX��FSI�F�	����RNQQNTS�NSHWJFXJ�NS�YMJ�JVZNY^�NSYJWJXY�NS�U48&��
7J[JSZJ�KWTR�F[FNQFGNQNY^�KJJX�NX�INWJHYQ^�WJQFYJI�YT�JHTSTRNH�IJ[JQTURJSY�NS�YMJ�(TZSY �̂�\MNHM�NSHWJFXJI�NSܪ�XHFQ�
^JFW������FX�YMJ�SZRGJW�TK�*7UX�XTQI�NSHWJFXJI�G^�������YT��������\MNHM�NX�IWN[JS�G^�YMJ�YNRNSL�TK�IJ[JQTURJSY��9MJ�
JVZNY^�NSYJWJXY�NS�U48&�NX�F�KZSHYNTS�TK�U48&ѣX�FSSZFQ�UJWKTWRFSHJ�FSI�NX�F�KTWRZQF�GFXJI�HFQHZQFYNTS�TK�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�
UJWHJSYFLJ�TK�HFUFHNY^�WNLMYX�NS�YMJ�OTNSY�[JSYZWJ��RZQYNUQNJI�G^�YMJ�HMFSLJ�NS�U48&ѣX�SJY�UTXNYNTS�KTW�YMJ�QFYJXY�FZINYJI�
SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX��*VZNY^�NS�UUUJW�4HHTVZFS�8JW[NHJ�&ZYMTWNYܪ�XHFQ�^JFW��8JJ�3TYJ���YT�YMJܪ �̂�KTW�FIINYNTSFQ�IJYFNQ

Contributions from Developers and Others
Developer contributions may consist of cash, tangible property, including such items as water mains, sanitary 
XJ\JW�QNSJX��UZRUNSL�XYFYNTSXܪ��WJ�M^IWFSYX��RFSMTQJX�FSI�FXXTHNFYJI�NSKWFXYWZHYZWJ�WJHJN[JI�KWTR�IJ[JQTUJWX�FSI�
governmental entities. Fluctuations in the value of contributions from year to year are due to the number of development 
projects and the timing of when developers complete expansion projects and convey the related assets to the Authority. 
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2025-2024 Comparison
7J[JSZJ�KWTR�IJ[JQTUJW�HTSYWNGZYNTSX�IJHWJFXJI�G^�	�����RNQQNTS�TW�����
�HTRUFWJI�YTܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�������&XXJYX�
contributed to the Authority are variable from year to year and are impacted by factors including development activities 
NS�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�XJW[NHJ�FWJF�FSI�YMJ�QTHFQ�FSI�SFYNTSFQ�JHTSTR �̂�&XXJYX�IJJIJI�YT�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFWX������
and 2024 were approximately $11.0 million and $22.9 million, respectively.

2024-2023 Comparison
7J[JSZJ�KWTR�IJ[JQTUJW�HTSYWNGZYNTSX�NSHWJFXJI�G^�	�����RNQQNTS�TW������
�HTRUFWJI�YTܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�������&XXJYX�
contributed to the Authority are variable from year to year and are impacted by factors including development activities 
NS�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�XJW[NHJ�FWJF�FSI�YMJ�QTHFQ�FSI�SFYNTSFQ�JHTSTR �̂�&XXJYX�IJJIJI�YT�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFWX������
and 2023 were approximately $22.9 million and $10.1 million, respectively. 

Operating Expenses
Operating expenses consist of personnel services, purchased resources, contractual services, materials and supplies, 
utilities and other operating expenses, which consist of insurance, training, travel and rent expenses. 

2025-2024 Comparison
4UJWFYNSL�J]UJSXJX�NSHWJFXJI�G^�	����RNQQNTS��TW����
�KWTRܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�������9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^�HTSYNSZJX�YT�J]UJWNJSHJ�
NSHWJFXJI�HTXYX�IZJ�YT�NSܫFYNTS��9MJ�NSHWJFXJ�\FX�UWNRFWNQ^�IZJ�YT�NSHWJFXJX�NS�UJWXTSSJQ�XJW[NHJX�FSI�HTSYWFHYZFQ�
XJW[NHJX�J]UJSXJX��5JWXTSSJQ�XJW[NHJX�NSHWJFXJI�	����RNQQNTS��TW����
�KWTRܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������UWNRFWNQ^�IZJ�YT�RTIJXY�
HMFSLJX�NS�XYFܬSL�QJ[JQX��FSSZFQ�RJWNY�NSHWJFXJX��FSI�WNXNSL�MJFQYM�NSXZWFSHJ�HTXYX��TKKXJY�G^�QT\JW�WJYNWJRJSY�HTXYX��
\MNHM�FWJ�FHYZFWNFQQ^�IJYJWRNSJI��(TSYWFHYZFQ�XJW[NHJX�NSHWJFXJI�	����RNQQNTS��TW�����
�IZJ�YT�HTSYWFHYZFQ�XJW[NHJX�NS�
YMJ�FWJFX�TK�HTSXYWZHYNTS��JSLNSJJWNSL�NSKTWRFYNTS�YJHMSTQTL �̂��5ZWHMFXJI�WJXTZWHJX�NSHWJFXJI�	��������IZJ�YT�FS�
increase in wholesale water costs, higher demand, and higher treatment costs incurred by wholesale water providers 
that are charged to the Authority through increased wholesale rates. 

2024-2023 Comparison
4UJWFYNSL�J]UJSXJX�NSHWJFXJI�G^�	����RNQQNTS��TW����
�KWTRܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�������9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^�HTSYNSZJX�YT�J]UJWNJSHJ�
NSHWJFXJI�HTXYX�IZJ�YT�NSܫFYNTS��9MJ�NSHWJFXJ�\FX�UWNRFWNQ^�IZJ�YT�NSHWJFXJX�NS�UZWHMFXJI�WJXTZWHJX�FSI�UJWXTSSJQ�
services expenses. Purchased resources increased $6.1 million due to an increase in wholesale water costs associated 
with higher demand and higher treatment costs incurred by wholesale water providers that are charged to the Authority 
YMWTZLM�NSHWJFXJI�\MTQJXFQJ�WFYJX��5JWXTSSJQ�XJW[NHJX�NSHWJFXJI�	����RNQQNTS��TW����
�KWTRܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������UWNRFWNQ^�
IZJ�YT�HMFSLJX�NS�XYFܬSL�QJ[JQX�FSI�FSSZFQ�RJWNY�NSHWJFXJX�

Non-Operating Expenses
3TS�TUJWFYNSL�J]UJSXJX�HTSXNXY�TK�NSYJWJXY�J]UJSXJ��UF^RJSYX�KTW�U48&�IJGY�XJW[NHJ�FSI�UZWHMFXJI�HFUFHNY^�HTXYX��
.SYJWJXY�J]UJSXJ�WJܫJHYX�YMJ�NSYJWJXY�UFNI�TW�FHHWZJI�TS�TZYXYFSINSL�IJGY��UQZX�TW�RNSZX�YMJ�FRTWYN_FYNTS�TK�GTSI�
UWJRNZRX��INXHTZSYX��FSI�IJKJWWJI�FRTZSYX�TS�WJKZSINSL��5F^RJSYX�KTW�U48&�IJGY�XJW[NHJ�WJUWJXJSY�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�
share of the annual debt obligations of the joint venture, including both principal and interest. Purchased capacity is 
the Authority’s purchase of rights to transmission main capacity from wholesale providers. 

2025-2024 Comparison
3TS�TUJWFYNSL�J]UJSXJX�NSHWJFXJI�G^�	����RNQQNTS�TW����
�NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������FX�HTRUFWJI�YTܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�������9MJ�
NSHWJFXJ�\FX�IZJ�YT�NSHWJFXJX�NS�UF^RJSYX�KTW�U48&�IJGY�XJW[NHJ��GFXJI�TS�FRTWYN_FYNTS�XHMJIZQJX�FSI�MNLMJW�NSYJWJXY�
expense, primarily as a result of a new debt issuance.

2024-2023 Comparison
3TS�TUJWFYNSL� J]UJSXJX� NSHWJFXJI� G^� FUUWT]NRFYJQ^� 	������� TW� ���
� NS� �XHFQܪ ^JFW� ����� FX� HTRUFWJI� YT� �XHFQܪ
^JFW�������&S�NSHWJFXJ�NS�UF^RJSYX�KTW�U48&�IJGY�XJW[NHJ��GFXJI�TS�FRTWYN_FYNTS�XHMJIZQJX��\FX�TKKXJY�G^�QT\JW�
interest expense resulting from decreased principal balances.
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration
The Authority maintains investments in a broad range of capital assets, which include land, buildings, water and 
sanitary sewer lines, water storage facilities (tanks), water reclamation plants, pumping stations, various machinery 
and equipment, computers, intangible right-to-use assets, advance capacity payments and vehicles.

At June 30, 2025, capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, was $1.26 billion, an increase of 
	�����RNQQNTS�TW����
��T[JWܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������

The following table summarizes the Authority’s capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, and 
the changes, therein, for the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024.

Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization
2025 2024 Increase (Decrease) % Change

Lines and improvements 	 ����������� 	 ����������� 	 (���������) (���)

Equipment ���������� ���������� (6,689,340) (���)
Buildings ���������� ���������� (���������) (3.4)
Construction in progress 283,919,196 194,944,383 ���������� 45.6
Land ��������� ��������� - -
Vehicles ��������� ��������� 968,209 ����
Intangible right-to-use assets (leases) 844,942 ��������� (230,324) (21.4)
Intangible right-to-use assets (SBITAs) 180,058 612,014 (431,956) (����)
Advance capacity payments ����������� ����������� (6,568,528) (5.2)

Total capital assets $ 1,262,231,035 $ 1,193,488,230 	 ���������� ���


The following table summarizes the Authority’s capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, and 
the changes, therein, for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023.

Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization

2024 2023
Increase 

(Decrease) % Change
Lines and improvements 	 ����������� 	 ����������� $ 2,413,893 ���

Equipment ���������� 92,698,014 (5,016,301) (5.4)
Buildings ���������� ���������� (���������) (2.4)
Construction in progress 194,944,383 124,658,282 ���������� 56.4
Land ��������� ��������� - -
Vehicles ��������� 2,119,253 (211,366) (10.0)

Intangible right-to-use assets (leases) ��������� ������ 1,004,888 �������
Intangible right-to-use assets (SBITAs) 612,014 1,044,052 (432,038) (41.4)
Advance capacity payments ����������� 132,921,384 (���������) (4.3)

Total capital assets $ 1,193,488,230 $ 1,133,266,359 	 ���������� ���


&IINYNTSFQ�NSKTWRFYNTS�TS�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�HFUNYFQ�FXXJYX�HFS�GJ�KTZSI�NS�3TYJ��(L)��8ZRRFW^�TK�8NLSNܪHFSY�&HHTZSYNSL�
5TQNHNJX��FSI�3TYJ����5WTUJWY �̂�5QFSY�FSI�*VZNURJSY��YT�YMJ�FHHTRUFS^NSL�GFXNHܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX�
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Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization
Capital projects are planned and organized within the following functional project categories:

● Water Supply – Booster pumping stations and water source projects.

● Water Storage Tanks (WST)�ў�9FSP�UWTOJHYX�NSYJSIJI�YT�RFNSYFNS�XYFGQJ�\FYJW�X^XYJR�UWJXXZWJ��UWT[NIJܪ�WJܫ�T\�
or reserve storage, and provide water during peak demands that exceed supply, transmission capacity or pumping 
capacity. 

The Authority also proactively manages and funds efforts to repair, rehabilitate and upgrade its water storage tanks. 
These efforts are designed to preserve and extend the asset life of each water tank, and also to upgrade other 
components as required, including lighting, fencing, mixing devices, control valves, back-up generators, walkway 
safety and security features, and SCADA systems.

● Water Transmission – Water main projects (transmission and distribution mains).

● Sewage Pumping Stations (SPS) – Pump station projects pump sewage from a low point in one gravity sewer shed 
to another gravity sewer shed for conveyance to a water reclamation facility. These projects often involve installation 
TK�F�G^UFXX�HTSSJHYNTS�TS�YMJ�KTWHJ�RFNS��\MNHM�JSFGQJX�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�YT�HTSYNSZJ�MFSIQNSL�YMJ�\FXYJ\FYJWܫ�T\X�
while maintenance is performed on a pump station.

● Sewage Collection System – Sewer main projects convey sewage from commercial and residential customers to 
sewage pumping stations or water reclamation facilities. 

The Authority continues to proactively manage its wastewater collection system by funding a multi-year program to 
evaluate the condition of sewer mains and manholes, and by proactively performing rehabilitation and maintenance 
on those assets prior to their failure. In many instances, this approach extends asset life, reduces the frequency of 
failure events, and minimizes capital expenditures because cost-effective, trenchless rehabilitation methods can 
be used, as opposed to waiting for asset failure when costly, open-cut construction methods are required. These 
JKKTWYX�FQXT�WJIZHJ�NSܪQYWFYNTS�FSI�NSܫT\�TK�WFNS�\FYJW�KWTR�XJJUNSL�NSYT�YMJ�\FXYJ\FYJW�HTQQJHYNTS�X^XYJR��YMJWJG^�
eliminating unnecessary costs for treatment and additional purchases of wastewater treatment capacity.

● Water Reclamation Facilities�ў�(TSXYWZHYNTS�UWTOJHYX�FSI�KFHNQNY^�RTINܪHFYNTSX�FY�YMJ�-12�&<7+�

● Information Technology�ў�5WTOJHYX�YMFY�NS[TQ[Jܪ�SFSHNFQ��FHHTZSYNSL�FSI�TYMJW�XTKY\FWJ�ZULWFIJX��8(&)&�ZULWFIJX�
FSI�RTINܪHFYNTSX��LJTLWFUMNH�NSKTWRFYNTS�X^XYJR�(,.8)�NRUWT[JRJSYX�FSI�M^IWFZQNH�RTIJQNSL�XYZINJX�

● Regional Utility – Major expansion or upgrade projects to regional treatment facilities at which the Authority has 
purchased capacity rights.

● Miscellaneous – Projects not directly related to other categories.

9MJ�RFOTW�HFUNYFQ�UWTOJHYX�HTRUQJYJI�IZWNSLܪ�XHFQ�̂ JFWX������FSI������TW��ZSIJW�UQFSSNSL��IJXNLS�FSI�TW�HTSXYWZHYNTS�
in each of the functional project categories are detailed as follows:

● Water Supply

○ (TSXYWZHYNTS�HTSYNSZJI�TS�YMJ�7TZYJ���YWFSXRNXXNTS�RFNS�NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������FSI�HTRUQJYNTS�TK�UMFXJX�������
TK�YMJ�UWTOJHY�NX�J]UJHYJI�NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW��������

○ UULWFIJX�YT�YMJ�\JQQX�TS�'ZQQ�7ZS�2TZSYFNS�HTSYNSZJI�NSܪ�XHFQ�̂ JFW��������9MJ�RTINܪHFYNTSX�FSI�NRUWT[JRJSYX�
from this project will increase service reliability and will enhance system operations in the area. Construction 
NX�FSYNHNUFYJI�YT�GJLNS�NS�YMJ�XUWNSL�TKܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������

○ )JXNLS�'ZNQI� TK� YMJ� 2TSYHQFNW�+TZW� 8JFXTSX� <FYJW� 8^XYJR� .RUWT[JRJSYX� HTSYNSZJI� NS� �XHFQܪ ^JFW� ������
(TSXYWZHYNTS�TK�YMJ�IJXNLS�GZNQI�UWTOJHY�NX�FSYNHNUFYJI�YT�GJ�HTRUQJYJI�NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������

○ (TSXYWZHYNTS� TK� YMJ� USNY^� 7JJI� UZRUNSL� XYFYNTS� FSI� INXHMFWLJ� RFNS� HTSYNSZJI� NS� �XHFQܪ ^JFW� ����� FSI� NX�
FSYNHNUFYJI�YT�GJ�HTRUQJYJI�NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������

○ )JXNLS�KTW�FS�ZULWFIJ�TK�YMJ�-TFIQ^�GTTXYJW�UZRUNSL�XYFYNTS�GJLFS�NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW��������(TSXYWZHYNTS�FHYN[NY^�
NX�J]UJHYJI�YT�GJLNS�NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������

○ (TSXYWZHYNTS�TK�YMJ�SJ\�<JQQNSLYTS�7TFI�4UJWFYNTSX�(JSYJW�GJLFS�NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������FSI�\NQQ�GJ�HTRUQJYJI�
NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������
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○ (TSXYWZHYNTS�TK�<FYJW�2FNS�7JUQFHJRJSY�5WTLWFR����NS�JFXYJWS�5WNSHJ�<NQQNFR�(TZSY^�GJLFS�NSܪ�XHFQ�̂ JFW������
FSI�\NQQ�GJ�HTRUQJYJI�NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�������

● Water Storage

○ Residual Control System at Manassas Southside WST is under construction and will be completed in the fall 
TKܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������

○ Residual Control System at Braemar WST is currently in design and will move into construction in the spring of 
������XHFQ�^JFWܪ

● Sewage Pumping Stations 

○ (TSXYWZHYNTS�TK�YMJ�0TTSX��'JQRTSY�FSI�8UNSSFPJW�(TZWY�858X�HTSYNSZJI�YMWTZLMܪ�XHFQ�^JFW��������5WTOJHY�
HTRUQJYNTS�KTW�FQQ�NX�J]UJHYJI�NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������

○ (TSXYWZHYNTS�TK�YMJ�-JWNYFLJ�-ZSY�858�FSI�KTWHJ�RFNS�HTSYNSZJI�NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������FSI�NX�FSYNHNUFYJI�YT�GJ�
HTRUQJYJI�NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������

● Sewage Collection System

○ (TSXYWZHYNTS�KTW�YMJ�)ZRKWNJX�KTWHJ�RFNS�WJUQFHJRJSY�HTSYNSZJI�NSܪ�XHFQ�̂ JFW��������(TRUQJYNTS�NX�FSYNHNUFYJI�
NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������

○ )JXNLS�TK�YMJ�.����7JXY�&WJF�KTWHJ�RFNS�WJUQFHJRJSY�HTSYNSZJI�NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�������(TSXYWZHYNTS�\NQQ�GJLNS�NS�
������XHFQ�^JFWܪ

● Water Reclamation Facilities

○ )JXNLS�'ZNQI�JKKTWYX�KTW�YMJ�-1�2TTSJ^�+FHNQNY^�<NIJ�.RUWT[JRJSYX�UWTOJHY�HTRRJSHJI�NSܪ�XHFQ�̂ JFW������FSI�
FWJ�FSYNHNUFYJI�YT�HTSYNSZJ�GJ^TSIܪ�XHFQ�̂ JFW��������9MJ�XHTUJ�TK�YMNX�UWTOJHY�NSHQZIJX�NRUWT[JRJSYX�YT�XJ[JWFQ�
areas of the plant, as well as headworks capacity improvements and refurbishment of facility freight elevators 
in the Control and Process and Solids Handling buildings.

○ .RUWT[JRJSYX�YT�GNTWJFHYTWX�FSI�XJHTSIFW^�YWJFYRJSY�UWTHJXX�HTSYNSZJI�NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������

● Information Technology (IT)

○ Procured and began the design and implementation of a Financial Management and Customer Information 
X^XYJRX�(+28�FSI�(.8)�NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������\NYM�J]UJHYJI�HTRUQJYNTS�TK�YMJ�+28�NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������FSI�YMJ�
CIS in 2029.

○ Other IT projects include: 

■ )THZRJSY�RFSFLJRJSY�FSI�\TWPܫT\�FZYTRFYNTS�
■ Computerized maintenance management system
■ Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) equipment and software
■ Expanded Asset Management Analytics.

● Miscellaneous

○ Dumfries Road Maintenance Facility is currently in design and construction is anticipated to be completed in 
�����XHFQ�^JFWܪ��

In addition to the capital projects mentioned, residential and commercial development activity continues throughout 
the County. Cooperative efforts with developers have led to the design and developer-funded construction of major 
NSYJWHJUYTW�XJ\JWX��XJ\FLJ�UZRUNSL�XYFYNTSX��\FYJW�YWFSXRNXXNTS�QNSJX�FSI�FXXTHNFYJI�NSKWFXYWZHYZWJ��.Sܪ�XHFQ�̂ JFWX������
and 2024, developers installed and conveyed to the Authority for ownership and operation approximately 9 miles 
and 28 miles, respectively, of additional water mains, sanitary sewers, and related infrastructure representing 
approximately $11.0 million and $22.9 million, respectively, in total value.

.Sܪ�XHFQ�̂ JFW�����������IJ[JQTURJSY�UQFSX�WJUWJXJSYNSL�����WJXNIJSYNFQ�ZSNYX�FSI�����RNQQNTS�XVZFWJ�KJJY�TK�HTRRJWHNFQ�
FSI�NSIZXYWNFQ�IJ[JQTURJSY�\JWJ�WJ[NJ\JI��FSI�SJFWQ^����RNQJX�TK�\FYJW�FSI�XJ\JW�RFNSX�\JWJ�NSXUJHYJI��.Sܪ�XHFQ�
^JFW� ������ ���� IJ[JQTURJSY� UQFSX� WJUWJXJSYNSL� ���� WJXNIJSYNFQ� ZSNYX� FSI� ���� RNQQNTS� XVZFWJ� KJJY� TK� HTRRJWHNFQ�
IJ[JQTURJSY�\JWJ�WJ[NJ\JI��FSI�T[JW����RNQJX�TK�\FYJW�FSI�XJ\JW�RFNSX�\JWJ�NSXUJHYJI��
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Long-Term Debt
At June 30, 2025, the Authority’s outstanding long-term debt, net of deferred amounts, was $206.6 million, compared 
YT�	�����RNQQNTS�FY�YMJ�JSI�TKܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������

Outstanding Long-Term Debt

2025 2024
Increase 

(Decrease) % Change
VRA loans payable 	 ���������� $ 44,544,115 $ 30,218,963 ����

Revenue bonds 131,865,235 39,648,850 92,216,385 232.6

Total long-term debt $ 206,628,313 $ 84,192,965 $ 122,435,348 �����


At June 30, 2024, the Authority’s outstanding long-term debt, net of deferred amounts, was $84.2 million, compared 
YT�	�����RNQQNTS�FY�YMJ�JSI�TKܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������

Outstanding Long-Term Debt

2024 2023
Increase 

(Decrease) % Change
VRA loans payable $ 44,544,115 $ 35,229,809 $ 9,314,306 ����

Revenue bonds 39,648,850 ���������� (���������) (���)

Total long-term debt $ 84,192,965 	 ���������� $ 5,536,509 ���


VRA Loans
9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^�MFX�TZYXYFSINSLܪ�SFSHNSL�FLWJJRJSYX�\NYM�;7&�FY�/ZSJ�����������\NYM�YMJ�UWTHJJIX�TK�JFHM�GJNSL�ZXJI�
YTܪ�SFSHJ�ZULWFIJX�FY�YMJ�-12�&<7+�NS�UWNTW�FSI�KZYZWJ�^JFWX��

2025-2024 Comparison
&Y�/ZSJ�����������FUUWT]NRFYJQ^�	�����RNQQNTS�TK�QTSL�YJWR�IJGY�\FX�TZYXYFSINSL�\NYM�YMJ�;7&��9MJ�SJY�NSHWJFXJ�NS�;7&�
QTFSX�TK�FUUWT]NRFYJQ^�	�����RNQQNTS�\FX�IZJ�YT�IWF\X�IZWNSL�YMJܪ�XHFQ�^JFW��TKKXJY�G^�XHMJIZQJI�UWNSHNUFQ�UF^RJSYX�

2024-2023 Comparison
At June 30, 2024, approximately $44.5 million of long-term debt was outstanding with the VRA. The net increase in 
;7&�QTFSX�TK�FUUWT]NRFYJQ^�	����RNQQNTS�\FX�IZJ�YT�IWF\X�TS�;7&�QTFS����IZWNSL�YMJܪ�XHFQ�^JFW��

Revenue Bond
Revenue bonds are issued to fund capital projects or defease or refund older, higher interest debt in order to reduce 
the cost of borrowing. 

2025-2024 Comparison
At June 30, 2025, the Authority had approximately $131.9 million of outstanding revenue bonds, which were issued 
NS������FSI�������9MJ������WJ[JSZJ�GTSIX�NSHQZIJI�	������RNQQNTS�NS�GTSIX�FSI�F�	����UWJRNZR��&�UTWYNTS�TK�YMJ�
UWTHJJIX�\JWJ�ZXJI�YT�WJIJJR�	�����RNQQNTS�TK�YMJ������GTSIX��9MJ�	�����RNQQNTS�NSHWJFXJ�IZWNSLܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������
resulted from the bond issuance, offset by regularly scheduled debt service payments, partial redemption of the 2013 
bonds, and the amortization of related premiums.

2024-2023 Comparison
At June 30, 2024, the Authority had approximately $39.6 million of outstanding revenue bonds, which were issued 
in 2013 and 2015. The 2015 bonds refunded the higher interest 2005 bonds effective July 1, 2015. The $3.8 million 
IJHWJFXJ�IZWNSLܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������WJXZQYJI�KWTR�WJLZQFWQ^�XHMJIZQJI�IJGY�XJW[NHJ�UF^RJSYX�FSI�YMJ�FRTWYN_FYNTS�
TK�WJQFYJI�UWJRNZRX��.S�/ZSJ�������YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�RFIJ�FS�FI[FSHJ�UF^RJSY�KWTR�ZSWJXYWNHYJI�KZSIX�YT\FWIܪ�XHFQ�
year 2025 debt service in the amount of $6.3 million. 
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Compliance
9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^�\FX�NS�HTRUQNFSHJ�\NYM�FQQ�GTSI�FSI�QTFS�HT[JSFSYX�IZWNSLܪ�XHFQ�̂ JFWX������FSI�������)JYFNQJI�NSKTWRFYNTS�
WJLFWINSL�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�QTSL�YJWR�IJGY�TZYXYFSINSL�NX�UWJXJSYJI�NS�3TYJX������������FSI���YT�YMJ�FHHTRUFS^NSL�GFXNH�
��SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX��7J[JSZJ�GTSI�HT[JWFLJ�HFQHZQFYNTSX�FWJ�INXHQTXJI�NS�9FGQJXܪ�FSI���NS�YMJ�8YFYNXYNHFQ�8JHYNTS�TK�
YMJ�FHHTRUFS^NSL�GFXNHܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX�

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates
The Authority protects public health and the environment by reliably providing clean, safe and dependable water and 
wastewater reclamation services to our community. The operating and capital budgets are prepared in alignment with 
YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�RNXXNTS�FSI�YMJ�'TFWI�TK�)NWJHYTWѣX�[NXNTS�9MJܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������GZILJY�NSHQZIJX�WJXTZWHJX�YT�

● Protect public health and safety

● 2FPJ�XNLSNܪHFSY�NS[JXYRJSYX�NS�SJJIJI�NSKWFXYWZHYZWJ�FSI�YJHMSTQTL^�JSMFSHJRJSYX

● &YYWFHY�FSI�WJYFNS�XYFKK�HTRRNYYJI�YT�RFPNSL�YMJ�GZXNSJXX�RTWJ�JܬHNJSY�YMWTZLM�YMJ�UZWXZNY�TK�UJWKTWRFSHJ�
excellence

-NLMQNLMYX�TK�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣXܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������GZILJY�NSHQZIJ�

● 9TYFQ�WJ[JSZJ�NX�UWTOJHYJI�YT�NSHWJFXJ�G^�����
�KWTR�	������RNQQNTS�YT�	������RNQQNTS��7J[JSZJ�KWTR�UXJW�(MFWLJX���
+JJX�NX�ZU�	�����RNQQNTS�TW����
�GFXJI�TS�HTSXZRUYNTS�YWJSIX�FSI�FITUYJI�WFYJ�NSHWJFXJX��7J[JSZJ�KWTR�)J[JQTUJW�
(MFWLJX�NX�ZU�	�����RNQQNTS�TW�����
��,WT\YM�NX�UWTOJHYJI�FY�������*VZN[FQJSY�7JXNIJSYNFQ�USNYX�(*7UX)�IZJ�YT�MNLMJW�
UWTOJHYJI�NSIZXYWNFQ�HQFXX�HJWYNܪHFYNTSX�

● 9TYFQ�J]UJSXJX�FWJ�UWTOJHYJI�YT�GJ�	������RNQQNTS�\MNHM�WJUWJXJSYX�F�	����RNQQNTS�TW����
�NSHWJFXJ�KWTR�YMJ�UWNTW�
budget. Increases are primarily due to higher costs in wholesale water and wastewater treatment, technology 
transformation, personnel, and chemicals.

● 9MJ�(FUNYFQ�.RUWT[JRJSY�5WTLWFR�((.5)�NX�GZILJYJI�FY�	������RNQQNTS�KTW�+>����\MNHM�HTSXNXYX�TK�	������RNQQNTS�
in debt-funded projects and $52.2 million in cash-funded projects. 

● 4[JWFQQ��XTZWHJX�TK�KZSIX�FWJ�JXYNRFYJI�YT�J]HJJI�ZXJX�TK�KZSIX�NS�+>����UWTIZHNSL�F�RTIJXY�UTXNYN[J�HFXMܫ�T\�
of $4.1 million.  

Contacting the Authority’s Financial Management
9MJ�&(+7�NX�IJXNLSJI�YT�UWT[NIJ�YMJ�WJFIJW�\NYM�F�LJSJWFQ�T[JW[NJ\�TK�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣXܪ�SFSHNFQ�UTXNYNTS�FSI�IJRTSXYWFYJ�
the Authority’s accountability for revenues received and expenditures made. Questions concerning information provided 
NS�YMNX�WJUTWY�TW�WJVZJXYX�KTW�FIINYNTSFQܪ�SFSHNFQ�NSKTWRFYNTS�XMTZQI�GJ�INWJHYJI�YT�

Brian Sipes, CPA      
Director of Finance
Prince William Water   
P.O. Box 2266       
Woodbridge, VA 22195-2266     
9JQJUMTSJ������������� � � � �
E-mail requests may be sent to: ܪSFSHJ%U\\FYJW�TWL
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PRINCE WILLIAM WATER
Statements of Net Position
June 30, 2025 and 2024 STATEMENT 1 - PAGE 1 OF 3

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 2025 2024

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (notes 1c and 2)

USWJXYWNHYJI $ 28,686,326 	 ����������
Restricted ����������� 15,462,098

Investments (notes 1d and 2)
USWJXYWNHYJI ����������� �����������

Receivables
UXJW�FSI�IJ[JQTURJSY�HMFWLJX�

(net of allowance for uncollectibles of $200,000) ��������� ���������
USGNQQJI�\FYJW�FSI�XJ\JW�XJW[NHJ�(STYJ��P) ��������� ���������
Interest

USWJXYWNHYJI ��������� 2,302,986
Restricted ����� 28,242

Lease Receivables (notes 1w and 4) 535,835 551,565
Other receivables ������� �������

Materials and supplies inventory (note 1e) ���������� ����������
Prepaid expenses (note 1f) ��������� ���������

Total current assets 333,606,801 �����������

Non-current assets:
Investments  (notes 1d and 2)

USWJXYWNHYJI 142,243,861 �����������
Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated 

depreciation and amortization (notes 1g and 3) 1,262,231,035 1,193,488,230
Lease receivables (notes 1w and 4) 6,264,404 6,800,239
Net pension asset (notes 9 and 10) 3,634,683 1,345,392
-.(�TYMJW�UTXYJRUQT^RJSY�GJSJܪYX�FXXJY�(STYJX���FSI���) ������� �������
*VZNY^�NS�UUUJW�4HHTVZFS�8JW[NHJ�&ZYMTWNY^�(STYJX��M�FSI��) ���������� ����������

Total non-current assets 1,442,566,165 �������������

Total assets ������������� 1,595,020,833

Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred charges on refunding (note 6) ������ ���������
)JKJWWJI�UJSXNTS�TZYܫT\X�(STYJX��S�FSI���) 2,380,620 ���������
)JKJWWJI�45*'�TZYܫT\X�(STYJ���) ������� 995,194
)JKJWWJI�,1.�45*'�TZYܫT\X�(STYJX��T�FSI���) 429,641 426,559
)JKJWWJI�-.(�45*'�TZYܫT\X�(STYJX��U�FSI���) 6,901 ������

9TYFQ�IJKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX 3,584,442 ���������

9TYFQ�FXXJYX�FSI�IJKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX 	 ������������� 	 �������������

8JJ�FHHTRUFS^NSL�STYJX�YTܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX�
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Statements of Net Position (Continued)
June 30, 2025 and 2024 STATEMENT 1 - PAGE 2 OF 3

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources 2025 2024
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 31,851,416 	 ����������
;NWLNSNF�7JXTZWHJX�&ZYMTWNY^�(;7&)�QTFSX�UF^FGQJ�(STYJX���FSI��) 5,111,804 5,811,852
Customer deposits ��������� 3,533,125
Leases (notes 1w and 4) 214,205 194,460
Subscription-Based Information Technology Agreements (note 14) 13,263 ������
Bonds payable (notes 6 and 8) 1,340,000 ���������
Retainage payable 6,012,030 4,383,606
Accrued interest payable

Bonds payable (note 6) ������� �������
;7&�QTFSX�UF^FGQJ�(STYJ��) ������� �������

Compensated absences (notes 1i and 9) ������� 848,485
4YMJW�UTXY�JRUQT^RJSY�GJSJܪYX�QNFGNQNY^�(STYJX���FSI���) 888,941 �������
USJFWSJI�WJ[JSZJ 24,469 23,663

Total current liabilities 50,434,836 ����������

Long-term liabilities:
VRA loans payable (net of current portion of $5,111,804 and $5,811,852 

FY�/ZSJ����������FSI�������WJXUJHYN[JQ^)�(STYJX���FSI��) ���������� ����������
'TSIX�UF^FGQJ�(SJY�TK�HZWWJSY�UTWYNTS�TK�	����������FSI�	����������

at June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively) (notes 6 and 8) 130,525,235 35,943,849
Compensated absences (notes 1i and 9) ��������� ���������
Leases (notes 1w, 9 and 10) ������� 891,509
SBITAs (note 14) - 13,263
4YMJW�UTXYJRUQT^RJSY�GJSJܪYX�QNFGNQNY^�(STYJX���FSI���) 9,063,810 ����������
,1.�TYMJW�UTXYJRUQT^RJSY�GJSJܪYX�QNFGNQNY^�(STYJX���FSI���) 1,389,881 1,544,956

Total long-term liabilities 216,643,561 92,203,052
Total liabilities ����������� �����������

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred lease rental income (notes 1w and 4) ��������� ���������
)JKJWWJI�UJSXNTS�UQFS�NSܫT\X�(STYJX��S�FSI���) 2,018,054 1,336,501
)JKJWWJI��45*'�NSܫT\X�(STYJ���) 3,958,009 3,901,000
)JKJWWJI��,1.�45*'�NSܫT\X�(STYJX��T�FSI���) ������� 268,424
)JKJWWJI��-.(�45*'�NSܫT\X�(STYJX��U�FSI���) 216,983 �������

9TYFQ�IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX ���������� ����������
9TYFQ�QNFGNQNYNJX�FSI�IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX ����������� �����������

8JJ�FHHTRUFS^NSL�STYJX�YTܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX�
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Statements of Net Position (Continued)
June 30, 2025 and 2024 STATEMENT 1 - PAGE 3 OF 3

Net Position 2025 2024
Net position:

Net investment in capital assets $ 1,024,693,504 $ 1,094,885,632
Restricted for:

Debt service 102,422,593 12,842,286
Other purposes

Customer deposits ��������� ���������
Pension 3,634,683 1,345,392
-.(�TYMJW�UTXY�JRUQT^RJSY�GJSJܪYX ������� �������
Other nonmajor purposes 36,104 30,348

USWJXYWNHYJI ����������� �����������
Total net position ������������� �������������
9TYFQ�QNFGNQNYNJX��IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�FSI�SJY�UTXNYNTS 	 ������������� 	 �������������
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PRINCE WILLIAM WATER
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

2025 2024

Operating revenues:
Water and sewer user charges $ 148,282,036 	 �����������
Development charges 1,534,889 1,399,633
Other ��������� ���������

Total operating revenues 150,888,595 140,249,121

Operating expenses:
Personnel services 48,628,881 ����������
Purchased resources (notes 1m and 5) ���������� 39,092,198
Contractual services 15,058,588 13,152,419
Materials and supplies ��������� ���������
UYNQNYNJX 5,989,355 6,386,191
Other ��������� ���������

Total operating expenses 119,115,453 113,554,819

Operating income before depreciation and amortization ���������� 26,694,302

Depreciation and amortization (notes 1g and 3) ���������� ����������

Operating loss (15,351,863) (20,390,529)

Non-operating income (expense): STATEMENT 2 PAGE 1 OF 1

Availability fees (note 1l) ���������� ����������
Investment income 16,449,429 ����������
Grant revenues - 13,625
5F^RJSYX�KTW�U48&�IJGY�XJW[NHJ�(STYJ��) (����������) (11,839,011)
*VZNY^�NSYJWJXY�NS�U48&�(STYJ��) (3,105,488) (���������)
Interest expense (3,002,349) (1,996,495)
Purchased capacity (note 12) (668,004) (668,003)
Other 1,126,558 1,238,932

Total non-operating income, net ���������� 52,529,880

Gain (Loss) before contributions from developers and others 31,831,243 32,139,351
Contributions from developers and others (note 13) 11,041,550 22,918,615

Change in net position ���������� ����������
Net position, beginning of year ������������� 1,402,250,951

Net position, end of year 	 ������������� 	 �������������

8JJ�FHHTRUFS^NSL�STYJX�YTܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX�
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PRINCE WILLIAM WATER
Statements of Cash Flows STATEMENT 3 - PAGE 1 OF 2

Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024
2025 2024

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers 	 ����������� 	 �����������
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (����������) (����������)
Cash payments to employees for services (����������) (44,269,632)
Miscellaneous income from other sources 63,464 �������
Cash received from operating leases ������� �������
Cash from other operating revenues 1,444,342 698,649

Net cash provided by operating activities 29,613,281 18,926,919

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
.SYJWJXY�UFNI�KTW�U48&�IJGY�XJW[NHJ (4,183,200) (4,040,215)
5WNSHNUFQ�UFNI�KTW�U48&�IJGY�XJW[NHJ (���������) (���������)
Grants received - 13,625

3JY�HFXM�ZXJI�NS�STS�HFUNYFQܪ�SFSHNSL�FHYN[NYNJX (����������) (11,825,386)

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (89,032,993) (����������)
Receipts from sale of property and equipment 55,586 �������
Principal paid on lease & SBITA liabilities (662,280) (�������)
Interest on lease & SBITA liabilities (������) (������)
Interest paid on bonds payable (1,524,553) (���������)
Principal paid on bonds payable (26,280,000) (���������)
Proceeds from issuance of bonds, including premium 118,941,636 -
Debt Issuance cost (545,990) -
Interest paid on VRA loans (653,830) (653,815)
Principal paid  on VRA loans (5,811,852) (���������)
VRA Loan Draw 36,030,815 ����������
Receipt of developer charges ���������� ����������
Payments for future capacity (668,004) (668,003)

3JY�HFXM�UWT[NIJI�G^�(ZXJI�NS)�HFUNYFQ�FSI�WJQFYJIܪ�SFSHNSL�FHYN[NYNJX ���������� (22,451,894)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investment securities (181,261,419) (196,259,335)
Interest received on cash and cash equivalents 1,603,500 ���������
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 154,223,000 194,565,000
Interest received from investment securities 10,403,803 ���������

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (15,031,116) ���������

Net change in cash and cash equivalents ���������� (���������)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 53,098,190 ����������

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 133,861,148 $ 53,098,190

8JJ�FHHTRUFS^NSL�STYJX�YTܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX�
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Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)
Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

2025 2024

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided
by operating activities:

Operating loss $ (15,351,863) $ (20,390,529)

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization expense ���������� ����������
Other non-cash operating expenses 1,128,291 �������
Pension expense ������� �������
4YMJW�UTXYJRUQT^RJSY�GJSJܪYX�J]UJSXJ ������� 659,918
Miscellaneous income from other sources 940,865 �������
Change in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) in water and sewer receivable (306,125) (629,421)
Decrease (Increase) in unbilled water and sewer receivable ������� (1,211,028)
(Increase) decrease in other receivables ������� (�������)
(Increase) in materials and supplies inventory (914,283) (���������)
(Increase) in prepaid expenses 29,498 (�������)
(Decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses (���������) (5,014,185)
(Increase) in pension contributions (1,393,645) (�������)
(.SHWJFXJ)�NS�TYMJW�UTXY�JRUQT^RJSY�GJSJܪYX�HTSYWNGZYNTSX (981,541) (1,265,602)
Increase in compensated absences 314,816 498,913
Increase in customer deposits 128,912 40,410

Total adjustments 44,965,144 ����������

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 29,613,281 $ 18,926,919

Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing, capital and
financing activities:

Capital contributions
Estimated acquisition cost of plant and equipment received $ 11,041,550 $ 22,918,615

Change in fair value of investments
Decrease in fair value of investments $ 1,509,259 $ 5,666,545

*VZNY^�NSYJWJXY�NS�JFWSNSLX�TK�U48& $ (3,105,488) 	 (���������)

Capital asset additions purchased on account $ 11,994,626 $ 12,226,559
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
The Prince William County Service Authority (the Authority) was created by a resolution of the Board of County 
Supervisors (BOCS) of Prince William County, Virginia (the County) on January 11, 1983. The Authority is chartered 
by the State Corporation Commission and is an independent public body responsible for providing a comprehensive 
county-wide water and sewer system, completely within the geographical boundaries of the County. The management 
of the Authority is vested in a Board of eight members appointed by the County’s BOCS. The Authority also maintains 
FS�NSYJWJXY� NS�YMJ�UUUJW�4HHTVZFS�8JW[NHJ�&ZYMTWNY^�(U48&)��F�WJLNTSFQ� OTNSY�[JSYZWJ��\MNHM�NX� NSHQZIJI�NS�YMJ�
&ZYMTWNY^ѣXܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX�ZSIJW�YMJ�JVZNY^�RJYMTI�TK�FHHTZSYNSL��FX�KZWYMJW�INXHZXXJI�NS�3TYJ���

Effective July 1, 2024, the Authority is doing business as Prince William Water. Our updated name and logo will help 
to clarify our mission as a water utility.

9MJ�KTQQT\NSL�NX�F�XZRRFW^�TK�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�XNLSNܪHFSY�FHHTZSYNSL�UTQNHNJX�

(a) Basis of Presentation and Accounting 
9MJ�FHHTZSYNSL�UTQNHNJX�TK�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�HTSKTWR�YT�FHHTZSYNSL�UWNSHNUQJX�LJSJWFQQ^�FHHJUYJI�NS�YMJ�USNYJI�8YFYJX�TK�
America as applicable to enterprise funds of governmental units. An enterprise fund is a proprietary type fund used 
YT�FHHTZSY�KTW�TUJWFYNTSX�YMFY�FWJܪ�SFSHJI�FSI�TUJWFYJI�NS�F�RFSSJW�XNRNQFW�YT�UWN[FYJ�GZXNSJXX�JSYJWUWNXJX��9MJ�
&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�NSYJSY�NX�YMFY�YMJ�HTXYX�TK�UWT[NINSL�LTTIX�TW�XJW[NHJX�YT�HZXYTRJWX�TS�F�HTSYNSZNSL�GFXNX�GJܪ�SFSHJI�
or recovered primarily through user charges. Periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/
or changes in net position is appropriate for capital maintenance, management control and accountability.

The Authority has elected to apply all applicable Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements 
when they become effective, as the GASB is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental 
FHHTZSYNSL�FSIܪ�SFSHNFQ�WJUTWYNSL�UWNSHNUQJX�

9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^�KTQQT\X�YMJ�FHHWZFQ�GFXNX�TK�FHHTZSYNSL��USIJW�YMNX�GFXNX�TK�FHHTZSYNSL��WJ[JSZJ�NX�WJHTLSN_JI�\MJS�
earned and expenses are recorded when incurred. Operating revenues and expenses consist of those revenues and 
expenses that result from the ongoing principal operations of the Authority. Operating revenues consist primarily 
of charges for water consumption and wastewater treatment. Non-operating revenues and expenses consist of 
YMTXJ�WJ[JSZJX�FSI�J]UJSXJX�YMFY�FWJ�WJQFYJI�YTܪ�SFSHNSL�FSI�NS[JXYNSL�Y^UJ�FHYN[NYNJX��TW�WJXZQY�KWTR�STS�J]HMFSLJ�
transactions and ancillary services.

When an expense is incurred for purposes in which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, it is 
YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�UTQNH^�YTܪ�WXY�FUUQ^�WJXYWNHYJI�WJXTZWHJX�

(b) Reporting Entity
To determine the appropriate reporting entity for the Authority, its relationship with the County was considered. 
&QYMTZLM�YMJ�RJRGJWX�TK�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�'TFWI�TK�)NWJHYTWX�FWJ�FUUTNSYJI�G^�YMJ�'4(8��YMJ�(TZSY^�NX�STYܪ�SFSHNFQQ^�
FHHTZSYFGQJ�KTW�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY �̂�.S�FIINYNTS��YMJWJ�NX�ST�UTYJSYNFQ�KTW�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�YT�UWT[NIJ�XUJHNܪHܪ�SFSHNFQ�GJSJܪYX�
YT��TW�NRUTXJ�XUJHNܪHܪ�SFSHNFQ�GZWIJSX�TS��YMJ�(TZSY �̂�FSI�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�NX�STYܪ�XHFQQ^�IJUJSIJSY�TS�YMJ�(TZSY �̂�
&HHTWINSLQ �̂�GFXJI�TS�YMJXJ�HWNYJWNF��YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�NX�STY�NSHQZIJI�FX�F�HTRUTSJSY�ZSNY�NS�YMJ�(TZSY^ѣXܪ�SFSHNFQ�
statements.

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Authority considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less from date of purchase 
to be cash equivalents.

(d) Investments 
&QQ�NS[JXYRJSYX�FWJ�XYFYJI�FY�KFNW�[FQZJ��+TZW�JXYNRFYJX�TK�KFNW�[FQZJ�FWJ�TGYFNSJI�KWTR�NSIJUJSIJSYܪ�SFSHNFQ�XTZWHJX��
with the median value chosen as the stated fair value. Interest income from investments is recorded in the year 
earned.
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(e) Materials and Supplies Inventory
Materials and supplies inventory, consisting of items held for consumption, are stated at weighted average cost 
ZXNSL�YMJ�RT[NSL�F[JWFLJ�RJYMTI��.S�FIINYNTS��YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�UJWKTWRX�F�RFSZFQ�HTZSY�FY�YMJ�JSI�TK�YMJܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�
TK�KZJQ��HMJRNHFQX�FSI�HJWYFNSܪ�JQI�XZUUQNJX�YMFY�FWJ�STY�^JY�ZXJI�NS�TUJWFYNTSX��FSI�[FQZJX�YMJR�FY�HTXY��

(f) Prepaid Expenses
(JWYFNS�UF^RJSYX�YT�[JSITWX�WJܫJHY�HTXYX�FUUQNHFGQJ�YT�KZYZWJ�FHHTZSYNSL�UJWNTIX��9MJXJ�HTXYX�FWJ�WJHTWIJI�FX�
prepaid expenses in the accompanying Statements of Net Position and are expensed in the period they are used. 

(g)  Property, Plant and Equipment
The Authority capitalizes all property, plant and equipment with a cost greater than $5,000 if the asset will have an 
JXYNRFYJI�ZXJKZQ�QNKJ�TKܪ�[J�^JFWX�TW�RTWJ�

Purchased property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost. Contributed assets received from developers 
and others are recorded at acquisition cost on the date of donation. The acquisition cost is based on the Authority’s 
estimated cost to construct or purchase similar assets. See Note 13, Contributions from Developers and Others, 
for additional details on contributed assets.

Property, plant and equipment includes construction in progress, which represents costs associated with the 
construction of assets that will be used in the Authority’s operations when completed. Expenditures for repairs 
and upgrades which materially add to the value or life of an asset are capitalized. Other maintenance and repair 
costs are expensed as incurred.

&� HFUNYFQ� FXXJY� NX� HTSXNIJWJI� NRUFNWJI� \MJS� NYX� XJW[NHJ� ZYNQNY^� MFX� IJHQNSJI� XNLSNܪHFSYQ^� FSI� ZSJ]UJHYJIQ �̂� .K�
determined to be permanently impaired, capital assets are reported at the lower of carrying or fair value. The 
Authority did not maintain any impaired capital assets at year end.

Depreciation and amortization for purchased, contributed and leased assets is recorded as depreciation and 
amortization expense on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

      Lines and improvements 50 years
      Buildings 35 - 40 years
      Equipment 5 - 15 years
      Meters 15 years
      Vehicles 5 - 10 years
      Intangible right-to-use asset (lease) 1+ years, depending on lease terms
      Intangible right-to-use asset (SBITA) 1+ years, depending on SBITA contract terms

Advance Capacity Payments are capitalized as intangible assets in accordance with the provisions of GASB 
Statement No. 51. These payments are made to wholesale water suppliers as part of multi-year capacity agreements, 
and are amortized over the useful life of such agreements. From their inception, these agreements are amortized 
over estimated useful lives from 40-50 years.

(h) Equity in Upper Occoquan Service Authority (UOSA) 
&X�KZWYMJW�J]UQFNSJI�NS�3TYJ����*VZNY^�NS�U48&��YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�UFWYNHNUFYJX�NS�F�OTNSY�[JSYZWJ�\NYM�YMWJJ�TYMJW�QTHFQ�
jurisdictions. The Authority accounts for its investment in the joint venture using the equity method of accounting.

(i) Compensated Absences 
Accrued leave balances that are eligible for pay out upon employee separation are presented as a liability in the 
accompanying Statements of Net Position. The Authority has a traditional leave plan in which employees hired 
before January 1, 2012 accrue annual leave in varying amounts based on years of service, and sick leave at a 
rate of four hours bi-weekly. The Authority also has a Paid Time Off (PTO) plan, in which employees hired as of 
January 1, 2012 and employees who made an irrevocable election to convert to the PTO plan accrue hours in 
varying amounts based on years of service. At the time of separation from service, employees are compensated 
KTW�FHHZRZQFYJI�FSSZFQ�QJF[J�ZU�YT�����MTZWX�FSI�ZU�YT���
�TK�FHHZRZQFYJI�XNHP�QJF[J�MTZWX�GFXJI�TS�^JFWX�TK�
service, or PTO leave up to 450 hours.
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(j) Bond Premiums, Deferred Losses on Refundings and Issuance Costs 
Bond premiums and deferred losses on refundings are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using a 
method which approximates the effective interest method. Deferred losses on refundings, net of amortization, are 
UWJXJSYJI�FX�IJKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�TS�YMJ�FHHTRUFS^NSL�8YFYJRJSYX�TK�3JY�5TXNYNTS��)JKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�TK�
WJXTZWHJX�NX�F�XJUFWFYJܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSY�JQJRJSY�\MNHM�WJUWJXJSYX�YMJ�HTSXZRUYNTS�TK�SJY�UTXNYNTS�YMFY�FUUQNJX�
YT�F�KZYZWJ�UJWNTI��FSI�\NQQ�STY�GJ�WJHTLSN_JI�FX�FS�TZYܫT\�TK�WJXTZWHJX�(J]UJSINYZWJ)�ZSYNQ�YMJS��'TSI�UWJRNZRX��
net of amortization, are presented as an increase to the face amount of bonds payable on the accompanying 
Statements of Net Position. Any balances for these items are presented in the schedules in Note 6, Bonds Payable 
and Note 8, Debt. Issuance costs are expensed in the year incurred.

(k) Revenue Recognition 
Customers are charged for water consumption and wastewater treatment based on metered water usage. An 
estimated amount has been recorded for services rendered but not yet billed as of the close of the respective years 
presented. This unbilled receivable is calculated by prorating the billings sent to customers in July and August of 
YMJ�XZGXJVZJSYܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�

(l) Availability Fees 
All developers and customers making new connections to the Authority’s water and/or wastewater treatment 
system are required to pay an availability fee prior to the installation of an Authority meter. Availability fees cover the 
cost of the customer’s pro-rata share of water and/or wastewater treatment capacity as well as water transmission 
RFNSX��XJ\JW�NSYJWHJUYTWX��XYTWFLJ�YFSPX��WJXJW[TNWX��UZRUNSL�XYFYNTSX�� NSܪQYWFYNTS�FSI�NSܫT\��FSI�JSLNSJJWNSL�
administration. Availability fees are not used to pay for operations, maintenance, repairs or capital improvements 
YT�GJSJܪY�J]NXYNSL�HZXYTRJWX��9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^�HQFXXNܪJX�YMNX�WJ[JSZJ�FX�STS�TUJWFYNSL�NSHTRJ�

(m)  Purchased Resources 
Purchased resources consist of expenses relating to the purchase of clean water and the treatment of wastewater 
from wholesale providers under the terms and conditions of relevant agreements.

(n) Pensions 
The Virginia Retirement System (VRS) Political Subdivision Retirement Plan (the Authority’s retirement plan) is a 
RZQYN�JRUQT^JW��FLJSY�UQFS��+TW�UZWUTXJX�TK�RJFXZWNSL�YMJ�SJY�UJSXNTS�QNFGNQNY �̂�IJKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�FSI�
IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�WJQFYJI�YT�UJSXNTSX��FSI�UJSXNTS�J]UJSXJ��NSKTWRFYNTS�FGTZY�YMJܪ�IZHNFW^�SJY�UTXNYNTS�
of the Authority’s Virginia Retirement System (VRS) Plan and the additions to/deductions from the Authority’s 
;78�5QFSѣX�SJYܪ�IZHNFW^�UTXNYNTS�MF[J�GJJS�IJYJWRNSJI�TS�YMJ�XFRJ�GFXNX�FX�YMJ^�\JWJ�WJUTWYJI�G^�;78��+TW�YMNX�
UZWUTXJ��GJSJܪY�UF^RJSYX�(NSHQZINSL�WJKZSIX�TK�JRUQT^JJ�HTSYWNGZYNTSX)�FWJ�WJHTLSN_JI�\MJS�IZJ�FSI�UF^FGQJ�NS�
FHHTWIFSHJ�\NYM�YMJ�GJSJܪY�YJWRX��.S[JXYRJSYX�FWJ�WJUTWYJI�FY�KFNW�[FQZJ�

(o) Group Life Insurance 
The VRS Group Life Insurance Program is a multiple employer, cost-sharing plan. It provides coverage to state 
employees, teachers, and employees of participating political subdivisions. The Group Life Insurance Program was 
established pursuant to §51.1-500 et seq. of the Code of Virginia, as amended, and which provides the authority 
ZSIJW�\MNHM�GJSJܪY�YJWRX�FWJ�JXYFGQNXMJI�TW�RF^�GJ�FRJSIJI��9MJ�,WTZU�1NKJ�.SXZWFSHJ�5WTLWFR�NX�F�IJܪSJI�
GJSJܪY� UQFS� YMFY� UWT[NIJX� F� GFXNH� LWTZU� QNKJ� NSXZWFSHJ� GJSJܪY� KTW� JRUQT^JJX� TK� UFWYNHNUFYNSL� JRUQT^JWX�� +TW�
UZWUTXJX�TK�RJFXZWNSL�YMJ�SJY�,WTZU�1NKJ�.SXZWFSHJ�5WTLWFR�45*'�QNFGNQNY �̂�IJKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�FSI�
IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�WJQFYJI�YT�YMJ�,WTZU�1NKJ�.SXZWFSHJ�5WTLWFR�45*'��FSI�,WTZU�1NKJ�.SXZWFSHJ�5WTLWFR�
45*'�J]UJSXJ��NSKTWRFYNTS�FGTZY�YMJܪ�IZHNFW^�SJY�UTXNYNTS�TK�YMJ�(;78)�,WTZU�1NKJ�.SXZWFSHJ�UWTLWFR�45*'�FSI�
YMJ�FIINYNTSX�YT�IJIZHYNTSX�KWTR�YMJ�;78�,WTZU�1NKJ�.SXZWFSHJ�5WTLWFR�45*'ѣX�SJYܪ�IZHNFW^�UTXNYNTS�MF[J�GJJS�
IJYJWRNSJI�TS�YMJ�XFRJ�GFXNX�FX�YMJ^�\JWJ�WJUTWYJI�G^�;78��.S�FIINYNTS��GJSJܪY�UF^RJSYX�FWJ�WJHTLSN_JI�\MJS�
IZJ�FSI�UF^FGQJ�NS�FHHTWIFSHJ�\NYM�YMJ�GJSJܪY�YJWRX��.S[JXYRJSYX�FWJ�WJUTWYJI�FY�KFNW�[FQZJ��

(p) Health Insurance Credit 
9MJ�;78�-JFQYM�.SXZWFSHJ�(WJINY�5WTLWFR�NX�F�RZQYNUQJ�JRUQT^JW��FLJSY�IJܪSJI�GJSJܪY�UQFS�YMFY�UWT[NIJX�F�HWJINY�
toward the cost of health insurance coverage for retired employees. The VRS Health Insurance Credit Program 
was established pursuant to §51.1-1400 et seq. of the Code of Virginia, as amended, and which provides the 
FZYMTWNY^�ZSIJW�\MNHM�GJSJܪY�YJWRX�FWJ�JXYFGQNXMJI�TW�RF^�GJ�FRJSIJI��+TW�UZWUTXJX�TK�RJFXZWNSL�YMJ�SJY�5TQNYNHFQ�
8ZGIN[NXNTS�-JFQYM�.SXZWFSHJ�(WJINY�5WTLWFR�45*'�QNFGNQNY �̂�IJKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�FSI�IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�TK�
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resources related to the Political Subdivision Health Insurance Credit Program OPEB, and the Political Subdivision 
-JFQYM�.SXZWFSHJ�(WJINY�5WTLWFR�45*'�J]UJSXJ��NSKTWRFYNTS�FGTZY�YMJܪ�IZHNFW^�SJY�UTXNYNTS�TK�YMJ�;78�5TQNYNHFQ�
Subdivision Health Insurance Credit Program; and the additions to/deductions from the VRS Political Subdivision 
-JFQYM�.SXZWFSHJ�(WJINY�5WTLWFRѣX�SJYܪ�IZHNFW^�UTXNYNTS�MF[J�GJJS�IJYJWRNSJI�TS�YMJ�XFRJ�GFXNX�FX�YMJ^�\JWJ�
WJUTWYJI�G^�;78��+TW�YMNX�UZWUTXJ��GJSJܪY�UF^RJSYX�FWJ�WJHTLSN_JI�\MJS�IZJ�FSI�UF^FGQJ�NS�FHHTWIFSHJ�\NYM�YMJ�
GJSJܪY�YJWRX��.S[JXYRJSYX�FWJ�WJUTWYJI�FY�KFNW�[FQZJ�

(q) Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)
9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^�FIRNSNXYJWX�F�XNSLQJ�JRUQT^JW�IJܪSJI�UTXY�JRUQT^RJSY�MJFQYM�HFWJ�GJSJܪY�UQFS�(YMJ�5QFS)�YMFY�
UWT[NIJX�MJFQYM��IJSYFQ��FSI�[NXNTS�GJSJܪYX�YT�WJYNWJJX�\MT�MF[J�YJS�TW�RTWJ�^JFWX�TK�XJW[NHJ�\NYM�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY �̂�+TW�
UZWUTXJX�TK�RJFXZWNSL�YMJ�YTYFQ�45*'�QNFGNQNY �̂�IJKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�FSI�IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�
related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, an actuarial valuation was performed as of July 1, 2023, using updated actuarial 
FXXZRUYNTSX��+TW�YMNX�UZWUTXJ��YMJ�5QFS�WJHTLSN_JX�GJSJܪY�UF^RJSYX�\MJS�IZJ�FSI�UF^FGQJ�NS�FHHTWIFSHJ�\NYM�
YMJ�GJSJܪY�YJWRX��9MJWJ�FWJ�ST�NS[JXYRJSYX�FX�YMNX�NX�F�UF^�FX�^TZ�LT�UQFS�FSI�FQQ�HFXM�NX�MJQI�NS�F�HFXM�FHHTZSY�

(r) Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
.S�FIINYNTS�YT�FXXJYX��YMJ�XYFYJRJSY�TK�SJY�UTXNYNTS�HTSYFNSX�F�XJUFWFYJ�XJHYNTS�KTW�IJKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX��
9MNX�XJUFWFYJܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSY�JQJRJSY�WJUWJXJSYX�F�HTSXZRUYNTS�TK�SJY�FXXJYX�YMFY�FUUQNJX�YT�KZYZWJ�UJWNTIX�FSI�
XT�\NQQ�STY�GJ�WJHTLSN_JI�FX�FS�TZYܫT\�TK�WJXTZWHJX�(J]UJSXJ)�ZSYNQ�YMJS��9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^�HZWWJSYQ^�WJUTWYX�IJKJWWJI�
FRTZSYX�TS�GTSI�WJKZSINSLX��IJKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�WJQFYJI�YT�UJSXNTSX�(XJJ�STYJ���)�FSI�IJKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�WJQFYJI�YT�
45*'�(XJJ�STYJ���)�FX�IJKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�

.S�FIINYNTS�YT�QNFGNQNYNJX��YMJ�XYFYJRJSY�TK�SJY�UTXNYNTS�HTSYFNSX�F�XJUFWFYJ�XJHYNTS�KTW�IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX��
9MNX�XJUFWFYJܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSY�JQJRJSY�WJUWJXJSYX�FS�FHVZNXNYNTS�TK�SJY�FXXJYX�YMFY�FUUQNJX�YT�KZYZWJ�UJWNTIX�FSI�
XT�\NQQ�STY�GJ�WJHTLSN_JI�FX�FS�NSܫT\�TK�WJXTZWHJX�(WJ[JSZJ)�ZSYNQ�YMJS��9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^�HZWWJSYQ^�WJUTWYX�IJKJWWJI�
NSܫT\X�WJQFYJI�YT�UJSXNTSX�FSI�IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�WJQFYJI�YT�45*'�FX�IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�(XJJ�STYJ���)��
FSI�IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�WJQFYJI�YT�QJFXJX�FX�IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�(XJJ�STYJ��)�

(s) Estimates 
9MJ�UWJUFWFYNTS�TK�YMJܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX�NS�HTSKTWRNY^�\NYM�FHHTZSYNSL�UWNSHNUQJX�LJSJWFQQ^�FHHJUYJI�NS�YMJ�
USNYJI�8YFYJX�TK�&RJWNHF�WJVZNWJX�RFSFLJRJSY�YT�RFPJ�JXYNRFYJX�FSI�FXXZRUYNTSX�YMFY�FKKJHY�YMJ�WJUTWYJI�
FRTZSYX�TK�FXXJYX��IJKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX��QNFGNQNYNJX�FSI�IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX��YMJ�INXHQTXZWJ�TK�
HTSYNSLJSY�FXXJYX�FSI�QNFGNQNYNJX�FY�YMJ�IFYJ�TK�YMJܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX��FSI�YMJ�WJUTWYJI�FRTZSYX�TK�WJ[JSZJX�FSI�
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(t) New Accounting Pronouncements Adopted 
In May 2022, the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022 
(,&8'���)��,&8'����JSMFSHJX�HTRUFWFGNQNY^�NS�FHHTZSYNSL�FSIܪ�SFSHNFQ�WJUTWYNSL�FSI�NRUWT[JX�YMJ�HTSXNXYJSH^�
TK�FZYMTWNYFYN[J�QNYJWFYZWJ�G^�FIIWJXXNSL�(�)�UWFHYNHJ�NXXZJX�YMFY�MF[J�GJJS�NIJSYNܪJI�IZWNSL�NRUQJRJSYFYNTS�FSI�
FUUQNHFYNTS�TK�,&8'�8YFYJRJSYX����������������FSI�����FSI�(�)�FHHTZSYNSL�FSIܪ�SFSHNFQ�WJUTWYNSL�KTWܪ�SFSHNFQ�
LZFWFSYJJX���,&8'����\FX�JKKJHYN[J�KTW�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�\NYM�NYXܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�JSIJI�/ZSJ����������

In June 2022, the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Accounting Changes and Error Corrections
(,&8'����)��,&8'�����JSMFSHJX�FHHTZSYNSL�FSIܪ�SFSHNFQ�WJUTWYNSL�KTW�FHHTZSYNSL�HMFSLJX�FSI�JWWTW�HTWWJHYNTSX�
and provides more understandable, reliable, relevant, consistent, and comparable information for making decisions 
FSI�FXXJXXNSL�FHHTZSYFGNQNY �̂�,&8'�����\FX�JKKJHYN[J�KTW�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�\NYM�NYXܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�JSIJI�/ZSJ����������

In June 2022, the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Compensated Absences (GASB 101). 
,&8'� ���� NRUWT[JX� YMJ� NSKTWRFYNTS� UWT[NIJI� YT� �SFSHNFQܪ XYFYJRJSY� ZXJWX� G^� ZUIFYNSL� YMJ� WJHTLSNYNTS� FSI�
measurement guidance for compensated absences by aligning the recognition and measurement guidance under 
F�ZSNܪJI�RTIJQ�FSI�G^�FRJSINSL�HJWYFNS�UWJ[NTZXQ^�WJVZNWJI�INXHQTXZWJX��,&8'�����\FX�JKKJHYN[J�KTW�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�
\NYM�NYXܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�JSIJI�/ZSJ����������

GASB Statement 102, Certain Risk Disclosures�(8YFYJRJSY����)��\NQQ�FIIWJXX�YMJܪ�SFSHNFQ�WJUTWYNSL�WJLFWINSL�HJWYFNS�
concentrations or constraints and related events that may have a substantial impact and negatively affect the 
QJ[JQ�TK�XJW[NHJ�F�LT[JWSRJSY�UWT[NIJX��8YFYJRJSY�����\FX�JKKJHYN[J�KTW�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�\NYM�NYXܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�JSIJI�
June 30, 2025.
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(u) New Accounting Pronouncements 
Management has elected to disclose upcoming GASB pronouncements that may have an impact on the Authority.

GASB Statement 103, Financial Reporting Model Improvements�(8YFYJRJSY����)�NRUWT[JX�YMJܪ�SFSHNFQ�WJUTWYNSL�
model to assist with decision making and assessing a government’s accountability. Statement 103 will be effective 
KTW�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�\NYM�NYXܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�JSINSL�/ZSJ����������

GASB Statement 104, Disclosure of Certain Capital Assets (Statement 104) requires state and local governments 
YT�UWT[NIJ�RTWJ�IJYFNQJI�NSKTWRFYNTS�FGTZY�HFUNYFQ�FXXJYX�NS�YMJNWܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX�YT�NRUWT[J�YWFSXUFWJSH^�
FSI�RFPJ�HFUNYFQ�FXXJY�INXHQTXZWJX�RTWJ�ZXJKZQ��8YFYJRJSY�����\NQQ�GJ�JKKJHYN[J�KTW�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�\NYM�NYXܪ�XHFQ�
year ending June 30, 2026.

(v) Subsequent Events 
9MJ� &ZYMTWNY^� MFX� J[FQZFYJI� XZGXJVZJSY� J[JSYX� YMWTZLM� )JHJRGJW� ���� ������ YMJ� IFYJ� TS� \MNHM� YMJ� �SFSHNFQܪ
statements were available to be issued.

(w) Leases
1JXXJJ��9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^�NX�F�QJXXJJ�KTW�STSHFSHJQQFGQJ�QJFXJX�TK�TܬHJ�XUFHJ�FSI�\FWJMTZXJ�XUFHJ�FSI�WJFQN_JX�F�QJFXJ�
QNFGNQNY^�FSI�FS�NSYFSLNGQJ�WNLMYћYTћZXJ�QJFXJ�FXXJY�(QJFXJ�FXXJY)�NS�NYXܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX��&Y�YMJ�HTRRJSHJRJSY�
of a lease, the Authority initially measures the lease liability at the present value of payments expected to be made 
during the lease term. Subsequently, the lease liability is reduced by the principal portion of lease payments made. 
The lease asset is initially measured as the initial amount of the lease liability, adjusted for lease payments made at 
or before the lease commencement date, plus certain initial direct costs. Subsequently, the lease asset is amortized 
TS�F�XYWFNLMYћQNSJ�GFXNX�T[JW�NYX�ZXJKZQ�QNKJ�

Key estimates and judgments related to leases include how the Authority determines (1) the discount rate it uses 
to discount the expected lease payments to present value, (2) lease term, and (3) lease payments.  

○ The Authority uses the interest rate charged by the lessor as the discount rate. When the interest rate charged by 
the lessor is not provided, the Authority generally uses its estimated incremental borrowing rate as the discount 
rate for leases. 

○ The lease term includes the noncancellable period of the lease. Lease payments included in the measurement 
TK�YMJ�QJFXJ�QNFGNQNY^�FWJ�HTRUTXJI�TKܪ�]JI�UF^RJSYX�FSI�UZWHMFXJ�TUYNTS�UWNHJX�YMFY�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�NX�WJFXTSFGQ^�
certain to exercise. In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that 
create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension 
options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain 
to be extended (or not terminated). 

The Authority monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its leases and will 
WJRJFXZWJ�YMJ�QJFXJ�FXXJY�FSI�QNFGNQNY^�NK�HJWYFNS�HMFSLJX�THHZW�YMFY�FWJ�J]UJHYJI�YT�XNLSNܪHFSYQ^�FKKJHY�YMJ�FRTZSY�
of the lease liability. 

1JFXJ�FXXJYX�FWJ�WJUTWYJI�\NYM�TYMJW�HFUNYFQ�FXXJYX�FSI�QJFXJ�QNFGNQNYNJX�FWJ�WJUTWYJI�\NYM�QTSLћYJWR�IJGY�TS�YMJ�
statement of net position. 

5F^RJSYX� IZJ� ZSIJW� YMJ� &ZYMTWNY^ѣX� QJFXJ� HTSYWFHYX� KTW� TܬHJ� XUFHJ� FSI� \FWJMTZXJ� XUFHJ� NSHQZIJ� [FWNFGQJ�
payments, which include payments for the Authority’s proportionate share of the leased space’s property taxes, 
insurance, and common area maintenance. 

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include 
the net present value of the following lease payments:

○ ���QJXX�FS^�QJFXJ�NSHJSYN[JX�WJHJN[FGQJ(JI�UF^RJSYX[ܪ�NSHQZINSL�NS�XZGXYFSHJ)�JI�UF^RJSYX[ܪ

○ amounts expected to be payable by the Authority under residual value guarantees,

○ the exercise price of a purchase option if the group is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and 

○ UF^RJSYX�TK�UJSFQYNJX�KTW�YJWRNSFYNSL�YMJ�QJFXJ��NK�YMJ�QJFXJ�YJWR�WJܫJHYX�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�J]JWHNXNSL�YMFY�TUYNTS�

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of 
the liability. Extension and termination options are included in a number of the Authority’s leases. These are used 
YT�RF]NRN_J�TUJWFYNTSFQܫ�J]NGNQNY^�NS�YJWRX�TK�RFSFLNSL�YMJ�FXXJYX�ZXJI�NS�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�TUJWFYNTSX��
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The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily 
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being 
the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value 
to the intangible right-to-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions. 

Variable payments that depend on an index or a rate (such as the Consumer Price Index or a market interest rate), 
are initially measured using the index or rate as of the commencement of the lease term.

Lessor: The Authority leases out space on top of its water towers to cellular service providers who place their cellular 
communications equipment on them. The Authority also leases a portion of land to a cellular service provider where 
YMJ^�MF[J�UQFHJI�F�HJQQZQFW�YT\JW��9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^�WJHTLSN_JX�F�QJFXJ�WJHJN[FGQJ�FSI�F�IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\�TK�WJXTZWHJX�
NS�YMJܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX�KTW�YMJXJ�QJFXJX�

At the commencement of a lease, the Authority initially measures the lease receivable at the present value of 
payments expected to be received during the lease term. Subsequently, the lease receivable is reduced by the 
UWNSHNUFQ�UTWYNTS�TK�QJFXJ�UF^RJSYX�WJHJN[JI��9MJ�IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\�TK�WJXTZWHJX�NX�NSNYNFQQ^�RJFXZWJI�FX�YMJ�NSNYNFQ�
amount of the lease receivable, adjusted for lease payments received at or before the lease commencement date. 
8ZGXJVZJSYQ �̂�YMJ�IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\�TK�WJXTZWHJX�NX�WJHTLSN_JI�FX�WJ[JSZJ�T[JW�YMJ�QNKJ�TK�YMJ�QJFXJ�YJWR�

Key estimates and judgments include how the Authority determines (1) the discount rate it uses to discount the 
expected lease receipts to present value, (2) lease term, and (3) lease receipts.   

○ The Authority uses its estimated incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate for leases. 

○ The lease term includes the noncancellable period of the lease. Lease receipts included in the measurement of 
YMJ�QJFXJ�WJHJN[FGQJ�FWJ�HTRUTXJI�TKܪ�]JI�UF^RJSYX�KWTR�YMJ�QJXXJJ�

The Authority monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its leases, and will 
WJRJFXZWJ�YMJ�QJFXJ�WJHJN[FGQJ�FSI�IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�NK�HJWYFNS�HMFSLJX�THHZW�YMFY�FWJ�J]UJHYJI�YT�
XNLSNܪHFSYQ^�FKKJHY�YMJ�FRTZSY�TK�YMJ�QJFXJ�WJHJN[FGQJ�

Detailed balances and information for Leases: Lessee and Lessor are presented in Note 4. 

(x) Subscription-Based Information Technology Agreements (SBITAs)
The Authority is a party to noncancellable contracts with SBITA vendors that convey control of the right to use 
a SBITA vendor’s IT software (i.e, a subscription), alone, or in combination with tangible capital assets such as 
XJW[JWX�TW�TYMJW�HTRUZYJW�WJQFYJI�MFWI\FWJ�FX�XUJHNܪJI�NS�YMJ�HTSYWFHYX��KTW�F�UJWNTI�TK�YNRJ�NS�FS�J]HMFSLJ�TW�
J]HMFSLJ�QNPJ�YWFSXFHYNTS��9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^�WJFQN_JX�F�8'.9&�QNFGNQNY^�FSI�FS�NSYFSLNGQJ�WNLMYћYTћZXJ�8'.9&�FXXJY�NS�NYX�
�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX��&Y�YMJ�HTRRJSHJRJSY�TK�F�8'.9&��YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�NSNYNFQQ^�RJFXZWJX�YMJ�8'.9&�QNFGNQNY^�FY�YMJܪ
present value of SBITA subscription payments expected to be made during the contract term. Subsequently, the 
SBITA liability is reduced by the principal portion of SBITA subscription payments made. The SBITA asset is initially 
measured as the initial amount of the SBITA subscription liability, plus payments made to the vendor prior to the 
commencement of a subscription and any capitalizable costs incurred to implement a SBITA. Subsequently, the 
8'.9&�FXXJY�NX�FRTWYN_JI�TS�F�XYWFNLMYћQNSJ�GFXNX�T[JW�YMJ�QNKJ�TK�YMJ�HTSYWFHY�

Key estimates and judgments related to SBITAs include how the Authority determines (1) the discount rate it uses 
to discount the expected SBITA payments to present value, (2) SBITA term, and (3) SBITA payments.

○ The Authority uses the interest rate charged by the SBITA vendor as the discount rate. When the interest rate 
charged by the vendor is not provided, as is generally the case, the Authority uses its estimated incremental 
borrowing rate as the discount rate for SBITAs. 

○ The SBITA term includes the noncancellable period of the contract. SBITA payments included in the measurement 
TK�YMJ�8'.9&�QNFGNQNY^�FWJ�HTRUTXJI�TKܪ�]JI�UF^RJSYX�YMFY�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^� NX�WJFXTSFGQ^�HJWYFNS�YT�RFPJ��.S�
determining the SBITA term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic 
incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods 
after termination options) are only included in the SBITA term if the SBITA is reasonably certain to be extended 
(or not terminated).

The Authority monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its SBITAs and will 
WJRJFXZWJ�YMJ�8'.9&�FXXJY�FSI�QNFGNQNY^�NK�HJWYFNS�HMFSLJX�THHZW�YMFY�FWJ�J]UJHYJI�YT�XNLSNܪHFSYQ^�FKKJHY�YMJ�FRTZSY�
of the SBITA liability. 
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8'.9&�FXXJYX�FWJ�WJUTWYJI�\NYM�TYMJW�HFUNYFQ�FXXJYX�FSI�8'.9&�QNFGNQNYNJX�FWJ�WJUTWYJI�\NYM�QTSLћ�YJWR�IJGY�TS�YMJ�
Statement of Net Position. 

Detailed balances and information for SBITAs are presented in Note 14.

2 Cash and Investments 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
At June 30, 2025 and 2024, all cash of the Authority is maintained in accounts collateralized in accordance with the 
Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act (the Act), Section 2.2-4400 et. seq. of the Code of Virginia, or is covered 
by federal depository insurance.

USIJW�YMJ�&HY��GFSPX�MTQINSL�UZGQNH�IJUTXNYX�NS�J]HJXX�TK�YMJ�FRTZSYX�NSXZWJI�G^�YMJ�+JIJWFQ�)JUTXNY�.SXZWFSHJ�
(TWUTWFYNTS�(+).()�RZXY�UQJILJ�HTQQFYJWFQ�NS�YMJ�FRTZSY�TK���
�TK�J]HJXX�IJUTXNYX�YT�F�HTQQFYJWFQ�UTTQ�NS�YMJ�SFRJ�
TK�YMJ�8YFYJ�9WJFXZW^�'TFWI��8F[NSLX�FSI�QTFS�NSXYNYZYNTSX�FWJ�WJVZNWJI�YT�HTQQFYJWFQN_J����
�TK�IJUTXNYX�NS�J]HJXX�
of FDIC limits. Since the State Treasurer has the ability to make additional assessments of other solvent public 
depositories on behalf of the collateral pool, any deposit qualifying under the Act is considered entirely insured. The 
State Treasury Board is responsible for monitoring compliance with the collateralization and reporting requirements 
of the Act and for notifying local governments of compliance by banks and savings and loans.

The Authority also invests in an externally managed investment pool, the Virginia Local Government Investment 
Pool (LGIP) and the LGIP Extended Maturity (LGIP EM), which are not registered with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (SEC). Pursuant to Sec. 2.2-4600 through 2.2-4606 of the Code of Virginia, the Virginia General 
Assembly created the LGIP and authorized the Treasury Board to administer the LGIP and LGIP EM. As permitted 
by law, the Treasury Board has delegated certain administrative functions to the State Treasurer. The Treasury Board 
reviews the LGIP investment portfolio on a monthly basis, and investments in the LGIP are stated at amortized cost 
UJW�,&8'�8YFYJRJSY�3T�����WJVZNWJRJSYX��\MNQJ�YMJ�1,.5�*2�FWJ�XYFYJI�FY�KFNW�[FQZJ�UJW�,&8'�8YFYJRJSY�3T�����
requirements. 

9MJ�1,.5�NX�RFSFLJI�XNRNQFW�YT�F�RTSJ^�RFWPJY�KZSI�FSI�NS�HTRUQNFSHJ�\NYM�YMJ�IJܪSNYNTS�TK�Ѧ�F���QNPJ�UTTQXѧ�NS�
FHHTWIFSHJ�\NYM�,&8'�8YFYJRJSY�3T�����FSI�NX�RFSFLJI�YT�RJJY�YMJ�UTWYKTQNT�RFYZWNY �̂�VZFQNY �̂�IN[JWXNܪHFYNTS�FSI�
QNVZNINY^�WJVZNWJRJSYX�XJY�KTWYM�NS�,&8'�8YFYJRJSY�3T�����

USWJXYWNHYJI�HFXM�FSI�HFXM�JVZN[FQJSYX�HTSXNXY�TK�GFSP�IJUTXNYX��UJYY^�HFXM�KZSIX��1,.5�NS[JXYRJSYX�FSI�TYMJW�
money market fund investments. Restricted cash and cash equivalents consist of customer deposits, employee 
\NYMMTQINSLX�KTW�GJSJܪY�UWTLWFRX��JXHWT\X�FSI�WJYFNSFLJ�MJQI�TS�HTSYWFHYX��FSI�RTSJ^�RFWPJY�KZSIX�MJQI�G^�F�
Trustee for debt service.

At June 30, 2025 and 2024, the Authority had the following cash and cash equivalents:

2025 2024

Unrestricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash $  5,964,330 	 ����������
.S[JXYRJSYX�HQFXXNܪJI�FX�HFXM�JVZN[FQJSYX ���������� 31,554,325

Total unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 28,686,326 ����������

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Money market funds held by trustee 102,415,858 12,814,044
Customer deposits ��������� ���������
Other funds 36,103 30,348

Total restricted cash and cash equivalents ����������� 15,462,098

Total cash and cash equivalents $ 133,861,148 $ 53,098,190
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Investments 
The Code of Virginia�8JH�����������JY�XJV��FZYMTWN_JX�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�YT�NS[JXY�NS�TGQNLFYNTSX�TK�YMJ�USNYJI�8YFYJX�TW�
agencies thereof; obligations of the Commonwealth of Virginia and political subdivisions thereof; obligations of other 
states and their political subdivisions; obligations of the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development 
(World Bank), the Asian Development Bank, and the African Development Bank; “prime quality” commercial paper; 
SJLTYNFGQJ�HJWYNܪHFYJX�TK�IJUTXNYX��GFSP�STYJX��FSI�HTWUTWFYJ�GTSIX�WFYJI�&&�TW�GJYYJW�G^�8YFSIFWI���5TTWѣX�7FYNSL�
8JW[NHJX�(8�5)��FSI�&F�TW�GJYYJW�G^�2TTI^ѣX�.S[JXYTWX�8JW[NHJX��.SH���FSI�F�RFYZWNY^�TK�ST�RTWJ�YMFSܪ�[J�^JFWX �
bankers’ acceptances; overnight term and open repurchase agreements; money market mutual funds; and the LGIP. 
The Authority’s investment policy follows state law except where the Authority further limits allowable investments 
by excluding certain treasury strips and the International, Asian, and African Development Banks. Additionally, the 
investment policy establishes upper limits on the percentage of the total portfolio that may be invested in certain 
securities.

The Authority’s investments are subject to interest rate, credit, concentration of credit, and custodial credit risk as 
described herein. 

Interest rate risk: Interest rate risk is the risk the fair value of the securities in the portfolio will decline due to rising 
interest rates. As a means of limiting this exposure, the Authority’s investment guidelines restrict average duration 
YT����RTSYMX�FSI�YMJ�RFYZWNY^�TK�FS^�XNSLQJ�NS[JXYRJSY�YTܪ�[J�̂ JFWX��.SYJWJXY�WFYJ�WNXP�NX�FQXT�HTSYFNSJI�G^�F[TNINSL�
mortgage-backed and callable securities. The risk of loss of fair value from rising interest rates is greater for those 
types of securities because the expected maturity of such securities increase as rates rise, compounding the impact 
TS�KFNW�[FQZJ��'^�HTRUFWNXTS��YMJ�F[JWFLJ�RFYZWNY^�YJWRX�TK�U8�9WJFXZW^�STYJX��STS�HFQQFGQJ�U8�&LJSH^�XJHZWNYNJX�
and the LGIP are generally not affected by periods of rising interest rates.

The Authority’s investments with the LGIP and LGIP EM are included in the accompanying Statements of Net 
Position as cash and cash equivalents. At June 30, 2025, the average maturity of the underlying LGIP and LGIP EM 
investments was 38 days, or 0.11 years and 324 days, or .90 years, respectively.

At June 30, 2025 and 2024, the Authority had the following investments and maturities:

2025 2024

Investment Type Fair Value
Weighted Average 
Maturity (Years) Fair Value

Weighted Average 
Maturity (Years)

Unrestricted investments
U8�&LJSHNJX�(+-1'�++('�+-12(��

FAMC,FNMA) 	 ����������� ���� 	 ����������� 1.10
U8�9WJFXZWNJX ����������� 1.21 ���������� 0.64
Virginia State and Local 2,232,861 2.42 294,624 0.04

Total unrestricted investments ����������� �����������

Total investments 	 ����������� 0.95 	 ����������� ����

Credit risk: Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of the security issuer or backer to repay its obligations, 
and may also apply where there is loss of fair value of the investment due to a deterioration of an issuer’s credit 
rating. The Authority’s Investment Policy and Guidelines seek to diversify the Authority’s portfolio by limiting the 
types of investments that can be purchased as well as the percentage of the portfolio that may be invested in any 
one type of instrument.
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At June 30, 2025 and 2024, the Authority’s investments were rated as follows:

Credit Exposure as a
 % of Total Investments

Investment Type S&P Rating Moody’s Rating 2025 2024

U8�&LJSHNJX AA+ Aaa ����
 ����

U8�9WJFXZWNJX� AA+ Aaa 30.2 23.5
2ZYZFQ�+ZSIX��� AA+ Aaa 23.3 4.0
1,.5���� AAAm N/A 5.0 9.6
;NWLNSNF�8YFYJ�FSI�1THFQ�� AA+ Aa1 0.5 0.1
1,.5�*2��� AAAm N/A 0.3 0.3

Total Investments �����
 �����


��'FHPJI�G^�YMJ�KZQQ�KFNYM�FSI�HWJINY�TK�YMJ�U8�LT[JWSRJSY�

���7FYNSLX�[FW^�G^�XJHZWNY �̂

����7JܫJHYJI�TS�YMJ�FHHTRUFS^NSLܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX�FX�HFXM�JVZN[FQJSYX�

Concentration of credit risk: Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of investments 
held from a single issuer. The Authority’s guidelines place limits on the amounts the Authority may invest in certain 
NXXZJWX��MT\J[JW��YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�XJJPX�YT�RFNSYFNS�FY�QJFXY���
�TK�YMJ�UTWYKTQNT�NS�U8�9WJFXZWNJX�FSI�YMJ�GFQFSHJ�TK�
its investments in other authorized notes, bonds, securities and deposit accounts. 

9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�NS[JXYRJSY�UTWYKTQNT�FX�TK�/ZSJ����������FSI������NX�HTSHJSYWFYJI�NS�XJHZWNYNJX�NXXZJI�G^�YMJ�U8�
Treasury, Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB), the Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB), Federal Home Loan Mortgage 
Corporation (FHLMC) and Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA). The obligations of each of these issuers 
HTRUWNXJ�RTWJ�YMFS��
�TK�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�YTYFQ�NS[JXYRJSYX���

The Authority categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally 
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of 
YMJ�FXXJY��1J[JQ���NSUZYX�FWJ�VZTYJI�UWNHJX�NS�FHYN[J�RFWPJYX�KTW�NIJSYNHFQ�FXXJYX �1J[JQ���NSUZYX�FWJ�XNLSNܪHFSY�TYMJW�
observable inputs such as observation of prices/yields for both identical and similar investments held in a portfolio, 
FSI�YMJ�TGXJW[FYNTS�TK�^NJQI�HZW[JX�FSI�NSYJWJXY�WFYJX �1J[JQ���NSUZYX�FWJ�XNLSNܪHFSY�ZSTGXJW[FGQJ�NSUZYX�XZHM�FX�
forecasts based on assumptions and non-public data sources, and independent appraisals. All of the Authority’s 
investments are valued using Level 1 or Level 2 inputs.

9MJ�YFGQJ�GJQT\�IJYFNQX�YMJ�KFNW�[FQZJ�FSI�UJWHJSY�TK�YTYFQ�NS[JXYRJSYX�KTW�JFHM�NXXZJW�WJUWJXJSYNSL��
�TW�RTWJ�TK�
the Authority’s total investments as of June 30, 2025 or 2024:

Issuers Over 5% of Total Investments Fair Value of Investments % of Total Investments
(Restricted & Unrestricted) 2025 2024 2025 2024

U8�9WJFXZWNJX�(1J[JQ��) 	 ����������� 	 ���������� ����
 ����

FHLB (Level 2) ���������� 99,963,400 ����
 ����

FFCB (Level 2) ���������� ���������� ����
 ����

FHLMC (Level 2) 14,886,293 14,204,525 ���
 ���

FNMA (Level 2) ��������� 23,910,553 ���
 ���


Custodial credit risk: Custodial credit risk is the risk that the Authority will not be able to recover the value of its 
investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside custodial party. All of the securities 
purchased by the Authority are held in safekeeping by a third party custodial bank or institution and are insured in 
the Authority’s name, and therefore, the Authority is not exposed to custodial credit risk.
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3 Property, Plant and Equipment

Changes in property, plant and equipment are as follows for the year ended June 30, 2025:

Balance
June 30, 2024 Additions Reductions

Transfers/Other 
Adjustments

Balance
June 30, 2025

Capital assets not being 
depreciated/amortized:
Construction in progress $ 194,944,383 	 ����������� 	 (�������) 	 (����������) $ 283,919,196
Land ��������� - - - ���������

Total capital assets not being 
depreciated/amortized ����������� ����������� (�������) (����������) 293,685,185

Other capital assets:
Lines and improvements ������������� 11,041,550 - 5,080,163 �������������
Equipment 314,392,963 ��������� (������) ��������� 322,468,044
Buildings ����������� 39,369 - 602,406 161,911,252
Vehicles ���������� ��������� (186,138) - 12,356,116
Advance capacity payments 211,648,365 ������� - - 211,850,164
Intangible right-to-use asset, 

building 1,152,251 - - - 1,152,251
Intangible right-to-use asset, SBITA 1,152,020 - - - 1,152,020

Total other capital assets ������������� ���������� (264,252) ���������� �������������

Total capital assets before 
accumulated depreciation and 
amortization 1,953,051,206 ����������� (�������) - �������������

Depreciation/amortization for:
Lines and improvements (360,564,426) (20,549,510) - - (381,113,936)
Equipment (�����������) (14,840,521) ������ - (�����������)
Buildings (����������) (3,494,048) - - (81,826,355)
Vehicles (���������) (808,319) 186,138 - (9,480,020)
Advance capacity payments (84,480,162) (���������) - - (91,250,489)
Intangible right-to-use asset, 

building (������) (230,324) - - (�������)
Intangible right-to-use asset, SBITA (540,006) (431,956) - - (�������)

Total accumulated depreciation 
and amortization (�����������) (����������) 262,239 - (�����������)

Total property, plant and equipment, 
net of accumulated depreciation 
and amortization $ 1,193,488,230 $ 69,262,423 $ (519,618) $ - $ 1,262,231,035
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Changes in property, plant and equipment are as follows for the year ended June 30, 2024:

Balance
June 30, 2023 Additions Reductions

Transfers/Other 
Adjustments

Balance
June 30, 2024

Capital assets not being depreciated/
amortized:
Construction in progress $ 124,658,282 	 ���������� $ (423,693) 	 (���������) $ 194,944,383
Land ��������� - - - ���������

Total capital assets not being 
depreciated/amortized ����������� ���������� (423,693) (���������) �����������

Other capital assets:
Lines and improvements 1,025,216,123 20,020,286 - ��������� �������������
Equipment 304,564,693 5,090,440 (�������) ��������� 314,392,963
Buildings 159,866,338 1,084,325 - 318,814 �����������
Vehicles 10,408,346 ������� (�������) - ����������
Advance capacity payments ����������� ������� - - 211,648,365
Intangible right-to-use asset, building ������� 1,152,251 (�������) - 1,152,251
Intangible right-to-use asset, SBITA 1,152,020 - - - 1,152,020

Total other capital assets ������������� 28,885,691 (1,059,443) ��������� �������������

Total capital assets before 
accumulated depreciation and 
amortization ������������� ����������� (1,225,938) - 1,953,051,206

Depreciation/amortization for:
Lines and improvements (340,234,411) (20,330,015) - - (360,564,426)
Equipment (�����������) (15,199,802) 355,230 - (�����������)
Buildings (����������) (���������) - - (����������)
Vehicles (8,289,093) (�������) 403,211 - (���������)
Advance capacity payments (����������) (6,530,392) - - (84,480,162)
Intangible right-to-use asset, building (186,820) (�������) ������� - (������)
Intangible right-to-use asset, SBITA (�������) (432,038) - - (540,006)

Total accumulated depreciation 
and amortization (�����������) (����������) 1,015,639 - (�����������)

Total property, plant and equipment, 
net of accumulated depreciation and 
amortization $ 1,133,266,359 	 ���������� $ (210,299) $ - $ 1,193,488,230
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4 Leases

(a) Lease Payable 
This note provides information for leases where the Authority is a lessee. For leases where the Authority is a lessor, 
see note 4(b): Lease Receivable.

9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^�MFX�JSYJWJI�NSYT�[FWNTZX�QJFXJ�FLWJJRJSYX�FX�QJXXJJ�KTW�TܬHJ�FSI�\FWJMTZXJ�XUFHJ��2TXY�QJFXJX�
have initial terms of 5 years, and contain one or more renewals at the Authority’s option, generally for 5-year periods. 
The Authority has generally included these renewal periods in the lease term when it is reasonably certain that 
we will exercise the renewal option. The Authority’s leases generally include termination options for the lessee to 
YMJ�QJFXJ�TW�WJXYWNHYN[Jܪ�SFSHNFQ�TW�TYMJW�HT[JSFSYX��\MNHM�FWJ�WJFXTSFGQ^�HJWYFNS�YT�STY�GJ�J]JWHNXJI��(JWYFNS�WJFQ�
estate leases require additional payments for common area maintenance, real estate taxes and insurance, which 
FWJ�J]UJSXJI�FX�NSHZWWJI�FX�[FWNFGQJ�QJFXJ�UF^RJSYX��+TW�TܬHJ�FSI�\FWJMTZXJ�XUFHJ�QJFXJX�YMFY�NSHQZIJ�[FWNFGQJ�
payments, those include payments for the Authority’s proportionate share of the leased property’s property taxes, 
insurance, and common area maintenance. The Authority’s lease arrangements do not contain any material residual 
value guarantees. As the interest rates implicit in the Authority’s leases are not readily determinable, the incremental 
borrowing rate is utilized to discount the lease payments.

The Statement of Net Position shows the following amounts relating to leases:

Intangible right-to-use assets

Right to 
Use Asset 
Balance

Buildings $ 844,942
Buildings, net $ 844,942

Lease payable Principal
Current $ 214,205
Long-term 	 �������
Total $ 891,509

The future principal and interest lease payments as of June 30, 2025, were as follows:

Years ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2026 $ 214,205 $ 29,120 $ 243,325
���� 235,341 ������ 263,458
2028 ������� ������ �������
2029 184,045 3,426 �������
Total $ 891,509 	 ������ $ 968,250

(b) Lease Receivable
As a lessor, the Authority leases out certain space atop its water towers to cellular service providers who place 
their cellular communications equipment on them. The Authority also leases a portion of land to a cellular service 
provider where a cellular tower has been placed. These leases generally have initial terms of up to 5 years, and 
contain one or more renewals at the tenant’s option, generally for 5-year periods. These renewal periods have been 
generally included in the lease term when it is reasonably certain that the renewal option will be exercised. The 
Authority’s lease arrangements do not contain any material residual value guarantees. As the interest rate implicit 
in the Authority’s leases is not readily determinable, the incremental borrowing rate is used to discount the lease 
payments.



50 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINANCIAL SECTION50

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases of investment properties are as follows:
Years ending June 30, Principal Interest
2026 $ 535,835 	 �������
���� ������� 191,154
2028 ������� �������
2029 ������� 154,616
2030 ������� 134,152
2031-2035 2,945,514 �������
2036-2040 435,619 125,034
2041-2045 290,220 18,845
Total $ 6,800,239 $ 1,382,193

9MJ�YTYFQ�FRTZSY�TK�IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�WJQFYNSL�YT�QJFXJX�WJHTLSN_JI�NS�YMJ�HZWWJSYܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�FWJ�FX�
follows:

Current Deferred 
Inflows of Leases 

Receivable Total
Total 	 ������� 	 �������

5 Equity in Upper Occoquan Service Authority 
U48&�\FX�HWJFYJI�ZSIJW�YMJ�UWT[NXNTSX�TK�YMJ�;NWLNSNF�<FYJW�FSI�8J\JW�&ZYMTWNYNJX�&HY�YT�GJ�YMJ�XNSLQJ�WJLNTSFQ�
JSYNY^�YT�HTSXYWZHYܪ��SFSHJ�FSI�TUJWFYJ�YMJ�WJLNTSFQ�XJ\FLJ�YWJFYRJSY�KFHNQNY^�RFSIFYJI�G^�YMJ�4HHTVZFS�UTQNH^�
KTW�YMJ�ZUUJW�UTWYNTS�TK�YMJ�4HHTVZFS�<FYJWXMJI��U48&�NX�F�OTNSY�[JSYZWJ�KTWRJI�TS�2FWHM���������G^�F�HTSHZWWJSY�
resolution of the governing bodies of Fairfax and Prince William Counties and the Cities of Manassas and Manassas 
Park. The Prince William County BOCS assigned all rights and obligations of its allocated capacity to the Authority 
in 1983. 

)ZWNSLܪ�XHFQ�^JFWX�������������FSI�������U48&ѣX�HFUFHNY^�\FX�NSHWJFXJI�FSI�JFHM�OZWNXINHYNTSѣX�UJWHJSYFLJ�\FX�
FIOZXYJI�FHHTWINSLQ �̂�9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�JVZNY^�NSYJWJXY�NS�U48&�WJUTWYJI�TS�YMJ�FHHTRUFS^NSL�8YFYJRJSYX�TK�3JY�
5TXNYNTS�FX�TK�/ZSJ����������FSI������NX�HFQHZQFYJI�GFXJI�TS�NYX�UJWHJSYFLJ�XMFWJ�TK�HFUFHNY^�NS�JKKJHY�KTW�U48&ѣX�
XHFQ�̂ܪ JFWX�JSIJI�/ZSJ����������FSI�������WJXUJHYN[JQ �̂�9MJ�JVZNY^�NSYJWJXY�NS�U48&�NX�HFQHZQFYJI�TSJ�̂ JFW�NS�FWWJFWX�
IZJ�YT�YMJ�YNRNSL�TK�U48&ѣX�UZGQNXMJIܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX�

In January 2008, and again in March 2011, the Authority made purchases totaling an additional 4 MGD of existing 
UQFSY�HFUFHNY^�FY�U48&�KWTR�+FNWKF]�(TZSY �̂�FY�F�HTRGNSJI�HTXY�TK�	�����������KTW�GTYM�YWFSXFHYNTSX��<NYM�YMJXJ�
UZWHMFXJX��YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�JKKJHYN[J�XMFWJ�TK�YMJ�YTYFQ�5JWRNYYJI�U48&�5QFSY�(FUFHNY^�TK����2,)��FX�IJܪSJI�NS�YMJ�
YWFSXFHYNTS�FLWJJRJSYX��NX������
��TW�FUUWT]NRFYJQ^������2,)�

+TW�U48&ѣXܪ�XHFQ�^JFWX�JSIJI�/ZSJ����������������FSI�������HFUFHNY^�FQQTHFYNTS�G^�OZWNXINHYNTS�\FX�FX�KTQQT\X�

Percentage of Total Allocated Capacity
Jurisdiction 2025 2024 2023
Fairfax County �����
 �����
 �����

Prince William County 36.66 36.66 36.66
City of Manassas 14.24 14.24 14.24
City of Manassas Park 5.40 5.40 5.40
Total ������
 ������
 ������




51NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFINANCIAL SECTION

FINANCIAL 
SECTION

51

9MJ� LT[JWSNSL� GTI^� TK� U48&� NX� FS� JNLMY� RJRGJW� 'TFWI� TK� )NWJHYTWX� HTSXNXYNSL� TK� Y\T� RJRGJWX� KWTR� JFHM�
UFWYNHNUFYNSL�OZWNXINHYNTS�FUUTNSYJI�YT�KTZW�^JFW�YJWRX��9MJ�U48&�'TFWI�TK�)NWJHYTWX�FITUYX�FS�FSSZFQ�TUJWFYNSL�
GZILJY�GFXJI�TS�UWTOJHYJI�\FXYJ\FYJWܫ�T\X��9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�,JSJWFQ�2FSFLJW�HZWWJSYQ^�XJW[JX�FX�F�RJRGJW�TK�
YMJ�U48&�'TFWI�TK�)NWJHYTWX�

8ZRRFW^ܪ�SFSHNFQ�NSKTWRFYNTS�TK�U48&�KTW�YMJ�^JFWX�JSIJI�/ZSJ����������FSI������(YMJ�IFYJX�TK�YMJ�RTXY�WJHJSY�
F[FNQFGQJ�FZINYJIܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX)�FWJ�UWJXJSYJI�GJQT\��(TRUQJYJܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX�RF^�GJ�TGYFNSJI�KWTR�
U48&�FY�UUUJW�4HHTVZFS�8JW[NHJ�&ZYMTWNY �̂�������(TRUYTS�7TFI��(JSYWJ[NQQJ��;NWLNSNF�������������TW�KWTR�YMJNW�
website at www.uosa.org.

2024 2023
UOSA Authority’s Share UOSA Authority’s Share

Total assets $ 519,556,446 $ 539,544,913
)JKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX ���������� ����������
9TYFQ�FXXJYX�FSI�IJKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX 536,203,485 559,022,324

Total liabilities 513,845,864 �����������
)JKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX 2,031,305 ���������
9TYFQ�QNFGNQNYNJX�FSI�IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX ����������� �����������
Total net position $ 20,326,316 $ 1,668,402 $ 19,091,651 	 ���������

Total revenues 	 ���������� 	 ����������
Total expenses (����������) (����������)
Capital contributions 28,846,840 26,415,665
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle - -

Change in net position $ 1,234,665 $ 452,644 $ (1,019,655) 	 (�������)
Prepaid capacity amortization (3,558,132) (3,391,008)
(MFSLJ�NS�JVZNY^�NSYJWJXY�NS�U48& $ (3,105,488) 	 (���������)

9MJ�JVZNY^�NSYJWJXY�NS�U48&�NX�F�KZSHYNTS�TK�U48&ѣX�FSSZFQ�UJWKTWRFSHJ��9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�JVZNY^�NSYJWJXY�NX�FIOZXYJI�
FSSZFQQ^�GFXJI�TS�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�UJWHJSYFLJ�TK�YTYFQ�HFUFHNY^�KTW�YMJܪ�XHFQ�̂ JFW�RZQYNUQNJI�G^�YMJ�HMFSLJ�NS�U48&ѣX�SJY�
UTXNYNTS�KTW�YMJ�QFYJXY�FZINYJIܪ�XHFQ�^JFW��9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�UJWHJSYFLJ�TK�YTYFQ�HFUFHNY^�HMFSLJX�FX�HFUFHNY^�UZWHMFXJX�
FWJ�RFIJ�G^�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�TW�TYMJW�OZWNXINHYNTSX��YMJWJKTWJ�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�HZRZQFYN[J�XMFWJ�TK�U48&ѣX�SJY�UTXNYNTS�NX�
WJUTWYJI�FY�FS�T[JWFQQ�JKKJHYN[J�XMFWJ��5WJUFNI�HFUFHNY^�FRTWYN_FYNTS�WJUWJXJSYX�YMJ�FRTWYN_FYNTS�FXXTHNFYJI�\NYM�U48&�
plant capacity rights that the Authority purchased from Fairfax County. The Authority amortizes these capacity rights 
T[JW�JXYNRFYJI�ZXJKZQ�QN[JX�KWTR�������̂ JFWX��9MNX�FRTWYN_FYNTS�NX�WJܫJHYJI�FX�F�UTWYNTS�TK�YMJ�JVZNY^�NSYJWJXY�NS�U48&�

9MJ� &ZYMTWNY^� RFIJ� UF^RJSYX� YT� U48&� IZWNSL� �XHFQܪ ^JFWX� ����� FSI� ����� TK� FUUWT]NRFYJQ^� 	����� RNQQNTS� FSI�
	�����RNQQNTS��WJXUJHYN[JQ �̂�YT�UF^�NYX�XMFWJ�TK�TUJWFYNTS�FSI�RFNSYJSFSHJ�J]UJSXJX�FSI�WJXJW[J�RFNSYJSFSHJ�HMFWLJX��
\MNHM�WJUWJXJSYX�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�UWT�WFYF�XMFWJ�TK�YMJ�UFWYNHNUFYNSL�OZWNXINHYNTSXѣ�RJYJWJI�\FXYJ\FYJWܫ�T\X�JFHM�̂ JFW��
9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^�WJHTWIX�YMJXJ�UF^RJSYX�KTW�XJW[NHJX�KWTR�U48&�NS�YMJ�FHHTRUFS^NSLܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX�FX�UZWHMFXJI�
WJXTZWHJX�J]UJSXJ��9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^�FQXT�RFIJ�UF^RJSYX�YT�U48&�TK�FUUWT]NRFYJQ^�	�����RNQQNTS�FSI�	�����RNQQNTS��
WJXUJHYN[JQ �̂�KTW�JFHM�TK�YMJ�^JFWX�JSIJI�/ZSJ����������FSI�/ZSJ�����������YT�KZSI�NYX�XMFWJ�TK�U48&ѣX�IJGY�XJW[NHJ��
9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�XMFWJ�TK�IJGY�XJW[NHJ�UF^RJSYX�FWJ�WJHTWIJI�FX�STS�TUJWFYNSL�J]UJSXJX�NS�YMJ�FHHTRUFS^NSLܪ�SFSHNFQ�
statements. Each jurisdiction is required to pay its share of debt service based on its percentage of total allocated 
HFUFHNY^�TW�FX�TYMJW\NXJ�NIJSYNܪJI�KTW�XUJHNܪH�UWTOJHYX�\NYMNS�YMJ�U48&�8JW[NHJ�&LWJJRJSY��.Sܪ�XHFQ�^JFWX������
FSI�������YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX������
�XMFWJ�TK�U48&ѣX�HMFSLJ�NS�SJY�UTXNYNTS�\FX�	��������FSI�	(�������)��WJXUJHYN[JQ �̂�
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U48&ѣX�FSSZFQ�IJGY�XJW[NHJ�KTW�HZWWJSY�FSI�KZYZWJ�^JFWX�NX�KZSIJI�G^�JFHM�TK�YMJ�UFWYNHNUFYNSL�OZWNXINHYNTSX�GFXJI�
TS�YMJNW�FQQTHFYJI�HFUFHNY^�\NYM�HJWYFNS�RTINܪHFYNTSX��&X�TK�/ZSJ�����������YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�KZYZWJ�IJGY�XJW[NHJ�
WJVZNWJRJSYX�KTW�UWNSHNUFQ�FSI�NSYJWJXY�YT�U48&��SJY�TK�U48&�FHHZRZQFYJI�IJGY�XJW[NHJ�WJXJW[JX��FWJ�FX�KTQQT\X�

Years Ending
June 30,

Total
Payment

2026 $ 13,335,893
���� ����������
2028 ����������
2029 ����������
2030 9,551,482
2031-2035 ����������
2036-2040 ����������
2041-2045 ����������
2046-2050 ����������
2051-2055 4,238,948
Total 	 �����������

6 Bonds Payable 
Bonds payable as of June 30, 2025 consist of the following:

(a) Series 2013 water and sewer system refunding revenue bonds were issued to defease $44,140,000 of the 
8JWNJX������GTSIX��&Y�/ZSJ�����������	����������WJRFNSJI�TZYXYFSINSL��.SYJWJXY�WFYJX�WFSLJ�KWTR����
�YT����
�
annually on the remaining maturity dates from July 1, 2025 to July 1, 2035.

(b) Series 2015 water and sewer system refunding revenue bonds were issued in April 2015 to refund the 
8JWNJX������GTSIX��&Y�/ZSJ�����������	����������WJRFNSJI�TZYXYFSINSL��9MJ�NSYJWJXY�WFYJ�TS�YMJ�GTSIX�NX�����
�
with maturity dates from July 1, 2025 to July 1, 2029. 

(H)�8JWNJX������\FYJW�FSI�XJ\JW�X^XYJR�WJKZSINSL�WJ[JSZJ�GTSIX�\JWJ�NXXZJI�NS�2F^������YTܪ�SFSHJ�YMJ�
Authority’s capital improvement program and to refund a portion of the Series 2013 bonds in the amount of 
	������������&Y�/ZSJ�����������	������������TK�YMJ�8JWNJX������GTSIX�WJRFNSJI�TZYXYFSINSL��9MJ�NSYJWJXY�WFYJ�
TS�YMJ�GTSIX�NX�����
�\NYM�RFYZWNY^�IFYJX�KWTR�/ZQ^����������YT�/ZQ^�����������

For the 2013 and 2015 bond series, interest is payable semi-annually on January 1 and July 1, and principal 
payments are made annually on July 1. For the 2025 bond series, interest is payable semi-annually on January 15 
and July 15, and principal payments are made annually on July 15. In June 2024, an advance payment in the amount 
TK�	����������\FX�RFIJ�YT�YMJ�9WZXYJJ�YT\FWI�IJGY�XJW[NHJ�KTW�YMJ�XZGXJVZJSYܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�

)ZWNSLܪ�XHFQ�^JFWX������FSI�������YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�HTSYNSZJI�YT�GJ�NS�HTRUQNFSHJ�\NYM�FQQ�HT[JSFSYX�FXXTHNFYJI�\NYM�
YMJ�TZYXYFSINSL�GTSI�NSIJSYZWJX��8JJ�8YFYNXYNHFQ�8JHYNTS�9FGQJX������FSI���KTW�IJGY�HTRUQNFSHJ�NSKTWRFYNTS��+TW�YMJ�
^JFW�JSIJI�/ZSJ�����������UQJILJI�WJ[JSZJX�YTYFQJI�FUUWT]NRFYJQ^�	������RNQQNTS��FSI�YMJ�WJVZNWJI�IJGY�XJW[NHJ�
UF^RJSYX�WJUWJXJSYJI����
�TK�YMJ�UQJILJI�WJ[JSZJX��9MJ�UQJILJ�TK�WJ[JSZJX�WJRFNSX�NS�JKKJHY�ZSYNQ�YMJ�IJGY�XJW[NHJ�
WJVZNWJRJSYX�FWJ�XFYNXܪJI�NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW������
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At June 30, 2025, total future debt service requirements for bond principal and interest are approximately 
$226.9 million, as follows:

2013 Series 2015 Series 2025 Series Total
Years 
ending
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2026 $ - $ 180,600 $1,340,000 $ 119,321 $ - $ 3,616,113 $ 1,340,000 $ 3,916,034

���� - 180,600 ��������� 90,414 1,585,000 5,523,625 2,955,000 ���������

2028 - 180,600 1,400,000 ������ ��������� 5,440,500 3,140,000 ���������

2029 - 180,600 1,430,000 ������ 2,210,000 ��������� 3,640,000 5,553,051

2030 - 180,600 1,455,000 - 3,985,000 ��������� 5,440,000 ���������

2031-2035 2,965,000 814,050 - - ���������� ���������� 23,240,000 ����������

2036-2040 3,055,000 - - - 12,460,000 ���������� 15,515,000 ����������
2041-2045 - - - - 15,995,000 15,332,625 15,995,000 15,332,625
2046-2050 - - - - 20,530,000 ���������� 20,530,000 ����������
2051-2055 - - - - ��������� ��������� ��������� ���������
2056 - - - - ���������� 693,125 ���������� 693,125

Total $6,020,000 	 ��������� $6,995,000 $ 301,310 $ 111,265,000 	 ����������� $ 124,280,000 $ 102,585,848

Debt service requirements for future principal payments are presented in the accompanying Statements of Net 
Position, inclusive of the following amounts:

June 30, 2025 June 30, 2024

USFRTWYN_JI�'TSI�5WJRNZRX����� 	 ��������� $ -
USFRTWYN_JI�'TSI�5WJRNZRX����� - 353,849

Total 	 ��������� $ 353,849

Deferred losses on refunding are presented in the accompanying Statements of Net Position, as follows:

June 30, 2025 June 30, 2024

Deferred Amounts on 2015 Refunding $ 9,833 $ 14,649
Deferred Amounts on 2013 Refunding 56,942 1,151,948

Total 	 ������ 	 ���������

7 Virginia Resources Authority Loans Payable 
VRA loans were issued under the Virginia Water Facilities Revolving Fund (VWFRF) program and used for the 
purpose of construction for expansion and improvements at the HLM AWRF. Each loan is secured by a pledge of 
revenues from the Authority’s water and wastewater system, with interest and principal payable on a semi-annual 
GFXNX��&QQ�GFQFSHJX�T\JI�YT�;7&�ZSIJW�YMJܪ�SFSHNSL�FLWJJRJSYX�FWJ�IJJRJI�YT�GJ�UFWNY^�NSIJGYJISJXX�ZSIJW�YMJ�
terms of the Local Master Indenture.

At June 30, 2025, VRA loans payable consist of the following: 

1TFSX�YTܪ�SFSHJ�YMJ�J]UFSXNTS�FSI�ZULWFIJ�TK�YMJ�-12�&<7+�

(F)�/ZSJ������QTFS���9MJ�TZYXYFSINSL�QTFS�GFQFSHJ�FY�/ZSJ����������\FX�	������������\NYM�NSYJWJXY�UF^FGQJ�
FY�����
�(WJIZHJI�KWTR�����
�JKKJHYN[J�8JUYJRGJW��������)�UJW�FSSZR��FSI�UWNSHNUFQ�IZJ�YMWTZLM�2FWHM������

(G)�/ZSJ������QTFS���9MJ�TZYXYFSINSL�QTFS�GFQFSHJ�FY�/ZSJ����������\FX�	������������\NYM�NSYJWJXY�UF^FGQJ�
FY�����
�(WJIZHJI�KWTR�����
�JKKJHYN[J�8JUYJRGJW��������)�UJW�FSSZR��FSI�UWNSHNUFQ�IZJ�YMWTZLM�2FWHM�������
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(c) March 2022 loan - The outstanding loan balance at June 30, 2025 was $51,186,818. In February 2022 the 
&ZYMTWNY^�HQTXJI�TS�F�	������RNQQNTS�QTFS�\NYM�;7&�YTܪ�SFSHJ�FS�ZULWFIJ�TK�YMJ�-12�&<7+��9MNX�QTFS�\NQQ�GJ�
drawn against for a 5-year period to fund the plant upgrades as they are done. During this period the outstanding 
GFQFSHJ�\NQQ�FHHWZJ�NSYJWJXY�FY�����
�FSI�NSYJWJXY�TSQ^�UF^RJSYX�FWJ�UFNI�GN�FSSZFQQ^�G^�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�FSI�
GJLFS�NS�2FWHM�������&Y�YMJ�JSI�TK�YMJ���^JFW�IWF\�UJWNTI��GJLNSSNSL�2FWHM������YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�\NQQ�UF^�UJW�
an amortization schedule on the outstanding principal balance of up to $100.0 million, with interest payable 
FY�����
�UJW�FSSZR��FSI�UWNSHNUFQ�IZJ�YMWTZLM�2FWHM������

At June 30, 2025, total future VRA debt service requirements for principal and interest are approximately 
	�����RNQQNTS��FX�KTQQT\X�

2007 Loan 2009 Loan 2022 Loan Total

Years ending

June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2026 $ 2,698,314 	 ������� $ 2,413,490 $ 214,400 $ - $ - $ 5,111,804 	 �������

���� ��������� ������� ��������� ������� 2,621,500 500,000 ��������� �������

2028 ��������� ������ 2,501,555 126,335 5,282,388 960,612 ���������� ���������

2029 2,834,666 ������ ��������� 81,104 5,335,344 ������� ���������� 1,023,888

2030 - - 2,592,835 35,056 5,388,830 854,169 ��������� 889,225

2031-2045 - - - - ���������� 406,860 ���������� 406,860

Total $ 11,064,466 	 ������� 	 ���������� 	 ������� $ 51,186,818 $ 3,629,298 	 ���������� 	 ���������

8 Debt
Change in long-term debt obligations for the year ended June 30, 2025, are as follows:

Balance
 June 30, 2023 FY 2024 Additions

FY 2024 
Reductions

Balance
 June 30, 2024

FY 2025 
Additions

FY 2025 
Reductions

Balance
 June 30, 2025

Due Within
 One Year

Bonds Payable:
Revenue 
Bonds $ 42,870,000 $ - $ (3,575,000) $ 39,295,000 $ 111,265,000 $ (26,280,000) $ 124,280,000 $ 1,340,000

Deferred Amounts:
Issuance 
Premiums 556,647 - (202,798) 353,849 7,676,637 (445,251) 7,585,235 –

Total Bonds
  Payable 43,426,647 - (3,777,798) 39,648,849 118,941,637 (26,725,251) 131,865,235 1,340,000
VRA Loans
  Payable 35,229,809 15,025,672 (5,711,366) 44,544,115 36,030,815 (5,811,852) 74,763,078 5,111,804
Total Debt 	 ���������� 	 ���������� $ (9,489,164) $ 84,192,964 	 ����������� 	(����������) $ 206,628,313 $ 6,451,804

+WTR�YNRJ�YT�YNRJ��YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�RF^�NSHZW�IJGY�YMWTZLM�GTSI�NXXZFSHJX�[NF�YMJ�HFUNYFQ�RFWPJYX��FSIܪ�SFSHNSL�
FLWJJRJSYX�(QTFSX)�\NYM�;7&��9MJ�UWTHJJIX�TK�FQQ�GTWWT\NSLX�KWTR�YMJXJ�XTZWHJX�FWJ�ZXJI�YTܪ�SFSHJ�YMJ�FHVZNXNYNTS�
or development of capital assets, or to retire prior debt related to capital assets. Accordingly, all amounts reported 
FX�'TSIX�5F^FGQJ�FSI�;7&�1TFSX�5F^FGQJ�(XJJ�3TYJX���FSI��)�FWJ�NSHQZIJI�NS�YMJ�HFQHZQFYNTS�TK�SJY�NS[JXYRJSY�NS�
capital assets on the accompanying Statements of Net Position.

9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�TZYXYFSINSL�STYJX�KWTR�INWJHY�GTWWT\NSLX�TK�	�����RNQQNTS�HTSYFNS�F�HJWYFNS�UWT[NXNTS�YMFY�NS�YMJ�
event of default, outstanding amounts become immediately due if the Authority is unable to make a payment.

The Authority’s outstanding notes from direct borrowings are secured with collateral of the underlying investments. 
These borrowings contain (1) a provision that in the event of default, the timing of repayment of not less than 
Y\JSY^ܪ�[J�UJWHJSY�NS�FLLWJLFYJ�UWNSHNUFQ�FRTZSY�TK�YMJ�TZYXYFSINSL�FRTZSYX�GJHTRJ�NRRJINFYJQ^�IZJ�NK�UQJILJI�
revenues during the year are less than 120 percent of debt service coverage due in the following year and (2) by notice 
to the Authority, declare the entire principal and interest due and payable immediately. The Authority’s outstanding 
notes from direct borrowings contain a subjective acceleration clause that allows the lender to accelerate payment 
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of the entire principal amount to become immediately due if the lender determines that a material adverse change 
has occurred.

9 Long-Term Liabilities
Long-Term liabilities activity for the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024 are as follows:

Balance
June 30, 2023

FY 2024 
Additions

FY 2024 
Reductions

Balance
 June 30, 2024

FY 2025 
Additions

FY 2025 
Reductions

Balance
 June 30, 2025

Due Within 
One Year

Compensated
  Absences $ 5,399,348 $ 842,365 $ (343,452) $ 5,898,261 $ 702,682 $ (387,866) $ 6,213,077 $ 877,020

Lease Payable 72,702 1,085,969 (72,702) 1,085,969 - (194,460) 891,509 214,205

SBITA Payable 73,030 - (29,095) 43,935 - (30,672) 13,263 13,263
Other Post
  Employment
  Benefits Liability 13,843,223 1,074,876 (4,064,292) 10,853,807 868,272 (1,769,328) 9,952,751 888,941
GLI Other Post
  Employment
  Benefits Liability 1,514,633 107,323 (77,000) 1,544,956 (27,255) (127,820) 1,389,881 -
HIC Other Post
  Employment
  Benefits Liability 
(asset) (169,765) 18,543 (76,553) (227,775) (11,642) (60,378) (299,795) -
Net Pension
  Liability (asset) (3,237,019) 6,749,557 (4,857,930) (1,345,392) 7,109,389 (9,398,680) (3,634,683) -
Total Long-term
  Liabilities $ 17,496,152 $ 9,878,633 $ (9,521,024) $ 17,853,761 $ 8,641,446 $ (11,969,204) $ 14,526,003 $ 1,993,429

10 Pension Plan and Other Postemployment Benefits

I. Virginia Retirement System (VRS)
(a) Plan Description 
The Authority contributes to an agent multiple-employer pension plan administered by the Virginia Retirement 
System (VRS), which acts as a common investment and administrative agent for political subdivisions in the 
Commonwealth of Virginia.

All full-time, permanent employees of the Authority are automatically covered by the VRS Retirement Plan upon 
employment. Employees earn one month of service credit for each month they are employed and for which they and 
YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�UF^�HTSYWNGZYNTSX�YT�;78��*RUQT^JJX�FWJ�JQNLNGQJ�YT�UZWHMFXJ�UWNTW�XJW[NHJ�GFXJI�TS�XUJHNܪH�HWNYJWNF�
FX�IJܪSJI�NS�YMJ�Code of Virginia, as amended. Eligible prior service that may be purchased includes prior public 
service, active military service, certain periods of leave and previously refunded service.

;78�FIRNSNXYJWX�YMWJJ�INKKJWJSY�GJSJܪY�XYWZHYZWJX�KTW�HT[JWJI�JRUQT^JJX�ў�5QFS����5QFS����FSI�-^GWNI��9MJ�XUJHNܪH�
information for each plan and the eligibility for covered groups within each plan are set out below: 
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Retirement Plan Provisions
Plan 1 Plan 2 Hybrid Retirement Plan

About Plan 1 About Plan 2 About the Hybrid Retirement Plan
5QFS���NX�F�IJܪSJI�GJSJܪY�UQFS��
9MJ�WJYNWJRJSY�GJSJܪY�NX�GFXJI�
on a member’s age, service credit 
FSI�F[JWFLJܪ�SFQ�HTRUJSXFYNTS�FY�
retirement using a formula.

5QFS���NX�F�IJܪSJI�GJSJܪY�UQFS��
9MJ�WJYNWJRJSY�GJSJܪY�NX�GFXJI�
on a member’s age, service credit 
FSI�F[JWFLJܪ�SFQ�HTRUJSXFYNTS�FY�
retirement using a formula.

The Hybrid Retirement Plan combines 
YMJ�KJFYZWJX�TK�F�IJܪSJI�GJSJܪY�UQFS�
FSI�F�IJܪSJI�HTSYWNGZYNTS�UQFS�
Ѭ�9MJ�IJܪSJI�GJSJܪY�NX�GFXJI�TS�F�
member’s age, service credit and 
F[JWFLJܪ�SFQ�HTRUJSXFYNTS�FY�
retirement using a formula.
Ѭ�9MJ�GJSJܪY�KWTR�YMJ�IJܪSJI�
contribution component of the 
plan depends on the member and 
employer contributions made to the 
plan and the investment performance 
of those contributions.
Ѭ�.S�FIINYNTS�YT�YMJ�RTSYMQ^�GJSJܪY�
UF^RJSY�UF^FGQJ�KWTR�YMJ�IJܪSJI�
GJSJܪY�UQFS�FY�WJYNWJRJSY��F�RJRGJW�
may start receiving distributions from 
YMJ�GFQFSHJ�NS�YMJ�IJܪSJI�HTSYWNGZYNTS�
FHHTZSY��WJܫJHYNSL�YMJ�HTSYWNGZYNTSX��
investment gains or losses, and any 
required fees.

Eligible Members Eligible Members Eligible Members
Employees are in Plan 1 if their 
membership date is before 
July 1, 2010, and they were vested as 
of January 1, 2013, and they have not 
taken a refund.

Employees are in Plan 2 if their 
membership date is on or after 
July 1, 2010, or their membership date 
is before July 1, 2010, and they were 
not vested as of January 1, 2013.

Employees are in the Hybrid 
Retirement Plan if their membership 
date is on or after January 1, 2014. 
This includes:
Ѭ�5TQNYNHFQ�XZGIN[NXNTS�JRUQT^JJX�
• Members in Plan 1 or 
Plan 2 who elected to opt into the 
plan during the election window held 
January 1-April 30, 2014; the plan’s 
effective date for opt-in members was 
July 1, 2014
��3TS�*QNLNGQJ�2JRGJWX
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Retirement Plan Provisions
Plan 1 Plan 2 Hybrid Retirement Plan

Hybrid Opt-In Election Hybrid Opt-In Election Some memebers are not eligible to 
participate in the Hybrid Retirement 
Plan. They include: • Political 
subdivision members who are covered 
G^�JSMFSHJI�GJSJܪYX�KTW�MF_FWITZX�
duty members. Those members 
eligible for an optional retirement plan 
(ORP) must elect the ORP plan or 
the Hybrid Retirement Plan. If these 
members have prior service under 
Plan 1 or Plan 2, they are not eligible 
to elect the Hybrid Retirement Plan 
and must select Plan 1 or Plan 2 (as 
applicable) or ORP.

VRS non-hazardous duty covered 
Plan 1 members were allowed to 
make an irrevocable decision to 
opt into the Hybrid Retirement Plan 
during a special election window held 
January 1 through April 30, 2014.

Eligible Plan 2 members were allowed 
to make an irrevocable decision to 
opt into the Hybrid Retirement Plan 
during a special election window held 
January 1 through April 30, 2014.

The Hybrid Retirement Plan’s effective 
date for eligible Plan 1 members who 
opted in was July 1, 2014.

The Hybrid Retirement Plan’s effective 
date for eligible Plan 2 members who 
opted in was July 1, 2014.

If eligible deferred members returned 
to work during the election window, 
they were also eligible to opt into the 
Hybrid Retirement Plan.

If eligible deferred members returned 
to work during the election window, 
they were also eligible to opt into the 
Hybrid Retirement Plan.

Members who were eligible for 
an optional retirement plan (ORP) 
and had prior service under Plan 1 
were not eligible to elect the Hybrid 
Retirement Plan and remain as Plan 1 
or ORP.

Members who were eligible for an 
optional retirement plan (ORP) and 
have prior service under Plan 2 
were not eligible to elect the Hybrid 
Retirement Plan and remain as Plan 2 
or ORP.

Retirement Contribution Retirement Contributions Retirement Contributions
2JRGJWX�HTSYWNGZYJ��
�TK�YMJNW
compensation each month to their 
member contribution account through 
a pre-tax salary reduction. Member 
contributions are tax-deferred until 
they are withdrawn as part of a 
WJYNWJRJSY�GJSJܪY�TW�FX�F�WJKZSI��
The employer makes a separate 
actuarially determined contribution to 
VRS for all covered employees. VRS 
invests both member and employer 
contributions to provide funding for 
YMJ�KZYZWJ�GJSJܪY�UF^RJSY�

Same as Plan 1. &�RJRGJWѣX�WJYNWJRJSY�GJSJܪY�NX�
funded through mandatory and 
voluntary contributions made by the 
member and the employer to both 
YMJ�IJܪSJI�GJSJܪY�FSI�YMJ�IJܪSJI�
contribution components of the plan.
Mandatory contributions are based 
on a percentage of the employee’s 
creditable compensation and are 
required from both the member 
and the employer. Additionally, 
members may choose to make 
[TQZSYFW^�HTSYWNGZYNTSX�YT�YMJ�IJܪSJI�
contribution component of the plan, 
and the employer is required to 
match those voluntary contributions 
FHHTWINSL�YT�XUJHNܪJI�UJWHJSYFLJX�
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Retirement Plan Provisions
Plan 1 Plan 2 Hybrid Retirement Plan

Service Credit Service Credit Service Credit
Service credit includes active service. 
Members earn service credit for 
each month they are employed in a 
covered position. It also may include 
credit for prior service the member 
has purchased or additional service 
credit the member was granted. A 
member’s total service credit is one 
of the factors used to determine 
their eligibility for retirement and to 
HFQHZQFYJ�YMJNW�WJYNWJRJSY�GJSJܪY��
It also may count toward eligibility 
for the health insurance credit in 
retirement, if the employer offers the 
health insurance credit.

Same as Plan 1. Defined Benefit Component:
USIJW�YMJ�IJܪSJI�GJSJܪY�HTRUTSJSY�
of the plan, service credit includes 
active service. Members earn 
service credit for each month they 
are employed in a covered position. 
It also may include credit for prior 
service the member as purchased or 
additional service credit the member 
was granted. A member’s total 
service credit is one of the factors 
used to determine their eligibility 
for retirement and to calculate 
YMJNW�WJYNWJRJSY�GJSJܪY��.Y�FQXT�RF^�
count oward eligibility for the health 
insurance credit in retirement, if the 
employer offers the health insurance 
credit.
Defined Contributions Component:
USIJW�YMJ�IJܪSJI�HTSYWNGZYNTS�
component, service credit is used to 
determine vesting for the employer 
contribution portion of the plan.
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Retirement Plan Provisions
Plan 1 Plan 2 Hybrid Retirement Plan

Vesting Vesting Vesting
Vesting is the minimum length of 
service a member needs to qualify for 
F�KZYZWJ�WJYNWJRJSY�GJSJܪY��2JRGJWX�
become vested when they have at 
QJFXYܪ�[J�^JFWX�(���RTSYMX)�TK�XJW[NHJ�
credit. Vesting means members 
are eligible to qualify for retirement 
if they meet the age and service 
requirements for their plan. Members 
also must be vested to receive a full 
refund of their member contribution 
account balance if they leave 
employment and request a refund.

Same as Plan 1. Defined Benefit Component:
)JܪSJI�GJSJܪY�[JXYNSL�NX�YMJ�
minimum length of service a 
member needs to qualify for a future 
WJYNWJRJSY�GJSJܪY��2JRGJWX�FWJ�
[JXYJI�ZSIJW�YMJ�IJܪSJI�GJSJܪY�
component of the Hybrid Retirement 
5QFS�\MJS�YMJ^�WJFHMܪ�[J�^JFWX�
(60 months) of service credit. Plan 1 
TW�5QFS���RJRGJWX�\NYM�FY�QJFXYܪ�[J�
years (60 months) of service credit 
who opted into the Hybrid Retirement 
5QFS�WJRFNS�[JXYJI�NS�YMJ�IJܪSJI�
GJSJܪY�HTRUTSJSY�

2JRGJWX�FWJ�FQ\F^X����
�[JXYJI�NS�
the contributions that they make.

Defined Contributions Component:
)JܪSJI�HTSYWNGZYNTS�[JXYNSL�WJKJWX�
to the minimum length of service 
a member needs to be eligible to 
withdraw the employer contributions 
KWTR�YMJ�IJܪSJI�HTSYWNGZYNTS�
component of the plan.
2JRGJWX�FWJ�FQ\F^X����
�[JXYJI�NS�
the contributions that they make.
UUTS�WJYNWJRJSY�TW�QJF[NSL�HT[JWJI�
employment, a member is eligible to 
withdraw a percentage of employer 
HTSYWNGZYNTSX�YT�YMJ�IJܪSJI�
contribution component of the plan, 
based on service.
Ѭ�&KYJW�Y\T�^JFWX��F�RJRGJW�NX���
�
[JXYJI�FSI�RF^�\NYMIWF\���
�TK�
employer contributions.
Ѭ�&KYJW�YMWJJ�^JFWX��F�RJRGJW�NX���
�
[JXYJI�FSI�RF^�\NYMIWF\���
�TK�
employer contributions.
• After four or more years, a 
RJRGJW�NX����
�[JXYJI�FSI�
RF^�\NYMIWF\����
�TK�JRUQT^JW�
contributions.
Distribution is not required, except as 
LT[JWSJI�G^�QF\�ZSYNQ�FLJ����
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Retirement Plan Provisions
Plan 1 Plan 2 Hybrid Retirement Plan

Calculating the Benefit Calculating the Benefit Calculating the Benefit
9MJ�'FXNH�'JSJܪY�NX�IJYJWRNSJI�ZXNSL�
YMJ�F[JWFLJܪ�SFQ�HTRUJSXFYNTS��
service credit and plan multiplier.

8JJ�IJܪSNYNTS�ZSIJW�5QFS��� Defined Benefit Component:
8JJ�IJܪSNYNTS�ZSIJW�5QFS���

An early retirement reduction is 
applied to this amount if the member 
NX�WJYNWNSL�\NYM�F�WJIZHJI�GJSJܪY��
In cases where the member has 
elected an optional form of retirement 
UF^RJSY��FS�TUYNTS�KFHYTW�XUJHNܪH�YT�
the option chosen is then applied.

Defined Contribution Component:
9MJ�GJSJܪY�NX�GFXJI�TS�HTSYWNGZYNTSX�
made by the member and any 
matching contributions made by 
the employer, plus net investment 
earnings on those contributions.

Average Final Compensation Average Final Compensation Average Final Compensation
&�RJRGJWѣX�F[JWFLJܪ�SFQ�
compensation is the average of 
the 36 consecutive months of highest 
compensation as a covered employee.

&�RJRGJWѣX�F[JWFLJܪ�SFQ�
compensation is the average of 
the 60 consecutive months of highest 
compensation as a covered employee.

Same as Plan 2. It is used in the 
WJYNWJRJSY�KTWRZQF�KTW�YMJ�IJܪSJI�
GJSJܪY�HTRUTSJSY�TK�YMJ�UQFS�

Service Retirement Multiplier Service Retirement Multiplier Service Retirement Multiplier
The retirement multiplier is a factor 
used in the formula to determine a 
�Y��9MJ�WJYNWJRJSYܪSFQ�WJYNWJRJSY�GJSJܪ
multiplier for non- hazardous duty 
RJRGJWX�NX�����
�

Same as Plan 1 for service earned, 
purchased or granted prior to 
January 1, 2013. For non-hazardous 
duty members the retirement 
RZQYNUQNJW�NX�����
�KTW�XJW[NHJ�HWJINY�
earned, purchased or granted on or 
after January 1, 2013.

Defined Benefit Component:
The retirement multiplier for the 
IJܪSJI�GJSJܪY�HTRUTSJSY�NX�����
�
For members who opted into the 
Hybrid Retirement Plan from Plan 1 or 
Plan 2, the applicable multipliers for 
those plans will be used to calculate 
YMJ�WJYNWJRJSY�GJSJܪY�KTW�XJW[NHJ�
credited in those plans.
Defined Contribution Component:
Not applicable.
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Retirement Plan Provisions
Plan 1 Plan 2 Hybrid Retirement Plan

Normal Retirement Age Normal Retirement Age Normal Retirement Age
Age 65. Normal Social Security retirement age. Defined Benefit Component:

Same as Plan 2.
Defined Contribution Component:
Members are eligible to receive 
distributions upon leaving 
employment, subject to restrictions.

Earliest Unreduced Retirement 
Eligibility

Earliest Unreduced Retirement 
Eligibility

Earliest Unreduced Retirement 
Eligibility

&LJ����\NYM�FY�QJFXYܪ�[J�^JFWX�
(60 months) of service credit or 
at age 50 with at least 30 years of 
service credit.

Normal Social Security retirement age 
\NYM�FY�QJFXYܪ�[J�^JFWX�(���RTSYMX)�TK�
service credit or when their age and 
service equal 90.

Defined Benefit Component:
Normal Social Security retirement 
FLJ�FSI�MF[J�FY�QJFXYܪ�[J�^JFWX�
(60 months) of service credit or when 
their age and service equal 90.
Defined Contribution Component:
Members are eligible to receive 
distributions upon leaving 
employment, subject to restrictions.

Earliest Reduced Retirement 
Eligibility

Earliest Reduced Retirement 
Eligibility

Earliest Reduced Retirement 
Eligibility

&LJ����\NYM�FY�QJFXYܪ�[J�^JFWX�
(60 months) of service credit or 
age 50 with at least 10 years of 
service credit.

&LJ����\NYM�FY�QJFXYܪ�[J�^JFWX�
(60 months) of service credit.

Defined Benefit Component:
&LJ����\NYM�FY�QJFXYܪ�[J�^JFWX�
(60 months) of service credit.
Defined Contribution Component:
Members are eligible to receive 
distributions upon leaving 
employment, subject to restrictions.
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Retirement Plan Provisions
Plan 1 Plan 2 Hybrid Retirement Plan

Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) in 
Retirement

Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) in 
Retirement

Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) in 
Retirement

The Cost-of-Living Adjustment  
((41&)�RFYHMJX�YMJܪ�WXY��
�NSHWJFXJ�
in the Consumer Price Index for all 
UWGFS�(TSXZRJWX�((5.�U)�FSI�MFQK�TK�
FS^�FIINYNTSFQ�NSHWJFXJ�(ZU�YT��
)�ZU�
YT�F�RF]NRZR�(41&�TK��
�

The Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) 
RFYHMJX�YMJܪ�WXY��
�NSHWJFXJ�NS�
YMJ�(5.�U�FSI�MFQK�TK�FS^�FIINYNTSFQ�
NSHWJFXJ�(ZU�YT��
)��KTW�F�RF]NRZR�
(41&�TK��
�

Defined Benefit Component:
Same as Plan 2
Defined Contribution Component:
Not applicable

Eligibility: Eligibility: Eligibility:
For members who retire with an 
ZSWJIZHJI�GJSJܪY�TW�\NYM�F�WJIZHJI�
GJSJܪY�\NYM�FY�QJFXY����^JFWX�TK�
service credit, the COLA will go into 
effect on July 1 after one full calendar 
year from the retirement date.

Same as Plan 1. Same as Plan 1 and Plan 2.

For members who retire with a 
WJIZHJI�GJSJܪY�FSI�\MT�MF[J�QJXX�
than 20 years of service credit, the 
COLA will go into effect on July 1 
after one calendar year following the 
unreduced retirement eligibility date.
Exceptions to COLA Effective Dates: Exceptions to COLA Effective Dates: Exceptions to COLA Effective Dates:
The COLA is effective July 1 following 
one full calendar year (January 1 
to December 31) under any of the 
following circumstances:

Same as Plan 1 Same as Plan 1 and Plan 2.

Ѭ�9MJ�RJRGJW�NX�\NYMNSܪ�[J�^JFWX�TK�
qualifying for an unreduced retirement 
GJSJܪY�FX�TK�/FSZFW^���������
• The member retires on disability.
• The member retires directly from 
short-term or long-term disability.
• The member is involuntarily 
separated from employment for 
causes other than job performance 
or misconduct and is eligible to retire 
under the Workforce Transition Act or 
YMJ�9WFSXNYNTSFQ�'JSJܪYX�5WTLWFR�
• The member dies in service and the 
RJRGJWѣX�XZW[N[TW�TW�GJSJܪHNFW^�NX�
eligible for a monthly death-in-service 
GJSJܪY�
• The COLA will go into effect on 
July 1 following one full calendar year 
(January 1 to December 31) from the 
IFYJ�YMJ�RTSYMQ^�GJSJܪY�GJLNSX�
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Retirement Plan Provisions
Plan 1 Plan 2 Hybrid Retirement Plan

Disability Coverage Disability Coverage Disability Coverage
Members who are eligible to be
considered for disability retirement 
and retire on disability, the retirement 
RZQYNUQNJW�NX�����
�TS�FQQ�XJW[NHJ��
regardless of when it was earned, 
purchased or granted.

Members who are eligible to be
considered for disability retirement 
and retire on disability, the retirement 
RZQYNUQNJW�NX�����
�TS�FQQ�XJW[NHJ��
regardless of when it was earned, 
purchased or granted.

Employees of political subdivisions 
(including Plan 1 and Plan 2 opt-ins) 
participate in the Virginia Local 
Disability Program (VLDP) unless 
their local governing body provides an 
employer-paid comparable program 
for its plan members.
Hybrid plan members (including 
Plan 1 and Plan 2 opt-ins) covered 
under VLDP are subject to a one-year 
waiting period before becoming 
eligible for non-work-related disability 
GJSJܪYX�

Purchase of Prior Service Purchase of Prior Service Purchase of Prior Service
Members may be eligible to purchase 
service from previous public 
employment, active duty military 
service, an eligible period of leave 
or VRS refunded service as service 
credit in their plan. Prior service credit 
counts toward vesting, eligibility for 
retirement and the health insurance 
credit. Only active members are 
eligible to purchase prior service. 
Members also may be eligible to 
purchase periods of leave without pay.

Same as Plan 1. Defined Benefit Component:
Same as Plan 1, with the following 
exception:
• Hybrid Retirement Plan members are 
ineligible for ported service.
Defined Contribution Component:
Not applicable.
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Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

&X�TK�YMJ�/ZSJ����������FHYZFWNFQ�[FQZFYNTS��YMJ�KTQQT\NSL�JRUQT^JJX�\JWJ�HT[JWJI�G^�YMJ�GJSJܪY�YJWRX�TK�YMJ�;78�
Retirement Plan:

Number
Active members: 346
.SFHYN[J�RJRGJWX�TW�YMJNW�GJSJܪHNFWNJX

HZWWJSYQ^�WJHJN[NSL�GJSJܪYX 164
Inactive members:

Vested 45
Non-vested 102
Active elsewhere in VRS 44
Total covered employees ���

Contributions 

The contribution requirement for active employees is governed by Section 51.1-145 of the Code of Virginia, as 
amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding options provided to political subdivisions by the Virginia 
,JSJWFQ� &XXJRGQ �̂� *RUQT^JJX� FWJ� WJVZNWJI� YT� HTSYWNGZYJ� �
� TK� YMJNW� FSSZFQ� GFXJ� HTRUJSXFYNTS� YT\FWI� YMJNW�
WJYNWJRJSY��5WNTW�YT�/ZQ^����������FQQ�TW�UFWY�TK�YMJ��
�RJRGJW�HTSYWNGZYNTS�RF^�MF[J�GJJS�FXXZRJI�G^�YMJ�JRUQT^JW��
'JLNSSNSL�/ZQ^���������SJ\�JRUQT^JJX�\JWJ�WJVZNWJI�YT�UF^�YMJ��
�RJRGJW�HTSYWNGZYNTS��.S�FIINYNTS��KTW�J]NXYNSL�
JRUQT^JJX��JRUQT^JWX�\JWJ�WJVZNWJI�YT�GJLNS�RFPNSL�YMJ�JRUQT^JJ�UF^�YMJ��
�RJRGJW�HTSYWNGZYNTS��9MNX�HTZQI�
be phased in over a period of up to 5 years and the employer was required to provide a salary increase equal to the 
amount of the increase in the employee-paid member contribution.

9MJ� &ZYMTWNY^ѣX� HTSYWFHYZFQQ^� WJVZNWJI� HTSYWNGZYNTS� WFYJ� KTW� �XHFQܪ ^JFW� ����� \FX� ���
� TK� HT[JWJI� JRUQT^JJ�
compensation. This rate was based on an actuarially determined rate from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2023. 
9MNX�WFYJ��\MJS�HTRGNSJI�\NYM�JRUQT^JJ�HTSYWNGZYNTSX��\FX�J]UJHYJI�YTܪ�SFSHJ�YMJ�HTXYX�TK�GJSJܪYX�JFWSJI�G^�
FS�JRUQT^JJ�IZWNSL�YMJ�^JFW��\NYM�FS�FIINYNTSFQ�FRTZSY�YTܪ�SFSHJ�FS^�ZSKZSIJI�FHHWZJI�QNFGNQNY �̂�(TSYWNGZYNTSX�YT�
the pension plan were $2.9 million and $2.8 million for each of the years ended June 30, 2025 and June 30, 2024, 
respectively.

9MJ�IJܪSJI�HTSYWNGZYNTSX�HTRUTSJSY�TK�YMJ�-^GWNI�UQFS�NSHQZIJX�RJRGJW�FSI�JRUQT^JW�RFSIFYTW^�FSI�[TQZSYFW^�
HTSYWNGZYNTSX��9MJ�-^GWNI�UQFS�RJRGJW�RZXY�HTSYWNGZYJ�F�RFSIFYTW^�WFYJ�TK��
�TK�YMJNW�HT[JWJI�UF^WTQQ��9MJ�
JRUQT^JW�RZXY�FQXT�HTSYWNGZYJ�F�RFSIFYTW^�WFYJ�TK��
�TK�YMNX�HT[JWJI�UF^WTQQ��\MNHM�YTYFQJI�	��������KTW�YMJ�^JFW�
JSIJI�/ZSJ�����������-^GWNI�UQFS�RJRGJWX�RF^�FQXT�JQJHY�YT�HTSYWNGZYJ�FS�FIINYNTSFQ�[TQZSYFW^�WFYJ�TK�ZU�YT��
�TK�
YMJNW�HT[JWJI�UF^WTQQ �\MNHM�\TZQI�WJVZNWJ�YMJ�JRUQT^JW�F�RFSIFYTW^�FIINYNTSFQ�HTSYWNGZYNTS�WFYJ�TK�ZU�YT����
��9MNX�
additional employer mandatory contribution totaled $348,000 for the year ended June 30, 2025. The total Hybrid 
plan participant covered payroll totaled $26.5 million for the year ended June 30, 2025.

(b) Net Pension Liability 
The Authority’s net pension liability (NPL) was measured as of June 30, 2024. The total pension liability (TPL) 
used to calculate the NPL was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2023, using updated 
actuarial assumptions applied to all periods included in the measurement date of June 30, 2024.
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Actuarial Assumptions 

The TPL was based on an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2023, using the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost 
method and the following assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to 
the measurement date of June 30, 2024.

.SܫFYNTS ���

Salary increases,
��NSHQZINSL�NSܫFYNTS ���
�������

Investment rate of return ����
��SJY�TK��NS[JXYRJSY�J]UJSXJX
Mortality Rates

A version of the Pub-2010 Mortality Tables (amount-weighted) with fully 
LJSJWFYNTSFQ�RTWYFQNY^�NRUWT[JRJSYX�UWTOJHYJI�ZXNSL���
�TK�YMJ�25������
projection scale.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2024 valuation were based upon a four-year Experience Review 
for the period ending June 30, 2020, as adopted by the VRS Board of Trustees at its April 20, 2021 meeting.
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return
The long-term expected rate of return on VRS investments was determined using a log-normal distribution analysis 
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of investment expense 
FSI�NSܫFYNTS)�FWJ�IJ[JQTUJI�KTW�JFHM�RFOTW�FXXJY�HQFXX��9MJXJ�WFSLJX�FWJ�HTRGNSJI�YT�UWTIZHJ�YMJ�QTSL�YJWR�
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage 
FSI�G^�FIINSL�J]UJHYJI�NSܫFYNTS��9MJ�YFWLJY�FXXJY�FQQTHFYNTS�FSI�GJXY�JXYNRFYJX�TK�FWNYMRJYNH�WJFQ�WFYJX�TK�WJYZWS�
for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class (Strategy)
Target 

Allocation

Arithmetic
Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Return

Weighted Average
Long-Term Expected

Rate of Return*

Public Equity �����
 ����
 ����

Fixed Income 16.00 5.40 0.86
Credit Strategies 16.00 8.10 1.30
Real Assets 15.00 ���� 1.08
Private Equity 15.00 ���� 1.31
PIP - Private Investment Partnership 1.00 8.00 0.08
Diversifying Strategies 6.00 5.80 0.35
Cash 2.00 3.00 0.06
Leverage (3.00) 3.50 (0.11)
Total ������
 ����


*]UJHYJI�FWNYMRJYNH�STRNSFQ�WJYZWS� ����


��9MJ�FGT[J�FQQTHFYNTS�UWT[NIJX�F�TSJ�^JFW�J]UJHYJI�WJYZWS�TK�����
�(NSHQZIJX����
�NSܫFYNTS�FXXZRUYNTS)��-T\J[JW��TSJ�^JFW�WJYZWSX�IT�STY�
take into account the volatility present in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term expected return for the system, stochastic 
projections are employed to model future returns under various economic conditions. These results provide a range of returns over various 
YNRJ�UJWNTIX�YMFY�ZQYNRFYJQ^�UWT[NIJ�F�RJINFS�WJYZWS�TK����
��NSHQZINSL�J]UJHYJI�NSܫFYNTS�TK����
��4S�/ZSJ�����������YMJ�;78�'TFWI�JQJHYJI�
F�QTSL�YJWR�WFYJ�TK�����
�\MNHM�NX�WTZLMQ^�FY�YMJ���YM�UJWHJSYNQJ�TK�J]UJHYJI�QTSL�YJWR�WJXZQYX�TK�YMJ�;78�KZSI�FXXJY�FQQTHFYNTS�FY�YMFY�
YNRJ��UWT[NINSL�F�RJINFS�WJYZWS�TK�����
��NSHQZINSL�J]UJHYJI�NSܫFYNTS�TK����
�

Discount Rate 

9MJ�INXHTZSY�WFYJ�ZXJI�YT�RJFXZWJ�YMJ�951�\FX�����
��9MJ�UWTOJHYNTS�TK�HFXMܫ�T\X�ZXJI�YT�IJYJWRNSJ�YMJ�INXHTZSY�
rate assumed that System member contributions will be made per the VRS Statutes and the employer contributions 
will be made in accordance with the VRS funding policy at rates equal to the difference between actuarially 
determined contribution rates adopted by the VRS Board of Trustees and the member rate. 
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+WTR�/ZQ^���������TS��UFWYNHNUFYNSL�JRUQT^JWX�FWJ�FXXZRJI�YT�HTSYWNGZYJ����
�TK�YMJ�FHYZFWNFQQ^�IJYJWRNSJI�
HTSYWNGZYNTS�WFYJX��'FXJI�TS�YMTXJ�FXXZRUYNTSX��YMJ�UQFSѣXܪ�IZHNFW^�SJY�UTXNYNTS�NX�UWTOJHYJI�YT�GJ�F[FNQFGQJ�YT�RFPJ�
FQQ�UWTOJHYJI�KZYZWJ�GJSJܪY�UF^RJSYX�TK�HZWWJSY�FHYN[J�FSI�NSFHYN[J�JRUQT^JJX��9MJWJKTWJ��YMJ�QTSL�YJWR�J]UJHYJI�
WFYJ�TK�WJYZWS�\FX�FUUQNJI�YT�FQQ�UJWNTIX�TK�UWTOJHYJI�GJSJܪY�UF^RJSYX�YT�IJYJWRNSJ�YMJ�951�

(c) Changes in the Net Pension Liability (Asset)
Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension 
Liability

Plan Fiduciary
Net Pension

Net Pension
Liability (Asset)

Balances at June 30, 2023 	 ���������� 	 ���������� $ (1,345,392)
Changes for the Year:
Service cost ��������� - ���������
Interest 4,656,502 - 4,656,502
Difference between expected

and actual experience 106,634 - 106,634
Contributions - employer - ��������� (���������)
Contributions - employee - 1,450,548 (1,450,548)
Net investment income - ��������� (���������)
'JSJܪY�UF^RJSYX��NSHQZINSL�WJKZSIX

of employee contributions (���������) (���������) -
Administrative expense - (41,958) 41,958
Other changes - 1,515 (1,515)
Net changes ��������� ��������� (2,289,291)
Balances at June 30, 2024 	 ���������� 	 ���������� $ (3,634,683)

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the Authority’s NPA, using the current discount rate as well as what the Authority’s NPA 
or NPL would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage 
point higher than the current rate.

1% Decrease
(5.75%)

Current Discount
Rate (6.75%)

1% Increase
(7.75%)

Net pension liability (asset) 	 ��������� $ (3,634,683) 	 (����������)

(d) Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions

+TW�YMJ�^JFW�JSIJI�/ZSJ�����������YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�WJHTLSN_JI�UJSXNTS�J]UJSXJ�TK�	���������&Y�/ZSJ����������YMJ�
&ZYMTWNY^�FQXT�WJUTWYJI�IJKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�FSI�IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�WJQFYJI�YT�UJSXNTSX�KWTR�
the following sources:

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

Differences between expected 
and actual experience 	 ������� $ (122,259)

Net difference between projected and 
actual earnings on plan investments - (���������)

Employer contributions subsequent to the 
RJFXZWJRJSY�IFYJ� 1,393,645 -

Total $ 2,380,620 $ (2,018,054)

��)JKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�WJQFYJI�YT�UJSXNTSX�WJXZQYNSL�KWTR�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�HTSYWNGZYNTSX�XZGXJVZJSY�YT�YMJ�RJFXZWJRJSY�IFYJ�\NQQ�
be recognized as an increase of the NPA in the year ending June 30, 2026.
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4YMJW�FRTZSYX�WJUTWYJI�FX�IJKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�FSI�IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�WJQFYJI�YT�UJSXNTSX�
will be recognized in pension expense in future reporting periods as follows:

Years Ending June 30, Amount

2026 $ (1,146,110)
���� 905,456
2028 (�������)
2029 (�������)
Total 	 (���������)

Information about the VRS Retirement Plan is also available in the separately issued VRS 2024 Annual Comprehensive 
Financial Report (Annual Report). A copy of the 2024 VRS Annual Report may be downloaded from the VRS website 
at varetire.org��TW�G^�\WNYNSL�YT�YMJ�8^XYJRѣX�(MNJK�+NSFSHNFQ�4ܬHJW�FY�5�4��'T]�������7NHMRTSI��;&�������������

II. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) – Health Benefits 
(a) Plan Description 
9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^�UWT[NIJX�UTXY�WJYNWJRJSY�MJFQYM��IJSYFQ��FSI�[NXNTS�GJSJܪYX�YT�WJYNWJJX�\MT�MF[J�YJS�TW�RTWJ�^JFWX�
TK�XJW[NHJ�\NYM�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY �̂�9MJXJ�GJSJܪYX�FWJ�UWT[NIJI�KTW�NS�F�XNSLQJ�JRUQT^JW�IJܪSJI�GJSJܪY�MJFQYMHFWJ�UQFS�
FIRNSNXYJWJI�G^�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY �̂�+TW�MJFQYM�FSI�IJSYFQ�NSXZWFSHJ�HT[JWFLJ��WJYNWJJX�UF^����
�TK�YMJNW�RTSYMQ^�MJFQYM�
insurance premium less a contribution by the Authority based on their number of years of service. For vision and 
XZUUQJRJSYFQ�IJSYFQ�HT[JWFLJ��WJYNWJJX�UF^����
�TK�YMJNW�RTSYMQ^�UWJRNZRX��\NYM�ST�HTSYWNGZYNTS�RFIJ�G^�YMJ�
Authority. None of the assets in the Plan are accumulated in a trust and therefore do not meet trust accounting 
WJVZNWJRJSYX�UJW�UFWFLWFUM���TK�,&8'�8YFYJRJSY�3T������

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

&X�TK�YMJ�/ZQ^���������FHYZFWNFQ�[FQZFYNTS��YMJ�KTQQT\NSL�JRUQT^JJX�\JWJ�HT[JWJI�G^�YMJ�GJSJܪY�YJWRX�

Number

Active members 321
.SFHYN[J�RJRGJWX�TW�YMJNW�GJSJܪHNFWNJX

HZWWJSYQ^�WJHJN[NSL�GJSJܪYX 56

Total covered employees ���

(b) Total OPEB Liability (TOL) 
The Authority’s OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2025 and the total OPEB Liability was determined by 
an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2023.

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2023 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 
FXXZRUYNTSX��FUUQNJI�YT�FQQ�UJWNTIX�NSHQZIJI�NS�YMJ�RJFXZWJRJSY��ZSQJXX�TYMJW\NXJ�XUJHNܪJI��

.SܫFYNTS ���

Salary increases,
��NSHQZINSL�NSܫFYNTS ���
�������

)NXHTZSY�WFYJ� ����
�FX�TK�/ZSJ���������

���
�FX�TK�/ZSJ���������
&LJ�WJQFYJI�HQFNRX�HTXY��
Healthcare trend costs ����
�KTWܪ�XHFQ����������
�KTWܪ�XHFQ����������
�KTWܪ�XHFQ�������YMJS�LWFINSL�YT�

FS�ZQYNRFYJ�WFYJ�TK����
�KTW������FSI�QFYJW�

Mortality Rates
• Pre-retirement Pub-2010 Amount Weighted General Employee Rates projected generationally; 

females set forward 2 years. Base rates are projected generationally with a 
2TINܪJI�25������.RUWT[JRJSY�8HFQJ�YMFY�NX���
�TK�YMJ�25������WFYJX�
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• Post-retirement Pub-2010 Amount Weighted General Healthy Retiree Rates projected 
LJSJWFYNTSFQQ^ ����
�TK�WFYJX�KTW�KJRFQJX��'FXJ�WFYJX�FWJ�UWTOJHYJI�
LJSJWFYNTSFQQ^�\NYM�F�2TINܪJI�25������.RUWT[JRJSY�8HFQJ�YMFY�NX���
�TK�YMJ�
MP-2020 rates.

• Post-disablement Pub-2010 Amount Weighted General Disabled Rates projected generationally; 
males and females set forward 3 years. Base rates are projected generationally 
\NYM�F�2TINܪJI�25������.RUWT[JRJSY�8HFQJ�YMFY�NX���
�TK�YMJ�25������WFYJX�

��)NXHTZSY�WFYJX�ZXJI�YT�RJFXZWJ�941�\JWJ�GFXJI�TS�YMJ�YMJ�'TSI�'Z^JW�,JSJWFQ�4GQNLFYNTS����'TSI�2ZSNHNUFQ�.SIJ]�
���&LJ�WJQFYJI�HQFNRX�HTXY�FXXZRUYNTSX�KTW�RJINHFQ�FSI�IJSYFQ�FWJ�GFXJI�TS�QTSL�YJWR�MJFQYMHFWJ�YWJSI�WFYJX�LJSJWFYJI�G^�YMJ�,JY_JS�

Trend Model.  Inputs to the model are consistent with other assumtions used in the valuation.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2023 valuation were based on the results of the most recent 
experience study performed for VRS, which examined actual VRS experience over the four-year period ending 
June 30, 2020.

(c) Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB Liability

Balance at June 30, 2024 	 ����������
Changes for the Year:

Service cost 440,488
Interest �������
Effect of assumption changes

or other inputs (�������)
'JSJܪY�UF^RJSYX (�������)

Net changes (901,056)
Balance at June 30, 2025 	 ���������

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the Authority’s Total OPEB Liability, calculated using the current discount rate. It also 
presents what the Authority’s Total OPEB Liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate one percentage 
point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate.

1% Decrease 
(4.2%)

Current Discount 
Rate (5.2%)

1% Increase
(6.2%)

Total OPEB liability $ 10,686,594 	 ��������� $ 9,282,361

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rate

The following presents the Authority’s Total OPEB Liability, calculated using the current healthcare trend rates. It 
also presents what the Authority’s Total OPEB Liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare trend rates 
that are one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate.

1% Decrease 
(4.00%)

Current Trend 
Rate (3.00%)

1% Increase
(2.00%)

Total OPEB liability $ 8,899,928 	 ��������� 	 ����������



69NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFINANCIAL SECTION

FINANCIAL 
SECTION

69

(d) OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related 
to OPEB

+TW�YMJܪ�XHFQ�̂ JFW�JSIJI�/ZSJ�����������YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�WJHTLSN_JI�45*'�J]UJSXJ�TK�	���������&Y�/ZSJ�����������YMJ�
&ZYMTWNY^�WJUTWYJI�IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�FSI�IJKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�WJQFYJI�YT�45*'�KWTR�YMJ�KTQQT\NSL�XTZWHJX�

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ (880,592) $ 426,299
Changes of assumptions or inputs (���������) �������

Total $ (3,958,009) 	 �������

&RTZSYX�WJUTWYJI�FX�IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�FSI�TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�WJQFYJI�YT�45*'�\NQQ�GJ�WJHTLSN_JI�NS�45*'�
expenses as follows:

Years Ending June 30, Amount
2026 $ (598,114)
���� (681,215)
2028 (�������)
2029 (635,320)
2030 (609,395)
Thereafter (15,459)
Total 	 (���������)

III.Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) – Group Life Insurance (GLI) 
(a) Plan Description 
The Authority provides all full-time salaried permanent employees automatic coverage by VRS Group Life Insurance 
5WTLWFR�ZUTS�JRUQT^RJSY��9MJ�,WTZU�1NKJ�.SXZWFSHJ�5WTLWFR�NX�F�RZQYNUQJ�JRUQT^JW��HTXY�XMFWNSL�IJܪSJI�GJSJܪY�
UQFS�YMFY�UWT[NIJX�F�GFXNH�LWTZU�QNKJ�NSXZWFSHJ�GJSJܪY�KTW�JRUQT^JJX�FSI�UFWYNHNUFYNSL�JRUQT^JWX��9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^�
UF^X����
�TK�YMJ�RTSYMQ^�UWJRNZRX��\NYM�ST�HTSYWNGZYNTSX�RFIJ�G^�YMJ�JRUQT^JJX��3TSJ�TK�YMJ�FXXJYX�NS�YMJ�
Plan are accumulated in a trust and therefore do not meet trust accounting requirements per paragraph 4 of GASB 
8YFYJRJSY�3T������

Members are also eligible to elect additional coverage for themselves as well as spouse and/or dependent children 
YMWTZLM�YMJ�4UYNTSFQ�,WTZU�1NKJ�.SXZWFSHJ�5WTLWFR��*RUQT^JJX�UF^����
�TK�YMJNW�RTSYMQ^�NSXZWFSHJ�UWJRNZR��\NYM�
no contribution made by the Authority. Premiums are deducted from members’ paychecks and paid by the Authority 
directly to the insurer; therefore they are not part of the GLI OPEB program.

9MJ�GJSJܪYX�UF^FGQJ�ZSIJW�YMJ�,1.�5WTLWFR�MF[J�XJ[JWFQ�HTRUTSJSYX��

○ 3FYZWFQ�IJFYM�GJSJܪY�ў�*RUQT^JJѣX�HT[JWJI�HTRUJSXFYNTS�WTZSIJI�YT�YMJ�SJ]Y�MNLMJXY�YMTZXFSI�FSI�YMJS�
doubled.

○ &HHNIJSYFQ�IJFYM�GJSJܪY�ў�)TZGQJ�YMJ�SFYZWFQ�IJFYM�GJSJܪY�

○ 4YMJW�GJSJܪY�UWT[NXNTSX�ў�9MJ�UWTLWFR�UWT[NIJX�FIINYNTSFQ�GJSJܪYX�UWT[NIJI�ZSIJW�XUJHNܪH�HNWHZRXYFSHJX��
including:

■ &HHNIJSYFQ�INXRJRGJWRJSY�GJSJܪY�
■ 8FKJY^�GJQY�GJSJܪY�
■ 7JUFYWNFYNTS�GJSJܪY�
■ +JQTSNTZX�FXXFZQY�GJSJܪY�
■ &HHJQJWFYJI�IJFYM�GJSJܪY�TUYNTS�

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 

All full-time salaried permanent employees, employed after the program was established on July 1, 1960, that elect 
to participate are eligible for the GLI Program. 
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Reduction in Benefit Amounts 

9MJ�GJSJܪY�FRTZSYX�UWT[NIJI�YT�RJRGJWX�HT[JWJI�ZSIJW�YMJ�,1.�5WTLWFR�FWJ�XZGOJHY�YT�F�WJIZHYNTS�KFHYTW��9MJ�
GJSJܪY�FRTZSY�WJIZHJX�G^���
�TS�/FSZFW^���KTQQT\NSL�TSJ�HFQJSIFW�̂ JFW�TK�XJUFWFYNTS��9MJ�GJSJܪY�FRTZSY�WJIZHJX�
G^�FS�FIINYNTSFQ���
�TS�JFHM�XZGXJVZJSY�/FSZFW^���ZSYNQ�NY�WJFHMJX���
�TK�NYX�TWNLNSFQ�[FQZJ�

Minimum Benefit Amount and Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) 

+TW�HT[JWJI�RJRGJWX�\NYM�FY�QJFXY����^JFWX�TK�XJW[NHJ�HWJINY��YMJWJ�NX�F�RNSNRZR�GJSJܪY�UF^FGQJ�ZSIJW�YMJ�,1.�
5WTLWFR��9MJ�RNSNRZR�GJSJܪY�\FX�XJY�FY�	������G^�XYFYZYJ�NS�������9MNX�FRTZSY�\NQQ�GJ�NSHWJFXJI�FSSZFQQ^�GFXJI�
TS�YMJ�;78�5QFS���HTXY�TK�QN[NSL�FIOZXYRJSY�HFQHZQFYNTS��9MJ�RNSNRZR�GJSJܪY�FIOZXYRJSY�KTW�YMJ�(41&�\FX�	������
as of June 30, 2025. 

Contributions 

The contribution requirement for the GLI Program are governed by Section 51.1-506 and 51.1-508 of the Code of 
Virginia, as amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding provided to state agencies and school divisions 
G^�YMJ�;NWLNSNF�,JSJWFQ�&XXJRGQ �̂�9MJ�YTYFQ�WFYJ�KTW�YMJ�,1.�5WTLWFR�\FX�����
�TK�HT[JWJI�JRUQT^JJ�HTRUJSXFYNTS��
This was allocated into an employee and employer component using a 60/40 split. The employee component 
\FX�����
�(����
�]���
)�FSI�YMJ�JRUQT^JW�HTRUTSJSY�\FX�����
�(����
�]���
)��*RUQT^JWX�RF^�JQJHY�YT�UF^�FQQ�
or part of the employee contribution, however the employer must pay all of the employer contribution. The Authority 
has elected to pay all of the employee contributions in addition to the employer contributions. 

9MJ� &ZYMTWNY^ѣX� HTSYWFHYZFQQ^� WJVZNWJI� HTSYWNGZYNTS� KTW� YMJ� �XHFQܪ ^JFW� ����� \FX� ����
� TK� HT[JWJI� JRUQT^JJ�
compensation, based on an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2023. This rate, when combined with employee 
HTSYWNGZYNTSX��\FX�J]UJHYJI�YTܪ�SFSHJ�YMJ�HTXYX�TK�GJSJܪYX�UF^FGQJ�IZWNSL�YMJ�^JFW��\NYM�FS�FIINYNTSFQ�FRTZSY�
YTܪ�SFSHJ�FS^�ZSKZSIJI�FHHWZJI�QNFGNQNY �̂�9MJ�YTYFQ�JRUQT^JW�HTSYWNGZYNTSX�UFNI�G^�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�YT�;78�\JWJ�
FUUWT]NRFYJQ^�	��������FSI�	��������KTW�YMJ�^JFWX�JSIJI�/ZSJ����������FSI�/ZSJ�����������WJXUJHYN[JQ �̂

(b) Net GLI OPEB Liability 
The Authority’s total GLI OPEB Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2023, and the net 
GLI OPEB Liability was measured as of June 30, 2024. 

Actuarial Assumptions

The total GLI OPEB liability in the June 30, 2023 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 
FXXZRUYNTSX��FUUQNJI�YT�FQQ�UJWNTIX�NSHQZIJI�NS�YMJ�RJFXZWJRJSY��ZSQJXX�TYMJW\NXJ�XUJHNܪJI��
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.SܫFYNTS ���

Salary increases,
��NSHQZINSL�NSܫFYNTS

���
�����


Investment Rate of Return ����
��SJY�TK�UQFS�NS[JXYRJSY�J]UJSXJ��NSHQZINSL�NSܫFYNTS

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2024 valuation were based upon a four-year Experience Review 
for the period ending June 30, 2020, as adopted by the VRS Board of Trustees at its April 20, 2021 meeting.
• Pre-Retirement Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Employee Rates projected 

LJSJWFYNTSFQQ^ �RFQJX�XJY�KTW\FWI���^JFWX ����
�TK�WFYJX�KTW�KJRFQJX�XJY�
forward 3 years.

• Post-Retirement Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Healthy Retiree Rates projected 
LJSJWFYNTSFQQ^ ���
�TK�WFYJX�KTW�KJRFQJX�XJY�KTW\FWI���^JFW�

• Post-Disablement Pub-2010 Amount Weighted General Disabled Rates projected 
LJSJWFYNTSFQQ^ ����
�TK�WFYJX�KTW�RFQJX�XJY�KTW\FWI���^JFWX ����
�TK�WFYJX�
for females set forward 2 years.

Ѭ�'JSJܪHNFWNJX�FSI�8ZW[N[TWX Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Contingent Annuitant Rates projected 
generationally.

• Mortality Improvement Scale 7FYJX�UWTOJHYJI�LJSJWFYNTSFQQ^�\NYM�2TINܪJI�25������.RUWT[JRJSY�8HFQJ�
YMFY�NX���
�TK�YMJ�25������WFYJX�

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2023 valuation were based on the results of an experience study 
for the period July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020, except the change in the discount rate, which was based on VRS 
Board action effective as of July 1, 2021. Changes to the actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study 
and VRS Board action are as follows: 

○ UUIFYJ�2TWYFQNY^�7FYJX�YT�5U'�����UZGQNH�XJHYTW�RTWYFQNY^�YFGQJX��+TW�KZYZWJ�RTWYFQNY^�NRUWT[JRJSYX��WJUQFHJ�
QTFI�\NYM�F�RTINܪJI�2TWYFQNY^�.RUWT[JRJSY�8HFQJ�25������

○ &IOZXYJI�7JYNWJRJSY�7FYJX �5QFS���FIOZXYJI�YT�GJYYJWܪ�Y�J]UJWNJSHJ �XJY�XJUFWFYJ�WFYJX�GFXJI�TS�J]UJWNJSHJ�KTW�
5QFS���-^GWNI �HMFSLJIܪ�SFQ�WJYNWJRJSY�FLJ�KWTR����YT����KTW�FQQ�

○ &IOZXYJI�<NYMIWF\FQ�7FYJX�YT�GJYYJWܪ�Y�J]UJWNJSHJ�FY�JFHM�FLJ�FSI�XJW[NHJ�IJHWJRJSY�YMWTZLM���̂ JFWX�TK�XJW[NHJ�

Discount Rate

9MJ�INXHTZSY�WFYJ�ZXJI�YT�RJFXZWJ�YMJ�,1.�45*'�QNFGNQNY^�\FX�����
��9MJ�UWTOJHYNTS�TK�HFXMܫ�T\X�ZXJI�YT�IJYJWRNSJ�
the discount rate assumed that employer contributions will be made in accordance with the VRS funding policy 
and at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates adopted by the VRS Board of Trustees.. Through 
YMJܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�JSINSL�/ZSJ�����������YMJ�JRUQT^JW�WFYJ�HTSYWNGZYJI�G^�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�\NQQ�GJ�XZGOJHY�YT�YMJ�UTWYNTS�TK�
YMJ�;78�'TFWI�HJWYNܪJI�WFYJX�YMFY�FWJ�KZSIJI�G^�YMJ�;NWLNSNF�,JSJWFQ�&XXJRGQ^�\MNHM�\FX����
�TK�YMJ�FHYZFWNFQQ^�
determined contribution rate. 

+WTR�/ZQ^���������TS��UFWYNHNUFYNSL�JRUQT^JWX�FWJ�FXXZRJI�YT�HTSYWNGZYJ����
�TK�YMJ�FHYZFWNFQQ^�IJYJWRNSJI�
HTSYWNGZYNTS�WFYJX��'FXJI�TS�YMTXJ�FXXZRUYNTSX��YMJ�UQFSѣXܪ�IZHNFW^�SJY�UTXNYNTS�NX�UWTOJHYJI�YT�GJ�F[FNQFGQJ�YT�
RFPJ�FQQ�UWTOJHYJI�KZYZWJ�GJSJܪY�UF^RJSYX�TK�JQNLNGQJ�JRUQT^JJX��9MJWJKTWJ��YMJ�QTSL�YJWR�J]UJHYJI�WFYJ�TK�WJYZWS�
\FX�FUUQNJI�YT�FQQ�UJWNTIX�TK�UWTOJHYJI�GJSJܪY�UF^RJSYX�YT�IJYJWRNSJ�YMJ�YTYFQ�,1.�45*'�QNFGNQNY �̂
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Long-Term Expected Rate of Return
The long-term expected rate of return on VRS investments was determined using a log-normal distribution 
analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of investment 
J]UJSXJ�FSI�NSܫFYNTS)�FWJ�IJ[JQTUJI�KTW�JFHM�RFOTW�FXXJY�HQFXX��9MJXJ�WFSLJX�FWJ�HTRGNSJI�YT�UWTIZHJ�YMJ�
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
UJWHJSYFLJ�FSI�G^�FIINSL�J]UJHYJI�NSܫFYNTS��9MJ�YFWLJY�FXXJY�FQQTHFYNTS�FSI�GJXY�JXYNRFYJX�TK�FWNYMRJYNH�WJFQ�
rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class (Strategy)
Target

Allocation

Arithmetic
Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Return

Weighted Average
Long-Term Expected

Rate of Return*
Public Equity �����
 ����
 ����

Fixed Income 16.00 5.40 0.86
Credit Strategies 16.00 8.10 1.30
Real Assets 15.00 ���� 1.08
Private Equity 15.00 ���� 1.31
MAPS - Multi-Asset Public Strategies 1.00 8.00 0.08
PIP - Private Investment Partnership 6.00 5.80 0.35
Cash 2.00 3.00 0.06
Leverage (3.00) 3.50 (0.11)
Total ������
 ����


*]UJHYJI�FWNYMRJYNH�STRNSFQ�WJYZWS� ����


��9MJ�FGT[J�FQQTHFYNTS�UWT[NIJX�F�TSJ�^JFW�J]UJHYJI�WJYZWS�TK�����
�(NSHQZIJX�F����
�NSܫFYNTS�FXXZRUYNTS)��-T\J[JW��TSJ�^JFW�WJYZWSX�IT�
not take into account the volatility present in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term expected return for the system, stochastic 
projections are employed to model future returns under various economic conditions. The results provide a range of returns over various 
YNRJ�UJWNTIX�YMFY�ZQYNRFYJQ^�UWT[NIJ�F�RJINFS�WJYZWS�TK����
��NSHQZINSL�J]UJHYJI�NSܫFYNTS�TK�����
��4S�/ZSJ�����������YMJ�;78�'TFWI�
JQJHYJI�F�QTSL�YJWR�WFYJ�TK�����
�\MNHM�NX�WTZLMQ^�FY�YMJ���YM�UJWHJSYNQJ�TK�J]UJHYJI�QTSL�YJWR�WJXZQYX�TK�YMJ�;78�KZSI�FXXJY�FQQTHFYNTS�
FY�YMFY�YNRJ��UWT[NINSL�F�RJINFS�WJYZWS�TK�����
��NSHQZINSL�J]UJHYJI�NSܫFYNTS�TK����
�

Sensitivity of the Net Position Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the collective net GLI OPEB Liability of the participating employers in the VRS GLI OPEB Plan 
using the current discount rate, as well as what the collective net GLI OPEB Liability of the participating employers 
would be if they were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point 
higher than the current rate:

1% Decrease 
(5.75%)

Current Discount 
Rate (6.75%)

1% Increase
(7.75%)

Net GLI OPEB liability $ 2,161,445 $ 1,389,881 	 �������

VRS Net GLI OPEB Liability

The net OPEB liability (NOL) for the GLI Program represents the program’s total OPEB liability determined in 
FHHTWIFSHJ�\NYM�,&8'�8YFYJRJSY�3T������QJXX�YMJ�FXXTHNFYJIܪ�IZHNFW^�SJY�UTXNYNTS��&X�TK�/ZSJ�����������341�
amounts for the GLI Program are as follows:

Total GLI OPEB Liability $ 4,196,055
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 3,080,133

Employers’ Net GLI OPEB Liability $ 1,115,922

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage 
of the Total GLI OPEB Liability �����


9MJ�YTYFQ�,1.�45*'�QNFGNQNY^�NX�HFQHZQFYJI�G^�YMJ�;78�FHYZFW �̂�FSI�JFHM�UQFSѣXܪ�IZHNFW^�SJY�UTXNYNTS�NX��WJUTWYJI�NS�
YMJ�8^XYJRѣXܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX��9MJ�SJY�,1.�45*'�QNFGNQNY^�NX�INXHQTXJI�NS�FHHTWIFSHJ�\NYM�YMJ�WJVZNWJRJSYX�TK�
,&8'�8YFYJRJSY�3T�����NS�YMJ�8^XYJRѣX�STYJX�YT�YMJܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX�FSI�WJVZNWJI�XZUUQJRJSYFW^�NSKTWRFYNTS�
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(c) GLI OPEB Liabilities, GLI OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to the Group Life Insurance Program OPEB 

At June 30, 2025 and 2024, the Authority reported a liability of $1,389,881 and $1,544,956, respectively, for its 
proportionate share of the Net GLI OPEB liability. The Net GLI OPEB Liability was measured as of June 30, 2024 and 
the total GLI OPEB liability used to calculate the Net GLI OPEB Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as 
of that date. The covered employer’s proportion of the Net GLI OPEB Liability was based on the covered employer’s 
actuarially determined employer contributions to the GLI Program for the year ended June 30, 2024 relative to the 
total of the actuarially determined employer contributions for all participating employers. At June 30, 2023, the 
UFWYNHNUFYNSL�JRUQT^JWѣX�UWTUTWYNTS�\FX������
�FX�HTRUFWJI�YT������
�FY�/ZSJ����������

+TW�YMJ�̂ JFW�JSIJI�/ZSJ�����������YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�WJHTLSN_JI�,1.�45*'�J]UJSXJ�TK�	��������8NSHJ�YMJWJ�\FX�F�HMFSLJ�
in the proportionate share between measurement dates, a portion of the GLI OPEB expense was related to deferred 
amounts from changes in proportion.

&Y�/ZSJ�����������YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�WJUTWYJI�IJKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�FSI�IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�WJQFYJI�
to the GLI OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

Differences between expected 
and actual experience $ 219,216 $ (33,950)

Net difference between projected 
and actual earnings on plan investments - (�������)

Changes of assumptions ����� (68,880)
Changes in proportion 39,143 (������)
Employer contributions subsequent to

YMJ�RJFXZWJRJSY�IFYJ� 163,360 -

Total $ 429,641 	 (�������)

��)JKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�WJQFYJI�YT�YMJ�,1.�45*'�WJXZQYNSL�KWTR�YMJ�JRUQT^JWѣX�HTSYWNGZYNTSX�XZGXJVZJSY�YT�YMJ�RJFXZWJRJSY�IFYJ�
\NQQ�GJ�WJHTLSN_JI�FX�F�WJIZHYNTS�TK�YMJ�3JY�,1.�45*'�1NFGNQNY^�NS�YMJܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�JSINSL�/ZSJ����������

4YMJW�FRTZSYX�WJUTWYJI�FX�IJKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�FSI�IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�WJQFYJI�YT�YMJ�,1.�
OPEB will be recognized in the GLI OPEB expense in future reporting periods as follows:

Years Ending June 30, Amount
2024 	 (������)
2025 ������
2026 4,601
���� 12,828
2028 13,858
Total $ (29,398)

Information contained in the VRS GLI OPEB Program Notes to the Schedule of Employer Allocations and Schedule 
TK�,1.�45*'�5WTLWFR�&RTZSYX�G^�*RUQT^JW�(8HMJIZQJX)�\FX�J]YWFHYJI�KWTR�YMJ�FZINYJIܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX�TK�YMJ�
8^XYJR�KTW�YMJܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�JSIJI�/ZSJ�����������&IINYNTSFQܪ�SFSHNFQ�NSKTWRFYNTS�XZUUTWYNSL�YMJ�UWJUFWFYNTS�TK�YMJ�
;78�,1.�45*'�5WTLWFR�8HMJIZQJX�(NSHQZINSL�YMJܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX�FSI�YMJ�ZSRTINܪJI�FZINY�TUNSNTS�YMJWJTS��
and required supplementary information) is presented in the separately issued VRS 2023 Annual Comprehensive 
Financial Report (Annual Report). A copy of the 2023 VRS Annual Report is publicly available through the About 
VRS link on the VRS website at www.varetire.org, or a copy may be obtained by submitting a request to the VRS 
(MNJK�+NSFSHNFQ�4ܬHJW��5�4��'T]�������7NHMRTSI��;&������������



74 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINANCIAL SECTION74

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV.Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) – VRS Health Insurance Credit (HIC)
(a) Plan Description 
To assist retirees with the cost of health insurance coverage, the VRS administers a health insurance credit program. 
9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�-JFQYM�.SXZWFSHJ�(WJINY�5WTLWFR�NX�F�RZQYN�JRUQT^JW��FLJSY�IJܪSJI�GJSJܪY�UQFS�YMFY�UWT[NIJX�F�HWJINY�
YT\FWI�YMJ�HTXY�TK�MJFQYM�NSXZWFSHJ�HT[JWFLJ�KTW�WJYNWJI�JRUQT^JJX��7JYNWJJX�YMFY�MF[J�F�RNSNRZR�TKܪ�KYJJS�̂ JFWX�TK�
XJW[NHJ�FSI�FWJ�JSWTQQJI�NS�F�VZFQNܪJI�MJFQYM�NSXZWFSHJ�UQFS�RF^�WJHJN[J�F�RTSYMQ^�HWJINY�TK�	�����UJW�̂ JFW�TK�XJW[NHJ�
credit. The health insurance credit is a tax-free reimbursement in an amount set by the General Assembly for each 
^JFW�TK�XJW[NHJ�HWJINY�FLFNSXY�VZFQNܪJI�MJFQYM�NSXZWFSHJ�UWJRNZRX�WJYNWJJX�UF^�KTW�XNSLQJ�HT[JWFLJ��J]HQZINSL�FS^�
portion covering the spouse or dependents. The credit cannot exceed the amount of the premiums and ends upon 
the retiree’s death. The health insurance credit is funded by the Authority on behalf of its VRS eligible employees. 

9MJ�-JFQYM�.SXZWFSHJ�(WJINY�5WTLWFR�UWT[NIJX�YMJ�KTQQT\NSL�GJSJܪYX�KTW�JQNLNGQJ�JRUQT^JJX�

○ &Y�7JYNWJRJSY�ў�+TW�JRUQT^JJX�\MT�WJYNWJ��YMJ�RTSYMQ^�GJSJܪY�NX�	�����UJW�^JFW�TK�XJW[NHJ�UJW�RTSYM�\NYM�F�
RF]NRZR�GJSJܪY�TK�	������UJW�RTSYM�

○ Disability Retirement – For employees who retire on disability or go on long-term disability under the Virginia 
1THFQ�)NXFGNQNY^�5WTLWFR�(;1)5)��YMJ�RTSYMQ^�GJSJܪY�NX�	������UJW�RTSYM��

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 

All full-time salaried permanent employees, employed after the program was established on July 1, 1993, who are 
covered under the VRS pension plan are automatically eligible for the Retiree Health Insurance Credit Program and 
JSWTQQJI�FY�JRUQT^RJSY��9MTXJ�\MT�WJYNWJ�\NYM�FY�QJFXY����^JFWX�TK�XJW[NHJ�HWJINY�FWJ�JQNLNGQJ�YT�JQJHY�YMJ�GJSJܪY�

&X�TK�YMJ�/ZSJ����������FHYZFWNFQ�[FQZFYNTS��YMJ�KTQQT\NSL�JRUQT^JJX�\JWJ�HT[JWJI�G^�YMJ�GJSJܪY�YJWRX�TK�YMJ�-.(�
OPEB plan:

Number
Active members 352
.SFHYN[J�RJRGJWX�TW�YMJNW�GJSJܪHNFWNJX

HZWWJSYQ^�WJHJN[NSL�GJSJܪYX 122

Total covered employees ���

HIC Program Notes 

○ 9MJ�RTSYMQ^�-JFQYM�.SXZWFSHJ�(WJINY�GJSJܪY�HFSSTY�J]HJJI�YMJ�NSIN[NIZFQ�UWJRNZR�FRTZSY�

○ 3T�-JFQYM�.SXZWFSHJ�(WJINY�KTW�UWJRNZRX�UFNI�FSI�VZFQNܪJI�ZSIJW�14)& �MT\J[JW��YMJ�JRUQT^JJ�RF^�WJHJN[J�
YMJ�HWJINY�KTW�UWJRNZRX�UFNI�KTW�TYMJW�VZFQNܪJI�MJFQYM�UQFSX�

○ Employees who retire after being on long-term disability under VLDP must have at least 15 years of service 
credit to qualify for the Health Insurance Credit as a retiree. 

Contributions 

The contribution requirement for active employees is governed by Section 51.1-1402(E) of the Code of Virginia, 
as amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding options provided to state agencies and school divisions 
by the Virginia General Assembly. The Authority’s contractually required employer contribution rate for the Health 
.SXZWFSHJ�(WJINY�5WTLWFR�KTW�YMJ�^JFWX�JSIJI�/ZSJ����������FSI�/ZSJ�����������\FX�����
�TK�HT[JWJI�JRUQT^JJ�
HTRUJSXFYNTS��GFXJI�TS�FS�FHYZFWNFQ�[FQZFYNTS�FX�TK�/ZSJ�����������9MNX�WFYJ�\FX�J]UJHYJI�YTܪ�SFSHJ�YMJ�HTXYX�
TK�GJSJܪYX�JFWSJI�IZWNSL�YMJ�^JFW��\NYM�FS�FIINYNTSFQ�FRTZSY�YTܪ�SFSHJ�FS^�ZSKZSIJI�FHHWZJI�QNFGNQNY �̂�9MJ�YTYFQ�
employer contributions paid by the Authority to VRS were $- and $35,000 for the years ended June 30, 2025 and 
June 30, 2024, respectively.

(b) Net HIC OPEB Liability 
The Authority’s net HIC OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2024. The total HIC OPEB liability was determined 
by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2023, using updated actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included 
in the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date as of June 30, 2023.
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Actuarial Assumptions 

The total HIC OPEB liability was based on an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2023, using the Entry Age Normal 
actuarial cost method and the following assumptions, applied to all periods and rolled forward to the measurement 
date of June 30, 2024.

.SܫFYNTS ���

Salary increases,
��NSHQZINSL�NSܫFYNTS

���
�������


Investment rate of return ����
��SJY�TK��NS[JXYRJSY�J]UJSXJX

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2024 valuation were based upon a four-year Experience Review 
for the period ending June 30, 2020, as adopted by the VRS Board of Trustees at its April 20, 2021 meeting.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2023  valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience 
study for the period July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020, except the change in discount rate, which was based on 
VRS Board action effective July 1, 2021. Changes to the actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study 
and VRS Board action are as follows: 

○ UUIFYJI�RTWYFQNY^�YFGQJ�YT�5U'�����UZGQNH�XJHYTW�RTWYFQNY^�YFGQJX��+TW�KZYZWJ�RTWYFQNY^�NRUWT[JRJSYX��WJUQFHJ�
QTFI�\NYM�F�RTINܪJI�2TWYFQNY^�.RUWT[JRJSY�8HFQJ�25�����

○ &IOZXYJI�WJYNWJRJSY�WFYJX�YT�GJYYJWܪ�Y�J]UJWNJSHJ �XJY�XJUFWFYJ�WFYJX�GFXJI�TS�J]UJWNJSHJ�KTW�5QFS���-^GWNI �
HMFSLJIܪ�SFQ�WJYNWJRJSY�FLJ�KWTR����YT����KTW�FQQ

○ &IOZXYJI�\NYMIWF\FQ�WFYJX�YT�GJYYJWܪ�Y�J]UJWNJSHJ�FY�JFHM�^JFW�FLJ�FSI�XJW[NHJ�IJHWJRJSY�YMWTZLM���^JFWX�TK�
service

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return
The long-term expected rate of return on VRS investments was determined using a log-normal distribution 
analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of investment 
J]UJSXJ�FSI�NSܫFYNTS)�FWJ�IJ[JQTUJI�KTW�JFHM�RFOTW�FXXJY�HQFXX��9MJXJ�WFSLJX�FWJ�HTRGNSJI�YT�UWTIZHJ�YMJ�
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
UJWHJSYFLJ�FSI�G^�FIINSL�J]UJHYJI�NSܫFYNTS��9MJ�YFWLJY�FXXJY�FQQTHFYNTS�FSI�GJXY�JXYNRFYJX�TK�FWNYMRJYNH�WJFQ�
rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class (Strategy)
Target

Allocation
Long-Term Expected 
Real Rate of Return

Weighted Average
Long-Term Expected

Rate of Return*
Public Equity �����
 ����
 ����

Fixed Income 16.00 5.40 0.86
Credit Strategies 16.00 8.10 1.30
Real Assets 15.00 ���� 1.08
Private Equity 15.00 ���� 1.31
PIP - Private Investment Partnership 1.00 5.80 0.08
Diversifying Strategies 6.00 5.80 0.35
Cash 2.00 3.00 0.06
Leverage (3.00) 3.50 (0.11)

Total ������
 ����


*]UJHYJI�FWNYMRJYNH�STRNSFQ�WJYZWS� ����


��9MJ�FGT[J�FQQTHFYNTS�UWT[NIJX�F�TSJ�^JFW�J]UJHYJI�WJYZWS�TK�����
�(NSHQZIJX����
�NSܫFYNTS�FXXZRUYNTS��-T\J[JW��TSJ�^JFW�WJYZWSX�IT�STY�
take into account the volatility present in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term expected return for the system, stochastic 
projections are employed to model future returns under various economic conditions. The results provide a range of returns over various 
YNRJ�UJWNTIX�YMFY�ZQYNRFYJQ^�UWT[NIJ�F�RJINFS�WJYZWS�TK�����
��NSHQZINSL�J]UJHYJI�NSܫFYNTS�TK�����
��4S�/ZSJ�����������YMJ�;78�'TFWI�
JQJHYJI�F�QTSL�YJWR�WFYJ�TK�����
�\MNHM�NX�WTZLMQ^�FY�YMJ���YM�UJWHJSYNQJ�TK�J]UJHYJI�QTSL�YJWR�WJXZQYX�KTW�YMJ�;78�KZSI�FXXJY�FQQTHFYNTS�
FY�YMFY�YNRJ��UWT[NINSL�F�RJINFS�WJYZWS�TK�����
��NSHQZINSL�J]UJHYJI�NSܫFYNTS�TK�����
�
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Discount Rate 

9MJ�INXHTZSY�WFYJ�ZXJI�YT�RJFXZWJ�YMJ�YTYFQ�-.(�45*'�QNFGNQNY^�(FXXJY)�\FX�����
��9MJ�UWTOJHYNTS�TK�HFXMܫ�T\X�
used to determine the discount rate assumed that employer contributions will be made in accordance with the 
VRS funding policy at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates adopted by 
YMJ�;78�'TFWI�TK�9WZXYJJX�FSI�YMJ�RJRGJW�WFYJ��9MWTZLM�YMJܪ�XHFQ�̂ JFW�JSINSL�/ZSJ�����������YMJ�WFYJ�HTSYWNGZYJI�
G^�YMJ�JSYNY^�KTW�YMJ�-.(�45*'�\NQQ�GJ�XZGOJHY�YT�YMJ�UTWYNTS�TK�YMJ�;78�'TFWI�HJWYNܪJI�WFYJX�YMFY�FWJ�KZSIJI�G^�YMJ�
;NWLNSNF�,JSJWFQ�&XXJRGQ �̂�\MNHM�\FX����
�TK�YMJ�FHYZFWNFQQ^�IJYJWRNSJI�HTSYWNGZYNTS�WFYJ��

+WTR� /ZQ^� ��� ����� TS�� JRUQT^JWX� FWJ� FXXZRJI� YT� HTSYNSZJ� YT� HTSYWNGZYJ� ���
� TK� YMJ� FHYZFWNFQQ^� IJYJWRNSJI�
HTSYWNGZYNTS�WFYJX��'FXJI�TS�YMTXJ�FXXZRUYNTSX��YMJ�-.(�45*'ѣXܪ�IZHNFW^�SJY�UTXNYNTS�\FX�UWTOJHYJI�YT�GJ�F[FNQFGQJ�
YT�RFPJ�FQQ�UWTOJHYJI�KZYZWJ�GJSJܪY�UF^RJSYX�TK�JQNLNGQJ�JRUQT^JJX��9MJWJKTWJ�YMJ�QTSL�YJWR�J]UJHYJI�WFYJ�TK�WJYZWS�
\FX�FUUQNJI�YT�FQQ�UJWNTIX�TK�UWTOJHYJI�GJSJܪY�UF^RJSYX�YT�IJYJWRNSJ�YMJ�YTYFQ�-.(�45*'�QNFGNQNY^�(FXXJY)�

(c) Changes in the Net HIC OPEB Liability
Increase (Decrease)

Total
 HIC OPEB Liability

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position

Net
 HIC OPEB Liability (Asset)

Balances at June 30, 2023 	 ������� $ 602,950 	 (�������)
Changes for the Year:
Service cost ����� - �����
Interest 25,340 - 25,340
Changes of assumptions - - -
Difference between expected

and actual experience (14,156) - (14,156)
Contributions - employer - 35,182 (35,182)
Net investment income - 58,004 (58,004)
'JSJܪY�UF^RJSYX��NSHQZINSL�WJKZSIX�

of employee contributions (������) (������) -
Administrative expense & other 

changes - (811) 811
Net changes 2,483 ������ (������)

Balances at June 30, 2024 	 ������� 	 ������� 	 (�������)

Sensitivity of the Net Position Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the Authority’s net HIC OPEB Liability (Asset), using the current discount rate, as well as 
what the collective net HIC OPEB Liability (Asset) would be if they were calculated using a discount rate that 
is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate:

1% Decrease 
(5.75%)

Current Discount 
Rate (6.75%)

1% Increase 
(7.75%)

Net HIC OPEB (asset) $ (253,435) 	 (�������) $ (338,589)
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(d) HIC OPEB Liabilities, HIC OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to the Health Insurance Credit Program OPEB
For the year ended June 30, 2025, the Authority recognized Health Insurance Credit Program OPEB expense 
(income) of ($81,985).

&Y�/ZSJ�����������YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�WJUTWYJI�IJKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�FSI�IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�
related to the HIC OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

Differences between expected 
and actual experience $ 3,838 $ (54,184)

Net difference between projected and 
actual earnings on plan investments - (�������)

Changes of assumptions 3,063 (13,098)
Employer contributions subsequent to 

the measurement date - -
Total $ 6,901 $ (216,983)

&RTZSYX�WJUTWYJI�FX�IJKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�FSI�IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX�WJQFYJI�YT�YMJ�-.(�45*'�
will be recognized in the HIC OPEB expense in future reporting periods as follows:

Years Ending June 30, Amount
2026 	 (������)
���� (������)
2028 (45,499)
2029 (6,398)
2030 (951)
Total $ (210,082)

&IINYNTSFQ� �SFSHNFQܪ NSKTWRFYNTS� XZUUTWYNSL� YMJ� UWJUFWFYNTS� TK� YMJ� ;78� 5TQNYNHFQ� 8ZGIN[NXNTS� 5QFS� 8HMJIZQJX�
(NSHQZINSL� YMJ� �SFSHNFQܪ XYFYJRJSYX� FSI� YMJ� ZSRTINܪJI� FZINY� TUNSNTS� YMJWJTS�� FSI� WJVZNWJI� XZUUQJRJSYFW^�
information) is presented in the separately issued VRS 2024 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (Annual 
Report). A copy of the 2024 VRS Annual Report is publicly available through the About VRS link on the VRS website 
FY�\\\�[FWJYNWJ�TWL��TW�F�HTU^�RF^�GJ�TGYFNSJI�G^�XZGRNYYNSL�F�WJVZJXY�YT�YMJ�;78�(MNJK�+NSFSHNFQ�4ܬHJW��5�4��
Box 2500, Richmond, VA 23218-2500.
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V. Summary of Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB)

Years Ending June 30,
2025 2024

)JKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX
-JFQYM�'JSJܪYX 	 ������� $ 995,194
Group Life Insurance 429,641 426,559
VRS Health Insurance Credit 6,901 ������

9TYFQ�IJKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX 	 ��������� 	 ���������

Net OPEB liability (asset)
-JFQYM�'JSJܪYX 	 ��������� 	 ����������
Group Life Insurance 1,389,881 1,544,956
VRS Health Insurance Credit (�������) (�������)

Total net OPEB liability 	 ���������� 	 ����������

)JKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX
-JFQYM�'JSJܪYX $ 3,958,009 $ 3,901,000
Group Life Insurance ������� 268,424
VRS Health Insurance Credit 216,983 �������

9TYFQ�IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX 	 ��������� $ 4,443,196

Pension expense
-JFQYM�'JSJܪYX 	 ������� 	 �������
Group Life Insurance ������ ������
VRS Health Insurance Credit 81,985 (������)

Total pension expense 	 ������� $ 661,918
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11 Risk Management
The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. These risks are covered by insurance purchased 
from Virginia Risk Sharing Association (VRSA), a group insurance pool in the Commonwealth of Virginia. There have 
GJJS�ST�XNLSNܪHFSY�WJIZHYNTSX�NS�NSXZWFSHJ�HT[JWFLJ�KWTR�YMJ�UWNTW�^JFW��FSI�XJYYQJI�HQFNRX�MF[J�STY�J]HJJIJI�
NSXZWFSHJ�HT[JWFLJ�KTW�JFHM�TK�YMJܪ�XHFQ�^JFWX�JSIJI�/ZSJ����������FSI������

9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^�UWT[NIJX�MJFQYM�GJSJܪYX�YT�JRUQT^JJX�ZSIJW�F�XJQK�NSXZWFSHJ�UQFS��USIJW�FS�J]HJXX�HQFNRX�NSXZWFSHJ�
policy, the Authority’s liability is limited, on a calendar year basis, to aggregate claims per participant of $110,000. A 
^JFW�JSI�FHHWZFQ�TK�UTYJSYNFQ�TZYXYFSINSL�HQFNRX�FX�TK�YMJ�QFXY�IF^�TK�YMJܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�\FX�JXYNRFYJI�FY�YMWJJ�YNRJX�
YMJ�F[JWFLJ�RTSYMQ^�HQFNR��&X�WJܫJHYJI�NS�YMJ�YFGQJ�GJQT\��YMJ�QNFGNQNY^�KTW�HQFNRX�NSHZWWJI�GZY�STY�WJUTWYJI�FX�TK�
/ZSJ����������������FSI������\FX�JXYNRFYJI�YT�GJ�	�����������	�����������FSI�	�����������WJXUJHYN[JQ �̂�FSI�NX�
included in accounts payable and accrued expenses on the accompanying Statements of Net Position.

2025 2024 2023

Estimated outstanding claims liability
FY�GJLNSSNSL�TKܪ�XHFQ�^JFW $ 1,101,314 	 ��������� 	 ���������

Employee and Employer portion of premiums withheld ��������� 4,288,599 4,399,510
Payments to Third Party Administrator (5,323,539) (4,325,492) (4,522,110)

Estimated outstanding claims liability
FY�JSI�TKܪ�XHFQ�^JFW $ 1,365,592 $ 1,101,314 	 ���������

+TWܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�������YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�JXYNRFYJX�NYX�XMFWJ�TK�HQFNRX�YT�GJ�FUUWT]NRFYJQ^�	����RNQQNTS��9MNX�JXYNRFYJ�
represents the Authority’s best estimate; however, actual claims and judgments may vary from year to year.

&IINYNTSFQQ �̂�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�RFNSYFNSX�NYX�QTSLXYFSINSL�HTRRNYRJSY�TK�XYFܬSL�FSI�GZILJY�WJXTZWHJX�YT�GTYM�F�
regulatory affairs program and a safety loss and control program. The goal of these programs is to proactively 
manage and maintain its operations and work sites in the safest possible manner for the Authority’s employees 
and its customers.

12 Commitments 
(a) Fairfax Water 
The Authority has several agreements with Fairfax Water, which collectively reserve treated water capacity of 62.4 
2,)��WJUWJXJSYNSL���
�TK�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�YTYFQ�\FYJW�HFUFHNY �̂�9MJXJ�FLWJJRJSYX�FQQT\�KTW�YMJ�UZWHMFXJ�TK�FIINYNTSFQ�
capacity, if available, based on actual construction and administrative costs negotiated at the time of sale. In 
2F^�������YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�UZWHMFXJI�FS�FIINYNTSFQ���2,)�TK�\FYJW�HFUFHNY^�KTW�FUUWT]NRFYJQ^�	�����RNQQNTS��(FUFHNY^�
payments are included in property, plant and equipment on the accompanying Statements of Net Position, and are 
amortized over the estimated useful life from the inception of the agreement, ranging between 40-50 years. 

Fairfax Water provides water to the Authority from two water treatment plants, the Corbalis Water Treatment Plant 
NS�-JWSITS��;NWLNSNF��\MNHM�\NYMIWF\X�\FYJW�KWTR�YMJ�5TYTRFH�7N[JW�FSI�YMJ�,WNܬYM�<FYJW�9WJFYRJSY�5QFSY�NS�
Lorton, Virginia, which withdraws water from the Occoquan Reservoir. The Authority participates in construction 
and expansion costs of the two water treatment plants based on the Authority’s purchased capacity. The Authority 
NSHZWWJI�ST�XZHM�HTXYX�NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFWX������TW�������
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9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^�FQXT�MFX�FLWJJRJSYX�\NYM�+FNWKF]�<FYJW�KTW�YMJ�WJXJW[FYNTS�TK�YWFSXRNXXNTS�RFNS�HFUFHNY �̂�USIJW�
these agreements, the Authority is required to make equal monthly payments for varying terms that range up 
YT�����RTSYMX�(���̂ JFWX)�KWTR�YMJ�IFYJ�TK�YMJ�NSNYNFQ�UF^RJSY��5F^RJSYX�RFIJ�NSܪ�XHFQ�̂ JFWX������FSI������\JWJ�
FUUWT]NRFYJQ^�	��������KTW�JFHM�̂ JFW��+ZYZWJ�UF^RJSYX�IZJ�YT�+FNWKF]�<FYJW�KTW�YMJXJ�FLWJJRJSYX�FWJ�FX�KTQQT\X�

Years Ending June 30, Amount

2026 $ 668,006
���� 668,006
2028 668,006
2029 668,006
2030 668,006
Total $ 3,340,030

In addition, Fairfax Water charges the Authority a rate per thousand gallons of water delivered. The rate is based 
on Fairfax Water’s operation, maintenance, and general and administrative costs divided by total consumption 
GNQQJI��5ZWHMFXJI�\FYJW�J]UJSINYZWJX�WJQFYJI�YT�+FNWKF]�<FYJW�KTWܪ�XHFQ�^JFWX������FSI������\JWJ�FUUWT]NRFYJQ^�
$18.6 million and $19.1 million, respectively.
(b) City of Manassas 
The Authority has a water capacity and service agreement with the City of Manassas which effectively reserves 5 
MGD of treated water capacity for the Authority at the City’s water treatment facility at Lake Manassas, which 
WJUWJXJSYX�FUUWT]NRFYJQ^��
�TK�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�YTYFQ�F[FNQFGQJ�UZWHMFXJI�\FYJW�HFUFHNY �̂�9MJ�FLWJJRJSY�FQXT�FQQT\X�
for the use of an additional 2 MGD by either party, if needed. The Authority is obligated to pay the City’s wholesale 
rate for purchases at the water treatment facility and is obligated to pay the City’s wholesale rate plus a wheeling 
HMFWLJ�KTW�\FYJW�YFPJS�FY�TYMJW�IJQN[JW^�UTNSYX��9MJ�(NY^ѣX�\MTQJXFQJ�WFYJ�HTSXNXYX�TKܪ�]JI�FSI�[FWNFGQJ�HTXYX�UJW�
the agreement. The initial amount paid by the Authority to the City for the 5 MGD of capacity was $8,131,846. 
This amount is included in property, plant and equipment as advance capacity payments on the accompanying 
Statements of Net Position, and is being amortized through the year 2039 on a straight-line basis.

The Authority also shares in the cost of certain capital improvements based on the Authority’s reserved capacity as 
a percentage of the total permitted capacity at the City’s water treatment facility. The Authority has made payments 
KTW�HFUNYFQ�HTXYX�IZWNSL�YMJܪ�XHFQ�^JFWX�JSIJI�/ZSJ����������FSI������NS�YMJ�FRTZSY�TK�	��������FSI�	���������
respectively. These payments are included in property, plant and equipment as advance capacity payments on the 
accompanying Statements of Net Position, and are being amortized over 40 years on a straight-line basis. 

9MJ�HTXY�TK�\FYJW�UZWHMFXJI�G^�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�KWTR�YMJ�(NY^�IZWNSLܪ�XHFQ�^JFWX������FSI������\FX�FUUWT]NRFYJQ^�
$2.3 million and $1.9 million, respectively.

(c) City of Manassas Park 
In December 2008, pursuant to the terms of a Water Capacity Purchase and Service Agreement (the Agreement), 
YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�XTQI�����2,)�TK�\MTQJXFQJ�\FYJW�HFUFHNY^�YT�YMJ�(NY^�TK�2FSFXXFX�5FWP�KTW�	�����������9MJ�WFYJ�KTW�
water service will be based on the wholesale rate charged by Fairfax Water to the Authority, plus other charges and 
HTXYX�\MNHM�FWJ�IJܪSJI�NS�YMJ�&LWJJRJSY�

(d) Prince William County Credit 
*KKJHYN[J� )JHJRGJW� ���� ������ YMJ� &ZYMTWNY^� JSYJWJI� NSYT� FS� &RJSIRJSY� YT� YMJ� 2TINܪHFYNTS� FSI� &XXZRUYNTS�
Agreement with the County (the Amendment), whereby the Authority would assume responsibility for paying 
YMJ�(TZSY^ѣX�J]NXYNSL�TGQNLFYNTS�YT\FWIX�U48&�IJGY�XJW[NHJ��USIJW�YMJ�YJWRX�TK�YMJ�&RJSIRJSY��YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�
JXYFGQNXMJI�F�STS�HFXM�HWJINY�KTW�YMJ�GJSJܪY�TK�YMJ�(TZSY^�NS�YMJ�FRTZSY�TK�	������������WJUWJXJSYNSL�UWJ[NTZX�
UF^RJSYX�RFIJ�G^�YMJ�(TZSY^�YT\FWI�U48&�IJGY�XJW[NHJ�ZSIJW�J]NXYNSL�FLWJJRJSYX�

The County may use this non-cash credit to purchase water and sewer availability, or any asset of the Authority 
offered for sale by the Authority. The non-cash credit will be reduced by the value of any such sale. In order to access 
the non-cash credit, the County must provide to the Authority a duly adopted resolution of the BOCS authorizing 
YMJ�FUUQNHFYNTS�TK�YMJ�STS�HFXM�HWJINY�KTW�F�XUJHNܪH�YWFSXFHYNTS��9T�IFYJ��YMJ�(TZSY^�MFX�ZXJI�	����������TK�YMJ�
non-cash credit toward availability fees for various County facilities.
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&X�TK�/ZSJ�����������YMJ�WJRFNSNSL�FRTZSY�TK�YMJ�STS�HFXM�HWJINY�F[FNQFGQJ�YT�YMJ�(TZSY^�NX�	�����������

(e) Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) 
VDOT requires all entities performing work in the VDOT right-of-way to post a continuous bond or surety to insure 
compliance with the conditions of land use permits that are issued by VDOT and to guarantee the satisfactory 
performance of the work.

Through its commercial insurance policies, the Authority meets VDOT’s requirements for liability coverage for 
personal injury, property damage and lawsuits that may arise from the work performed under the permits. 

(f) Other Commitments 
The Authority has entered into commitments for capital projects and operating expenditures totaling approximately 
$253.8 million as of June 30, 2025. These commitments are goods and services ordered, but not yet received as 
of June 30, 2025. 

(g)Federal and State-Assisted Programs 
The Authority has received proceeds from several federal and state grant programs. Periodic audits of these 
grants are required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the grant 
agreements. Such audits could result in the refund of grant monies to the grantor agencies. Management believes 
that any required refunds will be immaterial. Based upon past experience, no provision has been made in the 
FHHTRUFS^NSLܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSYX�KTW�YMJ�WJKZSI�TK�LWFSY�RTSNJX�

13 Contributions from Developers and Others
2025 2024

Contributed Assets $ 11,041,550 $ 22,918,615

Contributions from developers and governmental entities were received in the form of cash, property, water mains, 
XFSNYFW^�XJ\JW�QNSJX��UZRUNSL�XYFYNTSXܪ��WJ�M^IWFSYX��RFSMTQJX�FSI�FXXTHNFYJI�NSKWFXYWZHYZWJ��9MJXJ�FRTZSYX�
FWJ�WJܫJHYJI�FX�NSHTRJ�TS�YMJ�FHHTRUFS^NSL�8YFYJRJSYX�TK�7J[JSZJX��*]UJSXJX�FSI�(MFSLJX�NS�3JY�5TXNYNTS�

14 Subscription-Based Information Technology Agreements
The Authority has entered into various SBITAs for software subscriptions. Most SBITA contracts have initial terms 
of 5 years, and contain one or more renewals at our option, generally for 12-month periods. The Authority has 
generally included these renewal periods in the SBITA term when it is reasonably certain that the Authority will 
exercise the renewal option. The Authority’s SBITAs generally include termination options which are reasonably 
certain to not be exercised. As the interest rates implicit in the Authority’s SBITAs are not readily determinable, the 
NSHWJRJSYFQ�GTWWT\NSL�WFYJ�NX�ZYNQN_JI�YT�INXHTZSY�YMJܪ�]JI�8'.9&�XZGXHWNUYNTS�UF^RJSYX�
The statement of net position shows the following amounts relating to SBITAs:
Intangible right-to-use SBITA assets 2025 2024
SBITAs, net $ 180,058 $ 612,014
SBITAs, net $ 180,058 $ 612,014

SBITAs payable 2025 2024
Current $ 13,263 	 ������
Non-current - 13,263

$ 13,263 $ 43,935

The future principal and interest SBITA payments as of June 30, 2025, were as follows:
Years ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2026 $ 11,683 $ 1,580$ 13,263

$ 11,683 $ 1,580$ 13,263
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PRINCE WILLIAM WATER
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Related Ratios – VRS
Information presented is based on the actuarial information for the plan year ended:

June 30, 
2024

June 30, 
2023

June 30, 
2022

June 30, 
2021

June 30, 
2020

Total Pension Liability
Service cost 	 ��������� 	 ��������� 	 ��������� $ 2,329,050 $ 2,495,043

Interest 4,656,502 4,240,110 3,992,904 3,534,553 ���������
Difference between expected

and actual experience 106,634 ��������� (592,482) (560,692) 314,505
Changes of assumptions - - - ��������� -
'JSJܪY�UF^RJSYX��NSHQZINSL�WJKZSIX

of employee contributions (���������) (���������) (���������) (���������) (���������)
Net change in total pension liability ��������� ��������� 3,454,255 ��������� 4,326,431

Total pension liability - beginning ���������� ���������� 58,042,162 ���������� ����������
Total pension liability - ending (a) 	 ���������� 	 ���������� 	 ���������� $ 58,042,162 	 ����������
Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contributions - employer 	 ��������� $ 1,293,359 	 ��������� 	 ��������� 	 ���������
Contributions - employee 1,450,548 1,359,000 ��������� ��������� ���������
Net investment income ��������� 4,232,046 (108,165) 13,864,083 905,149
'JSJܪY�UF^RJSYX��NSHQZINSL�WJKZSIX

of employee contributions (���������) (���������) (���������) (���������) (���������)
Administrative expense (41,958) (40,990) (39,334) (32,940) (28,655)
Other 1,515 ����� 1,521 1,320 (1,122)

3JY�HMFSLJ�NS�UQFSܪ�IZHNFW^�SJY�
position ��������� ��������� ������� 14,519,859 2,860,203

5QFSܪ�IZHNFW^�SJY�UTXNYNTS���GJLNSSNSL ���������� ���������� 64,308,062 ���������� 46,928,000

5QFSܪ�IZHNFW^�SJY�UTXNYNTS���JSINSL�(G) 	 ���������� 	 ���������� 	 ���������� $ 64,308,062 	 ����������

Net pension liability (asset) - ending 
(a) - (b) $ (3,634,683) $ (1,345,392) 	 (���������) $ (6,265,900) $ 3,509,408

5QFSܪ�IZHNFW^�SJY�UTXNYNTS�FX�F�
percentage
of the total pension liability - end of 
year ������
 ������
 ������
 ������
 �����


(T[JWJI�UF^WTQQ� 	 ���������� 	 ���������� $ 30,358,488 	 ���������� 	 ����������
Net pension liability (asset) as a

percentage of covered payroll ������
 �����
 ������
 ������
 �����


��(T[JWJI�UF^WTQQ�NX�YMJ�UF^WTQQ�TS�\MNHM�HTSYWNGZYNTSX�YT�F�UJSXNTS�UQFS�FWJ�GFXJI�

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
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Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Related Ratios – VRS (Continued)
Information presented is based on the actuarial information for the plan year ended:

June 30, 
2019

June 30, 
2018

June 30, 
2017

June 30, 
2016

June 30, 
2015

Total Pension Liability
Service cost $ 2,328,302 	 ��������� $ 2,309,644 $ 2,355,421 $ 2,242,139

Interest ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� 1,865,113
Difference between expected

and actual experience ��������� ������� (������) ������� ���������
Changes of assumptions ��������� - (1,060,533) - -
'JSJܪY�UF^RJSYX��NSHQZINSL�WJKZSIX

of employee contributions (���������) (���������) (���������) (���������) (�������)
Net change in total pension liability 6,454,969 4,323,620 2,380,359 4,145,929 4,663,232

Total pension liability - beginning 42,516,211 38,192,591 35,812,232 31,666,303 ����������
Total pension liability - ending (a) 	 ���������� $ 42,516,211 $ 38,192,591 $ 35,812,232 $ 31,666,303
Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contributions - employer 	 ��������� $ 2,400,611 	 ��������� 	 ��������� $ 2,102,230
Contributions - employee 1,213,286 1,219,540 1,068,016 ��������� 1,004,829
Net investment income ��������� ��������� 3,924,943 ������� 1,202,198
'JSJܪY�UF^RJSYX��NSHQZINSL�WJKZSIX

of employee contributions (���������) (���������) (���������) (���������) (�������)
Administrative expense (25,628) (������) (20,334) (15,995) (������)
Other (�����) (2,599) (3,583) (223) (261)

3JY�HMFSLJ�NS�UQFSܪ�IZHNFW^�SJY�
position 5,043,303 5,219,028 5,905,114 ��������� ���������

5QFSܪ�IZHNFW^�SJY�UTXNYNTS���GJLNSSNSL ���������� 36,665,669 ���������� 28,103,125 ����������

5QFSܪ�IZHNFW^�SJY�UTXNYNTS���JSINSL�(G) $ 46,928,000 	 ���������� $ 36,665,669 	 ���������� $ 28,103,125

Net pension liability - ending (a) - (b) $ 2,043,180 $ 631,514 $ 1,526,922 	 ��������� 	 ���������

5QFSܪ�IZHNFW^�SJY�UTXNYNTS�FX�F�
percentage of the total pension liability 
- end of year �����
 �����
 �����
 �����
 �����


(T[JWJI�UF^WTQQ� 	 ���������� $ 26,498,366 $ 23,622,592 	 ���������� $ 21,098,905
Net pension liability as a

percentage of covered payroll ����
 ����
 ����
 �����
 �����


��(T[JWJI�UF^WTQQ�NX�YMJ�UF^WTQQ�TS�\MNHM�HTSYWNGZYNTSX�YT�F�UJSXNTS�UQFS�FWJ�GFXJI�
See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
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Schedule of Employer Contributions

For the
Year Ended

Contractually 
Required 

Contribution

Contribution in Relation
to the Contractually

Required Contribution

Contribution 
Deficiency 

(excess)

Covered
Employee

Payroll

Contributions as
a Percentage of
Covered Payroll

June 30, 2025 $ 1,393,645 $ 1,393,645 $ - 	 ���������� ����
June 30, 2024 ��������� ��������� - ���������� 3.84
June 30, 2023 1,293,359 1,293,359 - ���������� 3.98
June 30, 2022 ��������� ��������� - 30,358,488 4.68
June 30, 2021 ��������� ��������� - ���������� 4.94
June 30, 2020 ��������� ��������� - ���������� 9.19
June 30, 2019 ��������� ��������� - ���������� 8.92
June 30, 2018 2,400,611 2,400,611 - 26,498,366 9.06
/ZSJ��������� ��������� ��������� - 23,622,592 9.50
June 30, 2016 ��������� ��������� - ���������� ����

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

1. Changes of Benefit Terms 
9MJWJ�MF[J�GJJS�ST�XNLSNܪHFSY�HMFSLJX�YT�YMJ�;78�GJSJܪY�UWT[NXNTSX�XNSHJ�YMJ�UWNTW�FHYZFWNFQ�[FQZFYNTS��

2. Changes of Assumptions 
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2023 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience 
study for the period from July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2020, except the discount rate, which was based on VRS 
Board action effective as of July 1, 2021. Changes to the actuarial assumption as a result of the experience study 
and VRS Board action are as follows:

○ 2TWYFQNY^�7FYJX�(5WJ�WJYNWJRJSY��UTXY�WJYNWJRJSY�MJFQYM �̂�FSI�INXFGQJI)���UUIFYJI�YT�5U'�����UZGQNH�XJHYTW�
RTWYFQNY^�YFGQJX��+TW�KZYZWJ�RTWYFQNY^�NRUWT[JRJSYX��WJUQFHJ�QTFI�\NYM�F�RTINܪJI�2TWYFQNY^�.RUWT[JRJSY�8HFQJ�
MP-2020

○ 7JYNWJRJSY�7FYJX���&IOZXYJI�WFYJX�YT�GJYYJWܪ�Y�J]UJWNJSHJ�KTW�5QFS�� �XJY�XJUFWFYJ�WFYJX�GFXJI�TS�J]UJWNJSHJ�KTW�
5QFS���-^GWNI �HMFSLJIܪ�SFQ�WJYNWJRJSY�FLJ

○ <NYMIWF\FQ�7FYJX���&IOZXYJI�\NYMIWF\FQ�WFYJX�YT�GJYYJWܪ�Y�J]UJWNJSHJ�FY�JFHM�FLJ�FSI�XJW[NHJ�^JFW�YMWTZLM���
years of service 

○ )NXHTZSY�7FYJ���ZSHMFSLJI�FY�����


○ Disability Rates - no change

○ Salary Scale - no change

○ There are no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria of GASB P22.101 or P52.101 to pay related 
GJSJܪYX�KTW�;78
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Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios – Health Benefits

June 30, 
2025

June 30, 
2024

June 30, 
2023

June 30, 
2022

June 30, 
2021

June 30, 
2020

June 30, 
2019

June 30, 
2018

Total OPEB 
Liability
Service cost $ 440,488 $ 564,906 $ 546,482 	 ������� 	 ������� $ 609,660 	 ������� 	 �������
Interest ������� ������� ������� 321,566 ������� ������� 503,012 460,115
Effect of 

economic/
demographic
    gains or losses - (1,232,828) - ������� - ������� - -

Effect of 
assumption 
changes or 
     other inputs (�������) (1,950,850) 426,304 (���������) 52,383 203,685 ������� (�������)

'JSJܪY�UF^RJSYX (�������) (880,614) (1,030,222) (���������) (�������) (880,214) (841,386) (�������)

Net change in 
total OPEB 
liability (901,056) (2,989,416) 419,049 (1,250,438) ������� 1,021,652 608,294 (104,980)

Total OPEB liability - 
beginning ���������� 13,843,223 ���������� ���������� ���������� 13,448,690 12,840,396 ����������

Total OPEB liability - 
ending 	 ��������� 	���������� $13,843,223 	 ���������� 	 ���������� 	���������� $13,448,690 $12,840,396

Total OPEB liability 
as a percentage
   of covered-
employee payroll �����
 �����
 �����
 �����
 �����
 �����
 �����
 �����


Covered-employee 
payroll 	 ���������� 	 ���������� 	 ���������� $ 30,358,488 	 ���������� 	 ���������� 	 ���������� $ 26,498,366

This schedule is presented with the requirement to show information for ten years. However, until a full ten-year trend is compiled, the Authority will present 
information for those years which information is available.

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

1. Changes of Benefit Terms 
9MJWJ�MF[J�GJJS�ST�FHYZFWNFQQ^�RFYJWNFQ�HMFSLJX�YT�YMJ�45*'�5QFS�GJSJܪY�UWT[NXNTSX�XNSHJ�YMJ�UWNTW�FHYZFWNFQ�
valuation. 

2. Changes of Assumptions 
The following changes in actuarial assumptions were made effective June 30, 2024:

○ The demographic assumptions used to determine the Total OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2025 were based on the 
results of an actuarial experience study for the Virginia Retirement System covering the period from July 1, 2016 
to June 30, 2020. The demographic assumptions recommended as a result of this study were adopted by the 
VRS Board of Trustees on April 20, 2021.

○ 9MJ�UWJ�2JINHFWJ�MJFQYMHFWJ�YWJSI�FXXZRUYNTS�\FX�HMFSLJI�KWTR�����
�NSܪ�XHFQ�����������
�NSܪ�XHFQ�����������
�
NSܪ�XHFQ������YMJS�LWFINSL�YT�FS�ZQYNRFYJ�WFYJ�TK�����
�NSܪ�XHFQ������FSI�QFYJW�YT������
�KTWܪ�XHFQ�����������
�
KTWܪ�XHFQ�����������
�KTWܪ�XHFQ�������YMJS�LWFINSL�YT�FS�ZQYNRFYJ�WFYJ�TK�����
�KTWܪ�XHFQ������FSI�QFYJW��9MJXJ�
rates are based on long-term healthcare trend rates generated by the Getzen Trend Model.

○ )NXHTZSY�WFYJ�NSHWJFXJI�KWTR�����
�YT����
�GFXJI�TS�YMJ�'TSI�'Z^JW�,JSJWFQ�4GQNLFYNTS����'TSI�2ZSNHNUFQ�
Index.

○ There are no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria of GASB P22.101 or P52.101 to pay related 
GJSJܪYX�KTW�45*'
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Schedule of Employer’s Share of Net OPEB Liability - GLI Program

For the Year Ended
June 30, 

2024
June 30, 

2023
June 30, 

2022
June 30, 

2021
June 30, 

2020
June 30, 

2019
June 30, 

2018
June 30, 

2017

Employer’s proportion of the 
Net
GLI OPEB Liability �����
 �����
 �����
 �����
 �����
 �����
 �����
 �����


Employer’s proportionate 
share of the
net GLI OPEB liability $ 1,389,881 $ 1,544,956 $ 1,514,633 $ 1,449,285 $ 2,131,104 	 ��������� $ 1,951,000 $ 1,814,000

Employer’s covered payroll ���������� ���������� 30,358,488 ���������� ���������� ���������� 26,498,366 23,622,592
Employer’s proportionate 

share of the net
GLI OPEB liability as a 
percentage of its
covered payroll ���
 ���
 ���
 ���
 ���
 ���
 ���
 ���


5QFSܪ�IZHNFW^�SJY�UTXNYNTS�FX�
a percentage
of the total GLI OPEB liability �����
 �����
 �����
 �����
 �����
 �����
 �����
 �����


This schedule is presented with the requirement to show information for ten years. However, until a full ten-year trend is compiled, the Authority will present 
information for those years for which information is available.

Schedule of Employer Contributions

For the
Year Ended

Contractually 
Required 

Contribution

Contribution in Relation to 
the Contractually Required 

Contribution

Contribution 
Deficiency 
(Excess)

Covered 
Payroll

Contributions as 
a Percentage of 
Covered Payroll

June 30, 2025 $ 163,360 $ 163,360 $ - 	 ���������� ����

June 30, 2024 ������� ������� - ���������� 0.50
June 30, 2023 162,640 162,640 - ���������� 0.50
June 30, 2022 146,680 146,680 - 30,358,488 0.48
June 30, 2021 ������� ������� - ���������� 0.49
June 30, 2020 ������� ������� - ���������� 0.51
June 30, 2019 136,520 136,520 - ���������� 0.48
June 30, 2018 ������� ������� - 26,498,366 0.48
/ZSJ��������� ������� ������� - 23,622,592 0.49

This schedule is presented with the requirement to show information for ten years. However, until a full ten-year trend is compiled, the 
Authority will present information for those years for which information is available.

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
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PRINCE WILLIAM WATER

Notes to Required Supplementary Information 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025 

1. Changes of Benefit Terms 
9MJWJ�MF[J�GJJS�ST�FHYZFWNFQQ^�RFYJWNFQ�HMFSLJX�YT�YMJ�,1.�GJSJܪY�UWT[NXNTSX�XNSHJ�YMJ�UWNTW�FHYZFWNFQ�[FQZFYNTS��

2. Changes of Assumptions
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2023 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience 
study for the period from July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2020, except the change in discount rate, which was based 
on VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2021. Changes to the actuarial assumption as a result of the experience 
study and VRS Board action are as follows:

○ 2TWYFQNY^� 7FYJX� (5WJ�WJYNWJRJSY�� UTXY�WJYNWJRJSY� MJFQYM �̂� FSI� INXFGQJI)� �� UUIFYJ� YT� 5U'����� UZGQNH� XJHYTW�
RTWYFQNY^�YFGQJX��+TW�KZYZWJ�RTWYFQNY^�NRUWT[JRJSYX��WJUQFHJ�QTFI�\NYM�F�RTINܪJI�2TWYFQNY^�.RUWT[JRJSY�8HFQJ�
MP-2020

○ 7JYNWJRJSY�7FYJX���&IOZXYJI�WFYJX�YT�GJYYJWܪ�Y�J]UJWNJSHJ�KTW�5QFS�� �XJY�XJUFWFYJ�WFYJX�GFXJI�TS�J]UJWNJSHJ�KTW�
5QFS���-^GWNI �HMFSLJIܪ�SFQ�WJYNWJRJSY�FLJ�KWTR����YT����KTW�FQQ

○ <NYMIWF\FQ�7FYJX���&IOZXYJI�WFYJX�YT�GJYYJWܪ�Y�J]UJWNJSHJ�FY�JFHM�FLJ�FSI�XJW[NHJ�IJHWJRJSY�YMWTZLM���^JFWX�
of service 

○ )NXHTZSY�7FYJ���USHMFSLJI�FY�����


○ Disability Rates - No change

○ Salary Scale - No change

○ There are no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria of GASB P22.101 or P52.101 to pay related 
GJSJܪYX�KTW�,1.
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Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios – HIC Program

June 30, 
2024

June 30, 
2023

June 30, 
2022

June 30, 
2021

June 30, 
2020

June 30, 
2019

June 30, 
2018

June 30, 
2017

Total HIC OPEB Liability
Service cost 	 ����� 	 ����� 	 ������ $ 18,094 	 ������ $ 19,224 $ 19,982 $ 21,939
Interest 25,340 25,915 ������ 45,533 42,342 38,101 35,302 35,563
Difference between actual and
expected experience (14,156) (25,904) (33,066) (������) (���) ������ 26,024 -
Changes of assumptions - - (326,512) ����� - 14,536 - (24,831)
'JSJܪY�UF^RJSYX (������) (������) (������) (14,534) (13,305) (������) (������) (28,085)

Net change in total HIC OPEB 
liability 2,483 (8,304) (313,455) 15,113 ������ ������ 36,600 4,586

Total HIC OPEB liability - 
beginning ������� ������� 696,934 681,821 633,936 ������� ������� �������

Total HIC OPEB liability - ending 
(a) 	 ������� 	 ������� 	 ������� $ 696,934 $ 681,821 $ 633,936 	 ������� 	 �������

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - employer $ 35,182 	 ������ $ 38,284 $ 35,981 	 ������ $ 36,426 $ 43,908 $ 40,004
Net investment income 58,004 ������ 29 109,011 ����� 22,663 23,144 ������
'JSJܪY�UF^RJSYX��NSHQZINSL�
refunds
of employee contributions (������) (������) (������) (14,534) (13,305) (������) (������) (28,085)
Administrative expense (810) (���) (���) (1,354) (���) (488) (559) (566)
Other (1) 65 ����� - (3) (26) (1,635) 1,635

3JY�HMFSLJ�NS�UQFSܪ�IZHNFW^�
net position ������ ������ 22,249 129,104 30,249 20,629 20,150 46,691

5QFSܪ�IZHNFW �̂SJY�UTXNYNTS���
beginning 602,950 553,244 530,995 401,891 ������� 351,013 330,863 �������

5QFSܪ�IZHNFW �̂SJY�UTXNYNTS���
ending (b) 	 ������� $ 602,950 $ 553,244 $ 530,995 $ 401,891 	 ������� $ 351,013 $ 330,863

Net HIC OPEB liability (asset) - 
ending (a) - (b) 	 (�������) 	 (�������) 	 (�������) $ 165,939 	 ������� $ 262,294 $ 212,260 $ 195,810

5QFSܪ�IZHNFW �̂SJY�UTXNYNTS�FX�F�
percentage
of the total HIC OPEB liability - 
end of year ������
 ������
 ������
 �����
 �����
 �����
 �����
 �����

(T[JWJI�UF^WTQQ�� 	 ���������� 	 ���������� $30,358,488 	 ���������� 	 ���������� 	 ���������� $ 26,498,366 $ 23,622,592
Total HIC OPEB liability as a 
percentage
of covered-employee payroll ����
 ����
 ����
 ����
 ����
 ����
 ����
 ����


�(T[JWJI�UF^WTQQ�NX�YMJ�UF^WTQQ�TS�\MNHM�HTSYWNGZYNTSX�YT�F�UJSXNTS�UQFS�FWJ�GFXJI�
This schedule is presented with the requirement to show information for ten years. However, until a full ten-year trend is compiled, the Authority will present 
information for those years for which information is available.
See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
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Schedule of Employer Contributions

For the 
Year Ended

Contractually 
Required 

Contribution

Contribution in
Relation to 

the Contractually 
Required Contribution

Contribution 
Deficiency 
(Excess)

Covered 
Payroll

Contributions as 
a Percentage of 
Covered Payroll

June 30, 2025 $ - $ - $ - $ ���������� �

June 30, 2024 35,182 35,182 - ���������� 0.10
June 30, 2023 ������ ������ - ���������� 0.10
June 30, 2022 38,284 38,284 - 30,358,488 0.13
June 30, 2021 35,981 35,981 - ���������� 0.13
June 30, 2020 ������ ������ - ���������� 0.14
June 30, 2019 36,426 36,426 - ���������� 0.13
June 30, 2018 43,908 43,908 - 26,498,366 ����
/ZSJ��������� 40,004 40,004 - 23,622,592 ����

This schedule is presented with the requirement to show information for ten years. However, until a full ten-year trend is compiled, the 
Authority will present information for those years for which information is available.
See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

1. Changes of Benefit Terms 
9MJWJ�MF[J�GJJS�ST�FHYZFWNFQQ^�RFYJWNFQ�HMFSLJX�YT�YMJ�-.(�GJSJܪY�UWT[NXNTSX�XNSHJ�YMJ�UWNTW�FHYZFWNFQ�[FQZFYNTS�

2. Changes of Assumptions
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2023 valuation were based upon a four-year experience review for 
the period ending June 30, 2020, as adopted by the VRS Board at its April 20, 2021 meeting. Changes to the actuarial 
assumption as a result of the experience study and VRS Board action are as follows:

○ 2TWYFQNY^�7FYJX�(5WJ�WJYNWJRJSY��UTXY�WJYNWJRJSY�MJFQYM �̂�FSI�INXFGQJI)���&�[JWXNTS�TK�YMJ�5U'������2TWYFQNY^�
9FGQJX�(FRTZSY�\JNLMYJI)�\NYM�KZQQ^�LJSJWFYNTSFQ�RTWYFQNY^�NRUWT[JRJSYX�UWTOJHYJI�ZXNSL���
�TK�YMJ�25������
projection scale.

○ 7JYNWJRJSY�&LJ���*]UJWNJSHJ�GFXJI�YFGQJX�TK�WFYJX�YMFY�FWJ�XUJHNܪH�YT�YMJ�Y^UJ�TK�JQNLNGNQNY^�HTSINYNTS�

○ )NXHTZSY�7FYJX���USHMFSLJI�FY�����


○ .SܫFYNTS������


○ There are no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria of GASB P22.101 or P52.101 to pay related 
GJSJܪYX�KTW�-.(
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Financial Trends
+NSFSHNFQ�YWJSI�NSKTWRFYNTS�NX�NSYJSIJI�YT�FXXNXY�ZXJWX�NS�ZSIJWXYFSINSL�MT\�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣXܪ�SFSHNFQ�UTXNYNTS�MFX�HMFSLJI�T[JW�
YNRJ��9MJ�YFGQJX�\MNHM�KTQQT\�INXHQTXJ�YJS�^JFWX�TKܪ�SFSHNFQ�IFYF�

Table 1     Condensed Statements of Net Position – Last Ten Fiscal Years (in thousands)
TABLE 1

Assets and Deferred
Outflows of Resources 2025 2024 2023* 2022** 2021** 2020 2019 2018*** 2017*** 2016

Current assets 	 ������� $ 224,404 	 ������� $ 219,120 $ 262,289 $ 254,461 	 ������� $ 254,853 	 ������� 	 �������
Non-current assets 1,442,566 ��������� ��������� 1,318,341 1,262,100 1,243,198 ��������� ��������� 1,300,963 1,289,955
)JKJWWJI�TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX 3,584 ����� ����� ����� ����� 9,219 6,808 6,214 ����� �����

Total assets and deferred 
������TZYܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX 	 ��������� 	 ��������� $ 1,541,805 	 ��������� $ 1,532,866 	 ��������� $ 1,490,603 	 ��������� 	 ��������� $ 1,426,015

Liabilities and Deferred
Inflows of Resources

Current liabilities $ 50,435 	 ������ 	 ������ $ 31,501 $ 33,032 	 ������ 	 ������ 	 ������ 	 ������ 	 ������
Long-term liabilities 216,643 92,203 88,199 ������ 112,503 121,988 ������� 138,954 152,100 148,658
)JKJWWJI�NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX ������ 12,504 12,632 ������ 550 1,221 1,544 1,989 - ���
Total liabilities and deferred
������NSܫT\X�TK�WJXTZWHJX ������� ������� 139,554 148,339 146,085 154,486 161,486 168,148 ������� �������

Net Position
Net investment 
in capital assets 1,024,694 1,094,886 ��������� 1,000,622 966,504 949,098 ������� ������� ������� 840,189
Restricted 109,116 ������ ������ 16,693 18,096 21,268 18,229 ������ ������ 16,556
USWJXYWNHYJI ������� 345,360 344,434 ������� 402,181 382,026 ������� ������� 386,161 393,464
Total net position 1,500,182 ��������� 1,402,251 ��������� ��������� 1,352,392 ��������� ��������� 1,286,322 1,250,209

9TYFQ�QNFGNQNYNJX��IJKJWWJI�NSܫT\X
      of resources and net position 	 ��������� 	 ��������� $ 1,541,805 	 ��������� $ 1,532,866 	 ��������� $ 1,490,603 	 ��������� 	 ��������� $ 1,426,015

��9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^�NRUQJRJSYJI�,&8'�8YFYJRJSY����NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�������\MNHM�HMFSLJI�YMJ�RFSSJW�HJWYFNS�NYJRX�FWJ�WJUTWYJI��)FYF�XMT\S�KTWܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�
2023 forward is reported in accordance with GASB 96. Prior years were not changed.

���9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^�NRUQJRJSYJI�,&8'�8YFYJRJSY����NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�������\MNHM�HMFSLJI�YMJ�RFSSJW�HJWYFNS�NYJRX�FWJ�WJUTWYJI��)FYF�XMT\S�KTWܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�
�����KTW\FWI�NX�WJUTWYJI�NS�FHHTWIFSHJ�\NYM�,&8'�����5WNTW�^JFWX�\JWJ�STY�HMFSLJI�

����9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^�NRUQJRJSYJI�,&8'�8YFYJRJSY����NSܪ�XHFQ�̂ JFW�������\MNHM�HMFSLJI�YMJ�RFSSJW�HJWYFNS�NYJRX�FWJ�WJUTWYJI��)FYF�XMT\S�KTWܪ�XHFQ�̂ JFW�
�����KTW\FWI�NX�WJUTWYJI�NS�FHHTWIFSHJ�\NYM�,&8'�����5WNTW�^JFWX�\JWJ�STY�HMFSLJI�

Source: Prince William Water.
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Table 2     Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position – 
Last Ten Fiscal Years (in thousands)

TABLE 2

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018* 2017 2016

Operating revenues
Water and sewer 
   user charges $ 148,282 	 ������� 	 ������� $ 123,651 $ 120,193 $ 116,694 	 ������� $ 111,625 $ 111,896 	 �������
Other ����� ����� 2,100 ����� 2,343 2,460 2,351 2,134 2,655 2,513

Total operating revenues 150,889 140,249 129,682 125,924 122,536 119,154 113,830 ������� 114,551 108,450

Non-operating revenues
Availability fees ������ ������ ������ 21,225 36,390 28,996 ������ ������ ������ ������
Investment and 
    other income ������ ������ 8,619 (3,850) 2,929 11,359 10,221 3,636 1,428 5,288
Grant revenues - 14 164 1,483 1,502 5 - - - -
Contributions from 
    developers/others 11,042 22,919 10,106 23,684 23,648 ������ ������ ������ 22,913 ������
*VZNY �̂NSYJWJXY�NS�U48& (3,105) (�����) (�����) (�����) (4,836) (4,043) (�����) (�����) 822 (8,058)
Total non-operating 
    revenues ������ 89,952 40,264 34,622 59,633 50,190 ������ 40,010 ������ 45,495

Total revenues 225,195 230,201 169,946 160,546 182,169 169,344 165,805 ������� ������� 153,945

Operating expenses
Personnel services 48,629 44,953 ������ 39,569 38,988 39,352 38,089 ������ 32,914 30,561
Purchased resources 39,980 39,092 32,959 ������ ������ 28,031 25,336 ������ 23,429 ������
Contractual services 15,059 13,152 13,942 11,438 11,322 9,561 10,304 9,638 8,698 8,668
Materials and supplies ����� ����� ����� 6,692 5,663 5,650 ����� 5,996 ����� 4,609
Other ����� 8,868 ����� 6,805 6,654 ����� 6,038 5,166 6,203 5,110

Total operating 
    expenses 119,116 113,554 104,281 ������ 89,859 89,302 86,014 81,653 ������ ������

Non-operating expenses
Depreciation/amortization ������ ������ 45,363 44,261 43,262 42,261 40,990 ������ ������ ������
Interest expense 3,002 1,996 2,103 2,512 2,891 3,152 3,262 ����� 3,969 4,221
5F^RJSYX�KTW�U48&�IJGY�XJW[NHJ 12,410 11,839 11,653 ������ 11,100 10,686 ������ 10,802 10,389 10,030
Other 668 668 668 668 668 668 612 ��� 668 ���
Total non-operating 
    expenses 63,205 61,588 ������ 58,908 ������ ������ ������ 53,541 53,383 49,693

Total expenses 182,321 ������� 164,068 150,955 ������� 146,069 141,585 135,194 129,484 121,613

Change in net position ������ 55,058 ����� 9,591 34,389 ������ 24,220 ������ ������ 32,332

Total net position, 
  beginning of year ��������� 1,402,251 ��������� ��������� 1,352,392 ��������� ��������� 1,286,322 ��������� ���������

Total net position, 
  end of year $ 1,500,182 	 ��������� $1,402,251 	 ��������� 	 ��������� $1,352,392 	 ��������� 	��������� $ 1,286,322 $1,250,209

��9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^�NRUQJRJSYJI�,&8'�8YFYJRJSY����NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�������\MNHM�WJVZNWJI�F�WJXYFYJRJSY�TK�GJLNSSNSL�3JY�5TXNYNTS�JKKJHYN[J�/ZQ^���������
���9MJ�&ZYMTWNY^�NRUQJRJSYJI�,&8'�8YFYJRJSY����NSܪ�XHFQ�^JFW�������\MNHM�WJVZNWJI�F�WJXYFYJRJSY�TK�GJLNSSNSL�3JY�5TXNYNTS�JKKJHYN[J�/ZQ^���������

Source: Prince William Water.
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Revenue Capacity Information
Revenue capacity information is provided to assist users in understanding the factors affecting the Authority’s ability to generate 
sources of revenue. In setting the user rate and availability fee structure, the Authority’s general practice has been to cover 
projected operating costs with user rates and to cover projected capital improvement costs with availability fees. That practice 
generally allows growth in use of the Authority’s services to pay for the additional costs of expanding the Authority’s system 
capacity. The tables below set forth historical user and availability fees for a typical customer over the last ten years. For a 
HTRUQJYJ�XHMJIZQJ�TK�FQQ�WFYJX�FSI�KJJX��UQJFXJ�HTSYFHY�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�(ZXYTRJW�8JW[NHJ�)JUFWYRJSY�FY��������������TW�RFNQ�
your request to Prince William Water, Customer Service Department, PO Box 2266, Woodbridge, Virginia 22195-2266.

Table 3     Water and Wastewater Charges – Last Ten Fiscal Years (in dollars)
TABLE 3

UXJW�KJJX�HTSXNXY�TK�Fܪ�]JI�RTSYMQ^�XJW[NHJ�HMFWLJ��UQZX�F�HTRRTINY^�HMFWLJ�KTW�\FYJW�FSI�XJ\JW�XJW[NHJ��9MJ�RTSYMQ^�XJW[NHJ�
KJJ�NX�IJXNLSJI�YT�WJHT[JWܪ�]JI�FIRNSNXYWFYN[J�HTXYX�FSI�NX�GFXJI�TS�RJYJW�XN_J�FSI�YMJ�Y^UJ�TK�XJW[NHJ�GJNSL�UWT[NIJI�(\FYJW�
and/or sewer). Commodity charges cover the cost of purchased water and sewage treatment as well as the cost of operation 
and maintenance for the Service Authority’s lines, pumping stations and water storage tanks. Commodity rates are based on the 
type of account and service being provided. Accounts are billed based on metered water usage. Rate increases are periodically 
FITUYJI�G^�YMJ�'TFWI�TK�)NWJHYTWX��9MJ�RTXY�WJHJSY�UXJW�7FYJX�FSI�+JJX�FWJ�F[FNQFGQJ�TS�TZW�\JGXNYJ�FY�\\\�U\\FYJW�TWL�

Commodity Charges (1) Service Charges (2)
Residential Commercial & Industrial 3/4 inch 1 inch

Fiscal Year Water Wastewater Water Wastewater Water Wastewater Water Wastewater

2025 $ 4.05 	 ���� $ 4.45 $ 8.50 $ 8.05 $ 14.25 $ 32.20 	 �����

2024 ���� ���� 4.10 ���� ���� 13.00 29.40 52.00

2023 3.60 6.85 3.95 ���� ���� 12.55 28.40 50.20

2022 3.45 6.65 3.80 ���� 6.85 12.10 ����� 48.40

2021 3.45 6.65 3.80 ���� 6.85 12.10 ����� 48.40

2020 3.45 6.65 3.80 ���� 6.85 12.10 ����� 48.40

2019 3.35 6.55 ���� ���� 5.95 10.45 ����� 41.85

2018 3.35 6.55 ���� ���� 5.45 9.60 21.80 38.40

���� 3.35 6.55 ���� ���� 5.45 9.60 21.80 38.40

2016 3.35 6.55 ���� ���� 5.05 8.90 ����� 31.15

(1) Commodity charges are based on 1,000 gallons of consumption.
(2) Monthly service charges are based on meter size.for residential and commercial customers. The two most common meter sizes are disclosed above. 

.SIZXYWNFQ�FHHTZSY�RTSYMQ^�XJW[NHJ�HMFWLJX�FWJ�GFXJI�TS�RJYJW�XN_J�FSI�YMJ�YMJ�SZRGJW�TK�*7UX�HJWYNܪJI�
Source: Prince William Water.
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Table 4     Availability Fees – Last Ten Fiscal Years (in dollars)
All new customers connecting to the system are required to pay an availability fee before obtaining a building permit from 
Prince William County. Availability fees are used to fund long-term commitments associated with future system capacity and 
costs associated with expanding the system to serve new customers. Availability fees are based on the type of service (water 
and/or sewer) and the amount of monthly capacity purchased.  In 2023, rate increases were effective on April 1. In 2024 
and 2025, rate increases were effective on January 1.

Residential (1) Commercial (2)
Fiscal Year Water Wastewater Total Water Wastewater Total

2025 $ 5,300 $ 12,000 	 ������ $ 21,200 $ 48,000 $ 69,200
2024 4,800 ������ 16,500 19,200 46,800 66,000
2023 ����� 11,200 15,900 18,800 44,800 63,600
2022 4,600 10,800 15,400 18,400 43,200 61,600
2021 4,600 10,800 15,400 18,400 43,200 61,600
2020 4,600 10,800 15,400 18,400 43,200 61,600
2019 4,600 10,800 15,400 18,400 43,200 61,600
2018 4,600 10,800 15,400 18,400 43,200 61,600
���� 4,600 10,800 15,400 18,400 43,200 61,600
2016 4,600 10,800 15,400 18,400 43,200 61,600

(1) Residential availability fee disclosed above is based on a 3/4” meter size.

(2) Commercial availability fee disclosed above is based on a 1” meter size.

Source: Prince William Water.

Table 5     Ten Principal Customers – Current Year and Nine Years Ago
Principal rate payer information is useful to determine concentrations in the source of revenues. This information provides 
UWJINHYN[J�[FQZJ�TK� YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�JHTSTRNH�HTSINYNTS� NK�� KTW�J]FRUQJ��FS^�RFOTW�HZXYTRJWX�\JWJ�YT�JSHTZSYJWܪ�SFSHNFQ�
INܬHZQYNJX�\MNHM�NRUFHY�YMJNW�ZXJ�TK�&ZYMTWNY^�XJW[NHJX��4[JW�YMJ�UFXY�YJS�^JFWX��ST�XNSLQJ�HZXYTRJW�FHHTZSYJI�KTW�RTWJ�
YMFS��
�TK�WJ[JSZJX�KWTR�\FYJW�FSI�XJ\JW�ZXJW�HMFWLJX�

Total water and sewer user charge revenues (in thousands) $148,282 	�������

2025 2016
Name Type Amount % of Total Amount % of Total

Prince William County Schools Schools $ 2,212 ����
 $ 1,512 ����

Nova Mango Farms Data Centers 1,549 ����
 - -
City of Manassas Park UYNQNY^ ����� ����
 ��� ����

VA Data Data Centers 1,203 ����
 - -
Potomac Club Housing 891 ����
 604 ����

Westgate Apartments Housing ��� ����
 462 ����

CRS Triangle Apartments Housing 696 ����
 414 ����

Summerland Heights Apartments Housing ��� ����
 481 ����

Sentara Potomac Hospital Hospital 596 ����
 - -
Prince William Park Authority Parks and Swimming Pools 583 ����
 ��� ����

Potomac Mills Mall Shopping Mall - - ��� ����

Crothall Laundry Hospital Laundry - - 422 ����


Source: Prince William Water. TABLES 4, 5
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Debt Capacity Information
Debt capacity information is intended to assist users in understanding the Authority’s debt burden and ability to issue additional 
debt. The ultimate guarantors of Authority debt are its customers, however, availability fees are designed to recover the cost 
of debt associated with expansion. 

Table 6     Outstanding Debt Coverage – June 30, 2025
Outstanding 

Debt Total

Fiscal 
Year

VRA Loans 
Payable   Revenue Bonds   Leases SBITAs

Outstanding 
Debt

Number of 
Customers

Debt 
Coverage 

per Customer

2025 	 ���������� $ 131,865,235 $ 891,509 $ 13,263 	 ����������� 98,596 $ 2,104.88
2024 44,544,115 39,648,849 1,085,969 43,935 85,322,868 98,128 869.51
2023 35,229,809 ���������� ������ ������ ���������� ������ 805.98
2022 40,842,435 ���������� 166,609 - 88,133,982 96,814 910.34
2021 ���������� ���������� - - ���������� 95,805 ��������
2020 53,914,819 ���������� - - 108,263,490 94,632 1,144.05
2019 ���������� ���������� - - 118,124,226 93,498 1,263.39
2018 66,460,114 ���������� - - ����������� 92,654 ��������
���� ���������� ���������� - - ����������� 90,892 1,509.54
2016 ���������� 68,182,133 - - ����������� 89,235 ��������

Source: Prince William Water. 9&'1*8�����

Table 7     Pledged Revenue Coverage - Last Ten Fiscal Years (in thousands)
Senior debt consists of Revenue and Refunding bond issuances which are backed by pledged revenues and, senior debt 
NSHQZIJXܪ�SFSHNSL�FLWJJRJSYX�JSYJWJI�NSYT�\NYM�YMJ�;NWLNSNF�7JXTZWHJX�&ZYMTWNY �̂�7J[JSZJX�RJFS�FQQ�WJ[JSZJX��WJHJNUYX�FSI�
other income derived from the ownership or operation of the Authority, including, without limitation, availability fees and any 
investment earnings.

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Pledged revenues 	 ������� $ 211,034 $ 165,533 $ 143,298 $ 161,855 $ 159,510 $ 145,924 	 ������� $ 152,595 $ 140,209

Senior debt (1)
Principal and interest 

requirements 	 ����� 	 ����� $ 6,296 	 ����� 	 ����� 	 ����� 	 ����� 	 ����� 	 ����� 	 �����

Senior debt revenue coverage 34.23 33.41 26.29 ����� 20.53 20.19 18.51 18.31 19.25 �����

Subordinate debt (1)
Principal and interest 

requirements $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Total debt 
revenue coverage 34.23 33.41 26.29 ����� 20.53 20.19 18.51 18.31 19.25 �����

(�)� *KKJHYN[J� \NYM� YMJ� HQTXNSL� TK� F� �SFSHNSLܪ FLWJJRJSY� \NYM� ;7&�� FQQ� TK� YMJ� TZYXYFSINSL� GFQFSHJX� \NYM� ;7&� GJHFRJ� UFWNY^� \NYM
the outstanding Revenue and Refunding Bonds debt.

8JJ�9FGQJ���FSI�9FGQJ���KTW�WJ[JSZJ�HT[JWFLJ�YJXYX�FX�IJܪSJI�G^�YMJ�7J[JSZJ�(T[JSFSY�FSI�FXXTHNFYJI�IJܪSNYNTSX�\NYMNS�YMJ�2FXYJW�'TSI�.SIJSYZWJ�
Source: Prince William Water.
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Table 8     Revenue Bond Coverage, Test 1 - Last Ten Fiscal Years (in thousands)
9MNX�HT[JWFLJ�YJXY�RJFXZWJX�\MJYMJW�3JY�7J[JSZJX�&[FNQFGQJ�KTW�)JGY�8JW[NHJ�FWJ�XZܬHNJSY�YT�HT[JW�����YNRJX�(TW����
)�TK�
annual debt service requirements. The Authority consistently exceeds the required coverage ratio. Calculations are based on 
YMJ�7J[JSZJ�(T[JSFSY�FSI�FXXTHNFYJI�IJܪSNYNTSX�\NYMNS�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�2FXYJW�'TSI�.SIJSYZWJ�

Fiscal Year
Gross

Revenues (1)
Operating 

Expenses (2)

Net Revenues 
Available for 
Debt Service

1.2 Times Senior 
Debt Service

Requirements (3)
Coverage
(1.0 Req’d)

2025 	 ������� $ 132,193 $ 85,064 	 ����� ����� TABLES 8, 9

2024 211,034 126,062 ������ ����� 11.21
2023 165,533 116,603 48,930 ����� 6.48
2022 143,298 104,182 39,116 9,462 4.13
2021 161,855 101,629 60,226 9,462 ����
2020 159,510 100,656 58,854 ����� 6.21
2019 145,924 ������ 48,590 9,462 5.14
2018 ������� ������ 51,995 9,512 ����
���� 152,595 ������ ������ 9,512 6.88
2016 140,209 ������ ������ 9,512 6.05

(�)�,WTXX�WJ[JSZJX�NSHQZIJ�FQQ�WJ[JSZJ�HFYJLTWNJX�J]HJUY�HTSYWNGZYNTSX�KWTR�IJ[JQTUJWX��KZSIX�WJHJN[JI�KWTR�LWFSYX�FSI�JVZNY^�NS�JFWSNSLX�TK�U48&�
(�)�4UJWFYNSL�J]UJSXJX�NSHQZIJ�TUJWFYNSL�J]UJSXJX�UQZX�UWNSHNUFQ�FSI�NSYJWJXY�UF^RJSYX�TS�U48&�IJGY�FSI�UF^RJSYX�TS�HFUFHNY^�FLWJJRJSYX�\NYM�

Fairfax Water.
(�)�*KKJHYN[J�\NYM�YMJ�HQTXNSL�TK�Fܪ�SFSHNSL�FLWJJRJSY�\NYM�YMJ�;7&��FQQ�TK�YMJ�TZYXYFSINSL�GFQFSHJX�\NYM�YMJ�;7&�GJHTRJ�UFWNY^�\NYM�YMJ�TZYXYFSINSL�

7J[JSZJ�FSI�7JKZSINSL�'TSIX�IJGY��.Sܪ�XHFQ�^JFWX������YMWTZLM�������YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�RFIJ�FI[FSHJI�UF^RJSYX�YT�YMJ�9WZXYJJ�YT\FWI�IJGY�XJW[NHJ�KTW�
the subsequent year.

Source: Prince William Water.

Table 9     Revenue Bond Coverage, Test 2 - Last Ten Fiscal Years (in thousands)
The Authority is required to meet at least one of the two coverage ratios reported in the table below. Coverage A demonstrates 
YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�FGNQNY^�YT�\NYMXYFSI�F���
�WJIZHYNTS�TK�&[FNQFGNQNY^�+JJX�FSI�RFNSYFNS�&IOZXYJI�3JY�7J[JSZJX�XZܬHNJSY�YT�
HT[JW����
�TK�FSSZFQ�IJGY�XJW[NHJ�WJVZNWJRJSYX��(T[JWFLJ�'�IJRTSXYWFYJX�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�FGNQNY^�KTW�&IOZXYJI�3JY�7J[JSZJX�
UQZX���
�TK�YMJ�USWJXYWNHYJI�7JXJW[JX�(UWNRFWNQ^�HFXM�FSI�NS[JXYRJSYX)�YT�HT[JW�����YNRJX�(TW����
)�TK�FSSZFQ�IJGY�XJW[NHJ�
requirements. The Authority consistently exceeds these required coverage ratios. Calculations are based on the Revenue 
(T[JSFSY�FSI�FXXTHNFYJI�IJܪSNYNTSX�\NYMNS�YMJ�2FXYJW�'TSI�.SIJSYZWJ�

“Either/Or” Coverage Requirement

Fiscal 
Year

Net Revenues
Available for
Debt Service

Less 50% 
Developer 
Charges

Adjusted Net 
Revenues

Senior Debt 
Service 

Requirements (2)
Coverage A
(1.0 Req’d)

Adjusted Net 
Revenues Plus 

50% Unrestricted 
Reserves (1)

Coverage B
(1.5 Req’d)

2025 $ 85,064 $ 24,396 $ 60,668 	 ����� 9.56 	 ������� 35.19
2024 ������ ������ 58,535 ����� ���� 210,163 �����
2023 48,930 13,616 35,314 6,296 5.61 188,643 29.96
2022 39,116 10,613 28,503 ����� 3.61 ������� 24.89
2021 60,226 18,195 42,031 ����� 5.33 222,686 28.24
2020 58,854 14,498 44,356 ����� 5.62 212,528 26.90
2019 48,590 ������ ������ ����� ���� 201,805 25.59
2018 51,995 13,889 38,106 ����� 4.81 213,518 26.94
���� ������ 18,309 ������ ����� 5.95 216,640 �����
2016 ������ 13,236 44,296 ����� 5.59 ������� �����

(�)�USWJXYWNHYJI�7JXJW[JX�NX�YMJ�ZSWJXYWNHYJI�KZSI�GFQFSHJ��QJXX�TSJ�RTSYMѣX�GZILJYJI�TUJWFYNSL�J]UJSXJ�
(�)�&QQ�TK�YMJ�TZYXYFSINSL�GFQFSHJX�\NYM�YMJ�;7&�GJHTRJ�UFWNY^�\NYM�YMJ�TZYXYFSINSL�7J[JSZJ�FSI�7JKZSINSL�'TSIX�IJGY��.Sܪ�XHFQ�^JFWX������YMWTZLM�

2025, the Authority made advanced payments to the Trustee toward debt service for the subsequent year.
Source: Prince William Water.
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Demographic and Economic Information
Demographic and economic information is intended to assist users in understanding the socio-economic environment within 
\MNHM�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^�TUJWFYJX�FSI�YT�UWT[NIJ�NSKTWRFYNTS�YMFY�KFHNQNYFYJX�HTRUFWNXTSX�TKܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSY�NSKTWRFYNTS�T[JW�
time. 

Table 10     Prince William County Population Data — Last Ten Calendar Years
Calendar 

Year Population Change % Change

2025 508,109 ������ ���

2024 496,322 4,629 0.9
2023 491,693 3,423 ���
2022 ������� ����� 0.6
2021 485,283 ����� 0.6
2020 482,204 8,303 1.8
2019 ������� ����� 1.6
2018 466,525 ����� 1.2
���� 460,846 ����� 1.6
2016 ������� ������ ���

Source: Prince William County. TABLES 10, 11

Table 11     Prince William County Employment Data — Last Ten Calendar Years
Calendar

Year
Civilian Labor 

Force *
At-Place 

Employment Unemployment Rate*

2025 269,532(1) 142,255(2) ���
(1)
2024 ������� 143,345 ���
2023 268,499 139,621 2.5
2022 261,168 ������� 2.5
2021 253,984 ������� ���
2020 253,469 125,254 6.6
2019 ������� ������� 2.4
2018 ������� 130,335 ���
���� ������� ������� 3.3
2016 240,951 126,283 3.5

��(N[NQNFS�QFGTW�KTWHJ�FSI�ZSJRUQT^RJSY�[FQZJX�FWJ�XZGOJHY�YT�UJWNTINH�WJ[NXNTS�

(�)�&[JWFLJ�TK�RTSYMQ^�XYFYNXYNHX�KTWܪ�WXY�MFQK�TK������

(�)�&[JWFLJ�TK�RTSYMQ^�XYFYNXYNHX�KTWܪ�WXY�VZFWYJW�TK������

Source: Prince William County.
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Table 12     Prince William County Employer Data - Current Year and Nine Years Ago
The ten largest employers in Prince William County for the current year and nine years ago, respectively, are as follows:

2025 Q1 2016 Q1
Employer Industry Rank Employees Rank Employees

Prince William County School Board Local Government 1 1,000 and over 1 1,000 and over
County of Prince William Local Government 2 1,000 and over 2 1,000 and over
U�8��)JUFWYRJSY�TK�)JKJSXJ Federal Government 3 1,000 and over 3 1,000 and over
Walmart Private 4 1,000 and over 4 1,000 and over
Sentara Healthcare/Potomac Hospital 

Corporation Private 5 1,000 and over 6 1,000 and over
Morale Welfare and Recreation Federal Government 6 1,000 and over 5 1,000 and over
Target Corporation Private � 500 to 999 9 500 to 999
<JLRFSX�8YTWJ���� Private 8 500 to 999 � 500 to 999
The Fishel Company Private 9 500 to 999 - -
Giant Food Private 10 501 to 999 - -
Minnieland Private Day School Private 31 250 to 499 10 500 to 999
Northern Virginia Community College State Government 14 501 to 999 8 500 to 999

Source: Prince William County. TABLES 12, 13

Table 13     Prince William County Personal Wealth Data - Last Ten Calendar Years
Average Assessed Housing Value (1)

Fiscal Year
Single Family

Detached Townhouse Condominium
All

Residential

2025 	 ������� $ 458,500 	 ������� 	 �������
2024 602,800 425,300 345,200 531,400
2023 ������� ������� 321,800 502,600
2022 535,600 ������� 299,900 �������
2021 ������� 331,800 ������� 418,600
2020 440,300 ������� 252,200 388,300
2019 423,200 292,900 240,800 �������
2018 409,900 ������� 229,100 359,000
���� 396,400 ������� ������� 346,600
2016 389,900 260,500 211,600 340,200

(�)�&[JWFLJX�WJܫJHY�MTZXNSL�J]NXYNSL�TS�/FSZFW^���TK�JFHM�^JFW�

Source: Prince William County.
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Operating Information
Operating information is intended to provide contextual information about the Authority’s operations and resources to assist 
WJFIJWX�NS�ZXNSLܪ�SFSHNFQ�XYFYJRJSY�NSKTWRFYNTS�YT�ZSIJWXYFSI�FSI�FXXJXX�YMJ�&ZYMTWNY^ѣX�JHTSTRNH�HTSINYNTS��

Table 14     Operating Indicators - Last Ten Fiscal Years
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Number of employees ��� ��� 352 353 330 338 343 335 306 288
Number of customers 98,545 98,128 ������ 96,814 95,805 94,632 93,498 92,654 90,892 89,235

Class:
Residential 92,292 91,936 91,625 ������ ������ ������ ������ ������ ������ 84,131
Commercial 4,056 4,059 4,023 3,980 ����� 3,891 3,839 3,806 ����� 3,288
Multi-family 1,834 1,805 ����� ����� ����� ����� ����� ����� 1,614 �����
Hydrant 326 328 329 303 302 ��� 256 246 ��� 239
Industrial �� -

�

-
�

-
�

-
�

-
�

-
�

-
�

-
�

-
Days cash on hand 595 566 ��� ��� 912 881 ����� 993 600 511
Miles of water lines 1,338 1,332 1,315 1,308 1,291 ����� 1,260 1,236 1,225 1,214
Miles of sewer lines ����� ����� 1,153 1,150 ����� 1,126 1,116 ����� 1,091 1,086
Wastewater pumping stations �� �� 65 65 63 62 61 60 59 59
Water tank storage 

 effective capacity (MG) 24.9 24.9 26.1 26.1 26.1 26.1 26.1 26.1 26.1 26.1
3ZRGJW�TKܪ�WJ�M^IWFSYX 12,959 ������ 12,658 12,559 12,348 12,141 ������ 11,661 11,481 ������
Water capacity (MGD):

Capacity at Fairfax Water 62.4 62.4 62.4 62.4 62.4 62.4 62.4 62.4 62.4 ����
Capacity at City of Manassas 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
Prince William Water wells 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5

Total water capacity ���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���� 62.9

Wastewater treatment capacity (MGD):
Capacity at HLM AWRF 24.0 24.0 24.0 24.0 24.0 24.0 24.0 24.0 24.0 24.0
(FUFHNY^�FY�U48& 19.8 19.8 19.8 19.8 19.8 19.8 19.8 19.8 19.8 19.8

Total wastewater 
 treatment capacity 43.8 43.8 43.8 43.8 43.8 43.8 43.8 43.8 43.8 43.8

Source: Prince William Water. TABLE 14
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Table 15     Service Demand - Last Ten Fiscal Years
Millions of Gallons (MG)

Fiscal Year
Customer 
Accounts

Water 
Produced

Water
Purchased

Water
Peak Day Flow

Wastewater
Treated

2025 98,545 36 12,209 50.3 10,389
2024 98,128 39 11,914 48.3 10,442
2023 ������ 33 11,354 44.4 �����
2022 96,814 40 11,830 44.4 10,096
2021 95,805 38 10,912 52.1 10,644
2020 94,632 36 10,465 42.1 �����
2019 93,498 22 9,869 36.9 11,293
2018 92,654 26 10,106 40.5 �����
���� 90,892 43 10,316 43.0 �����
2016 89,235 68 ����� 34.2 9,540

Source: Prince William Water. TABLES 15, 16

Table 16     VRS Pension Plan Funding Levels

PWCSA All Political Subdivisions

Fiscal Year

Plan Fiduciary
Liability as % of Total

Pension Liability

Net Pension
Liability (Asset) as % of
Total Pension Liability

Plan Fiduciary
Liability as % of Total

Pension Liability

Net Pension
Liability as % of

Total Pension Liability

2025 �����
 (���)
 ����
 ���


2024 102.0 (2.0) 91.9 8.1

2023 105.3 (5.3) 92.5 ���

2022 110.8 (10.8) ���� 2.8

2021 93.4 6.6 83.4 16.6

2020 95.8 4.2 ���� 12.2

2019 98.5 1.5 90.2 9.8

2018 96.0 4.0 89.3 ����

���� 85.9 14.1 ���� 16.3

2016 ���� 11.3 ���� 13.3

This schedule is presented with the requirement to show information for ten years. However, until a full ten-year trend is compiled, the Authority will present 
information for those years which information is available.
Source: Prince William Water.
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Table 17     Equity Interest in UOSA Detail

Fiscal 
Year

PWCSA 
Portion 
of Total 

Allocated 
Capacity

UOSA Prior 
Fiscal Year 
Change in 

Net Position

PWCSA 
Current Year 

Portion of 
UOSA Change 

in 
Net Position

PWCSA 
Cumulative 
Portion of 

UOSA Change 
in 

Net Position

Current Year 
Amortization 

2MGD 
2008 

Capacity 
Purchase

Remaining 
Balance 
2MGD 
2008 

Capacity 
Purchase

Current Year 
Amortization 

2011 
Capacity 
Purchase

Remaining
Balance 2MGD 
2011 Capacity 

Purchase

Current Year 
Equity 

Interest 
in UOSA

Cumulative 
Equity Interest 

in UOSA

2025 �������
 $ 1,234,665 $ 452,644 $ 1,668,402 $ (1,812,816) $ 10,486,865 	 (���������) 	 ���������� $ (3,105,488) 	 ����������
2024 �������
 (1,019,655) (�������) ��������� (���������) 12,299,681 (1,663,339) ���������� (���������) ����������
2023 �������
 (���������) (���������) ��������� (1,645,268) ���������� (1,584,006) ���������� (���������) ����������
2022 �������
 (����������) (5,055,533) 4,216,930 (���������) ���������� (1,455,881) ���������� (���������) 40,619,329
2021 �������
 (���������) (2,119,954) ��������� (1,335,549) ���������� (1,380,154) 22,185,662 (���������) 48,539,080
2020 �������
 (���������) (���������) ���������� (���������) 18,416,504 (1,308,614) 23,565,816 (4,042,609) ����������
2019 �������
 (12,981,565) (���������) 12,859,656 (���������) 19,683,260 (1,241,263) ���������� (���������) ����������
2018 �������
 (����������) (4,881,554) ���������� (1,139,281) ���������� (���������) 26,115,693 (���������) ����������
���� �������
 8,229,222 3,016,940 22,500,420 (1,080,600) 22,024,498 (1,114,495) ���������� 821,845 ����������
2016 �������
 (����������) (���������) 19,483,480 (1,025,290) 23,105,098 (1,056,621) ���������� (���������) ����������

Source: Prince William Water. 9&'1*���
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ACFR Annual Comprehensive Financial  
Report

AMA Asset Management Analytics

AWRF Advanced Water Reclamation Facility

BOCS Board of County Supervisors

BPS Booster Pumping Station

CIP Capital Improvements Program

CIS Customer Information System

CMMS Computerized Maintenance  
Management System 

COLA Cost-of-Living Adjustment

CPA (JWYNܪJI�5ZGQNH�&HHTZSYFSY

CPI-U (TSXZRJW�5WNHJ�.SIJ]�KTW�FQQ�UWGFS��
Consumers

ERU *VZN[FQJSY�7JXNIJSYNFQ�USNY

FDIC Federal Deposit Insurance  Corporation 

FFCB Federal Farm Credit Bank

FHLB Federal Home Loan Bank

FHLMC Federal Home Loan Mortgage  
Corporation

FMS Financial Management System

FNMA Federal National Mortgage   
Association

GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting   
Principles

GASB Governmental Accounting Standards  
Board

GFOA ,T[JWSRJSY�+NSFSHJ�4ܬHJWX��
Association

GIS Geographic Information System

GLI Group Life Insurance

HIC Health Insurance Credit

HLM AWRF H.L. Mooney Advanced Water 
Reclamation Facility

LGIP Local Government Investment Pool

LGIP EM Local Government Investment Pool 
Extended Maturity

LODA Line of Duty Act

MD&A Management’s Discussion and   
Analysis

MG Million Gallons

MGD Million Gallons per Day

MP Mortality Improvement

NOL Net OPEB Liability

NPA Net Pension Asset

NPL Net Pension Liability

OPEB 4YMJW�5TXYJRUQT^RJSY�'JSJܪYX

ORP Optional Retirement Plan

PER Preliminary Engineering Report

PIP Private Investment Partnership

PMIS Project Management Information 
System

PTO Paid Time Off

S&P Standard and Poor’s Rating Services 

SCADA Supervisory Control and Data 
Acquisition

SBITA Subscription-Based Information 
Technology Agreement

SEC Securities and Exchange Commission 

SPS Sewage Pumping Station

TOL 9TYFQ�4YMJW�5TXYJRUQT^RJSY�'JSJܪYX�
Liability

TPL Total Pension Liability

UOSA UUUJW�4HHTVZFS�8JW[NHJ�&ZYMTWNY^

US USNYJI�8YFYJX

VDOT Virginia Department of Transportation

VLDP Virginia Local Disability Program

VRA Virginia Resources Authority

VRS Virginia Retirement System

VRSA Virginia Risk Sharing Association

VWFRF Virginia Water Facilities Revolving Fund

GLOSSARY OF ACRONYMS
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